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SHARE YOUR DAILY LIFE
WITH US

LG ― G2
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LG ― G2
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LG ― G2

LG ― G2

LG ― G2

MOBILE
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IT'S A NEW WORLD
OF EXPERIENCE

MOBILE

Whenever we want to save the moment, we take pictures
using smartphones and share them with our beloved ones.
Talking to friends, finding answers to questions, searching for
directions as well as writing housekeeping books, watching news,
listening to music, playing games and reading webtoons are
also possible on mobile devices. Mobile service has taken
the world to the place that transcends time and space;
all you have to do now is to enjoy it, and Naver will continuously
pave the way to making your life easier.

Search, Knowledge-iN, Webtoon, News services
optimized for mobile environment
Naver Music, Naver Dictionary, Naver Housekeeping
Book services through mobile apps
‘Wine Search’, ‘Voice and Music Search’ services
optimized for mobile environment
‘Personalized Auto-Complete’, 'Mobile Auto-Complete
Answering Search’ services optimized for mobile environment
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MOBILE
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BUILDING
A SOLID RELATIONSHIP

Samsung ― Galaxy Note 2
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Samsung ― Galaxy Note 2

COMMUNICATION
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WE WILL LEAD
THE WAY

COMMUNICATION

With the messenger and free call functions, we are able to
talk to anyone, anytime and anywhere in the world.
Sometimes we can talk face-to-face and share images with
people on the other side of the globe. We can also meet
our old friends online and make private communities where to
decorate, share and socialize. Naver provides ways
to communicating with people, anytime and anywhere.

370 million people from 230 countries using
our mobile platform service ‘LINE’
Ranked No.1 in the number of downloads in Japan, Taiwan,
Thailand, Indonesia, Spain, and Mexico
‘LINE Camera’ recorded 70 million downloads,
and ‘LINE Game’ did 280 million downloads as well
Closed-network service ‘Band’ exceeded 25 million users
and 2.5 billion monthly usages
Offers services in 10 different languages including English,
Japanese, and Spanish
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COMMUNICATION
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EVERY FOOTPRINT
YOU MAKE

Apple ― iPhone 5
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Apple ― iPhone 5S

HTC ― One

Pantech ― Vega Rcer

Samsung ― Galaxy S2

Apple ― iPhone 4S

LG ― G2

Google ― Nexus 4

Samsung ― Galaxy S3
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STORING TODAY
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WE WILL PRESERVE IT
FOR YOUR TOMORROW

STORING TODAY

Records tell us about the past and enable us to imagine the future.
Our daily lives are being recorded on the internet services such as
SNS, blogs, e-mails, and messengers. If these data are stored properly,
our descendants will be able to utilize it as a foundation to create
a better future. Naver’s data center ‘Gak’ has been constructed in the
most suitable form and structure to store records created
by various internet service providers, and it is filled with
state-of-the-art equipment to safeguard the data from outside
attacks and disasters. With great conviction, Naver will save your
records. You leave a trace, and we will protect it. We will deliver
today’s records tomorrow.

Became Korea’s first internet company to construct
and start operation of the data center ‘Gak’ in June 2013
4 main buildings including 3 buildings with 3 floors for server rooms,
with the size of 7 soccer fields totaling about 54,229 square meters
First internet data center to obtain the Platinum certification,
the highest eco-friendly level, by LEED
State-of-the-art systems to safely store the data from external
disasters or physical shocks

DREAM THE FUTURE
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GROWING TOGETHER

015

WE WILL BE WITH YOU
ALL THE WAY

GROWING TOGETHER

Everyone has a dream, and efforts to accomplish such dream
make the future. SMEs are the foundation of Korea’s economy,
and creators will lead the way to enrich Korea’s contents ecosystem
in the future. Everyone with dreams and passions are
Naver’s potential partners. With the belief that healthy ecosystem
of co-prosperity is the gist of our competitiveness,
Naver supports entrepreneurs, small business owners,
developers, and creators. We want to become a ceaseless help
for them to achieve their dreams and will always be with them.

Operating the ‘Naver Venture Fund’ to support young
entrepreneurs
Operating the ‘Hope for Small Business Operators Fund’ to
help improve their business environments
Opened co-prosperity platforms to vitalize contents for realties
and other specialized companies
Operating the ‘D2 Program (For Developers, By Developers)’ to
support co-prosperity with IT contents developers
Operating the ‘NHN NEXT’, an education facility to nurture
software developers
Operating the ‘Naver Culture Fund’ to systematically support
content developments
Established the ‘Cartoon Development Committee’ for the
overseas expansion of Korean cartoon contents
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GROWING TOGETHER
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STAY
WHERE YOU ARE
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Samsung ― Galaxy S3
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GOING GLOBAL
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WE WILL CONNECT YOU
TO THE WORLD

GOING GLOBAL

This is not an imagination; it is a reality.
Today, you are able to connect with 370 million people
in 230 countries every day. It is possible to easily communicate with
overseas friends or business partners by utilizing various language
services and create communities in their own languages.
With the spam list of 600 million numbers, you can be free from
unnecessary phone calls. All you have to do is just stay where
you are, and global Naver services will be there for you,
anytime and anywhere.

370 million people from 230 countries using
our mobile platform service ‘LINE’
Ranked No.1 in the number of downloads in Japan, Taiwan,
Thailand, Indonesia, Spain, and Mexico
‘BAND’ service providing 10 different languages including English,
Japanese, and Spanish
Naver providing a total of 21 language services including
19 dictionaries and global speaking services
Global yellow pages ‘LINE whoscall’ becoming the ‘Best App of
2013’ for Google Play in 8 countries including Hong Kong
Around 60 million people using ‘Matome’ service monthly in Japan,
a participation type of contents service similar to Knowledge-iN
service in Korea
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GOING GLOBAL
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The Corporate Identity (CI) of Naver embodies our service philosophy,
which is to serve users as a friendly and reliable guide to the bigger world
that is connected through the internet.
We live in a world where information is shared freely through the network –
with people who live distances away and among generations of yesterday, today,
and tomorrow. Naver is building a greater world where everything is
connected with one another.
The ‘green color’ and ‘gothic-style capital letters’ used for our CI symbolize
friendliness and trust. They contain our service philosophy to friendly
guide people to the bigger world that is connected through the internet.
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NAVER CI
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NAVER ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Since its incorporation as Navercom in 1999, we have put user satisfaction as
our top priority and as a result we became Korea’s representative internet company.
We are continuously making efforts to provide more innovative
and convenient services and at the same time we always have our ears open
to support domestic internet ecosystem.

We continue to strengthen our core competitiveness and seek new growth drivers.
Last year, amidst the fast pace of the business environment changes, we split-off
the Hangame business to secure independence, expertise, and the strategic flexibility
and jumped into next chapter in our business. We also expanded LINE globally and established
a new subsidiary specializing in mobile business.
In addition, we are focused on developing innovative mobile services to actively cope with
the fast changing global internet industry. One successful case is ‘BAND’,
a closed network based SNS for friends, clubs, colleagues, and other acquaintances.
‘BAND’ has succeeded in differentiating its service from other open social network services
and is receiving great response from 25 million users.

We will grow through challenge and innovation to become a global internet company.
For 2014, with the goal of 500 million ‘LINE’ subscribers, we plan to focus on global expansion.
Our plans include proactively entering into Latin America and Europe to broaden user base and
to extend our business territory to e-commerce and digital music services.
‘BAND’ will also continue to expand its business scope in the world.
Global competition in the Internet business, especially mobile, is getting fierce. In such tough
environment, we at Naver will commit to make our utmost efforts to challenge,
innovate and to create a better world and a brighter future.

Thank you.

SANG-HUN KIM, CEO
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SANG-HUN KIM

OUTSIDE DIRECTORS

JONG-WOO LEE

President & CEO, Naver Corporation

Outside Director, Naver Corporation

Vice President of Legal Division, LG Corporation

Member of Audit Committee, Naver Corporation

Judge, Seoul District Criminal Court

Professor, Sookmyung Women’s University

LLM, Harvard University

Senior Researcher, Hyundai Information Technology

B.A & M.A in Laws, Seoul National University

Ph.D. in Computer Science, Seoul National University

HAE-JIN LEE

SU-UK KIM

Chairman of the Board, Naver Corporation

Outside Director, Naver Corporation

Founder and CEO, Navercom

Member of Audit Committee, Naver Corporation

Samsung SDS

Professor of Graduate School of Business,

M.S in Computer Science, KAIST

Seoul National University

B.S in Computer Science, Seoul National University

Director of Institute of Information & Operation Management,
Seoul National University
Outside Director, Hanwha General Insurance

JOON-HO LEE

Vice-Dean, Business School, Seoul National University

Member of Board of Directors, Naver Corporation

Ph.D. in Business Administration, Michigan State University

Professor of School of Computer Science and Engineering,
Soongsil University
M.S & Ph.D. in Computer Science, KAIST
B.S in Computer Engineering, Seoul National University

UI-JONG CHEONG
Outside Director, Naver Corporation
Member of Audit Committee, Naver Corporation

IN-JOON HWANG
Chief Financial Officer, Naver Corporation
Director of IB Business Division, Woori Investment & Securities
Woori Financial Group
MBA, New York University

Member of Financial Dispute Conciliation Committee,
Financial Supervisory Service
Lawyer, BAE, KIM & LEE LLC
Member of Economic Policy Consultation Committee,
Ministry of Strategy and Finance
School of Law, Seoul National University

B.A in Economics, Seoul National University

JUN-PYO HONG
Outside Director, Naver Corporation
Member of Audit Committee, Naver Corporation
Outside Director, Daewoong Pharmaceutical
Professor of Plastic Surgery, Asan Medical Center
M.D., Yonsei University College of Medicine
M.S in Medical Administration, USC

MUN-JA YI
Outside Director, Naver Corporation.
Executive Director, MSD Singapore
Director, MSD Korea Ltd.
B.A in Business Administration, Deree College
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Statement of Financial Position

(Units: Billions of KRW, %)

Condensed Statement of Financial Position

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

Total Assets

2,927.3

2,697.7

-7.8%

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

1,023.7

1,222.4

19.4%

Total Liabilities

Total Shareholders’ Equity

1,903.6

1,475.3

-22.5%

Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income

(Units: Billions of KRW, %)

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

1,798.7

2,312.0

28.5%

Search Ads

1,202.6

1,351.9

12.4%

Display Ads

346.3

323.5

-6.6%

Operating Revenue

Total Shareholders’ Equity

(Units: Billions of KRW, %)

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

2,641.5

2,260.1

-14.4%

656.5

645.5

-1.7%

1,984.9

1,614.6

-18.7%

Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income

(Units: Billions of KRW, %)

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

1,131.4

1,223.5

8.1%

Search Ads

925.0

999.1

8.0%

Display Ads

172.2

168.6

-2.1%

Operating Revenue

57.5

454.2

690.4%

192.3

182.3

-5.2%

1,277.5

1,787.8

40.0%

Labor Costs

446.7

492.7

Commission Expenses

432.5

661.6

Advertising Expenses

67.7

247.2

265.3%

Depreciation Expenses

94.6

121.4

28.3%

Communication Expenses

1.0

0.8

-18.4%

Communication Expenses

97.4

119.3

22.5%

Employee Benefits

20.7

18.1

-12.5%

Employee Benefits

52.0

56.5

8.7%

Other

23.6

25.6

8.5%

LINE
Other
Operating Expenses

34.2

55.8

63.2%

612.5

633.1

3.4%

Labor Costs

190.5

161.1

-15.5%

10.3%

Commission Expenses

319.9

375.4

17.4%

53.0%

Advertising Expenses

40.2

31.1

-22.6%

Depreciation Expenses

16.6

21.0

26.4%

Other
Operating Expenses

86.5

89.1

3.0%

Operating Income

518.9

590.4

13.8%

Operating Income

521.2

524.1

0.6%

Operating Margin (%)

45.9%

48.3%

2.4%p

Operating Margin (%)

29.0%

22.7%

-6.3%p

Profit Before Income Tax

552.4

542.7

-1.7%

Profit Before Income Tax

548.5

456.9

-16.7%

Net Income

414.0

437.3

5.6%

Net Income

400.7

325.8

-18.7%

Other

Our revenue will be reclassified into Ads, Contents, and Others from 2014 due to rapid growth of new businesses such as LINE
(2013: Ads 1,168.6 KRW billion, Contents 35.7 KRW billion, Others 19.3 KRW billion)

Our revenue will be reclassified into Ads, Contents, and Others from 2014 due to rapid growth of new businesses such as LINE
(2013: Ads 1,745.4 KRW billion, Contents 417.4 KRW billion, Others 149.2 KRW billion)

Operating Revenue

FY2013

Operating Expenses

FY2013

Operating Revenue

FY2013

Operating Expenses

FY2013

(Unit : Billions of KRW)

FY2012

(Unit : Billions of KRW)

FY2012

(Unit : Billions of KRW)

FY2012

(Unit : Billions of KRW)

FY2012

1,500

700

1,00

400

600
300

500

1,000

400

500

200

500

300
200

100

100
0

028

Search
ads

Display
ads

LINE

Other

0

Labor
Costs

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Commission
expenses

AdvertiDepreCommu- Employee
sing
ciation
nication benefits &
expenses expenses expenses
others

0

Search
ads

Display
ads

Other

0

Labor
costs

CommiAdvertiDepreCommussion
sing
ciation
nication
expenses expenses expenses expenses

Employee
benefits &
others

029

2013 AT A GLANCE

NAVER ANNUAL REPORT 2013

OPERATING AN INDEPENDENT
DATA CENTER ‘GAK’
Naver’s independent data center ‘Gak’ to safely store numerous
user-generated data was completed by utilizing cutting-edge
technologies. Naver became the first domestic internet
company to have its own data center.
In June 2013, Naver completed the construction and
embarked on the operation of Gak, its independent data center.
Gak, boasting the size of seven soccer fields, is located at the
edge of Mount Gubong in Dong-myeon of Chuncheon, Korea.
It consists of four buildings: the main monitor and control building
with three underground and two ground floors, and three buildings
with three ground floors each where servers are located.
Gak demonstrates the highest level of energy efficiency in Korea.
It also became the first data center in the world to earn the
‘Platinum’ grade, the highest level for Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED) certification. It is equipped with
a state-of-the-art system that safely stores data against any
external disasters and physical shocks.
Our data center Gak will serve as a valuable digital asset to deliver
numerous user data of our time to the myriads of generations
to come.

LAUNCHING AN UPGRADED
SEARCH SERVICE

ENHANCING INTERNET CONTENTS SERVICE
IN BOTH QUALITY AND QUANTITY

NAVER OPENS THE DOOR
TO A NEW ERA

Naver launched an upgraded search service that can
provide users with dimensionally related results through
a new search algorithm.

Naver is responding to the ever-changing needs of users
by introducing new services based on creative ideas
and continued innovation.

Existing search engines have been faced with limitations in that
only search results extracted from independent databases or
those based on simple relations were provided.
However, Naver has developed a new search algorithm to offer
dimensionally related information, enabling users to enjoy
searching on the web with an improved level of convenience.
Users are now able to search as if they are chatting with their
friends. It has been achieved through the followings: Our NCR
Mash-up technology to create a new relational database
by connecting and combining databases cumulated for the past
decade; and our Korean-processing technology that is second
to none. We also launched the ‘Share Your Feelings Search’
service to provide users with a new mobile communication channel, through which users are able to share events or
special occasions on the Naver mobile search window.

Naver is strongly committed to catering to user needs;
our map service offers information about the range of buildings
in proximity as well as relevant areas beyond the existing
dot-oriented local search service; we have also enhanced the
usability of N-Drive, a convenient file management service,
by introducing new features such as context search and album
editing that helps users to easily manage photos.
Other new services gaining positive feedbacks from users are
as follows: Korea’s first online dictionaries for Mongolian,
Indonesian, Portuguese and Georgian; expanded information on
ETF in the finance service; and the Automotive Engineering
Encyclopedia targeted at a few expert groups and students.
Especially, online dictionaries for Mongolian and Indonesian will
help increasing multicultural families and immigrant workers
adjust to life in Korea.

NHN was split into two companies to improve core
competency of each business unit- ‘Naver’ that engages
in global communication services and ‘NHN Entertainment’
that specializes in online and mobile games.
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To preemptively respond to the advances in mobile era
and to strengthen core competency of each business unit,
NHN implemented a split-off into two companies,
Naver and NHN Entertainment, on August 1, 2013.
With the split-off, Naver began to make a new challenge to
grow into a leading global internet company beyond the status as
Korea’s No.1 portal. To this end, we are focusing on expanding
our global communication services together with subsidiaries
including Naver Business Platform, LINE Corporation,
and Camp Mobile Corporation.
Meanwhile, NHN Entertainment plans to lead online and
mobile game markets by creating synergies with domestic
and overseas subsidiaries such as Hangame and the
game developer Orange Crew.
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LEADING THE MARKET
BY STRENGTHENING MOBILE CONTENTS

‘LINE’ JUMPED UP TO BE A LEADER IN THE
GLOBAL MOBILE MESSENGER MARKET

BAND has exceeded 2.5 billion in the number of monthly runs,
building a new success story in the global mobile service market.

LINE has successfully acquired 300 million subscribers in just
30 months since its launch, solidifying its position as
a leading global mobile messenger and platform provider.

Naver has achieved significant progress in the rising mobile
contents market by launching innovative and ideal contents.
In particular, our mobile community service ‘BAND’ has been
enjoying great popularity inside and outside of Korea,
surpassing 2.5 billion runs a month as of February 2014.
In addition, we have rolled out a variety of mobile contents that
have been receiving positive feedbacks: the Naver Calendar
application for iOS, NAVER Dictionary application equipped with
dictionaries for 13 different languages and Korean-Japanese
translation, and the Dodol Launcher that enables Android users to
freely decorate their smart device screens.
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The growth of LINE in the world has been very exceptional.
The number of LINE subscribers reached 100 million after just
19 months of launch and it took only six months to reach
200 million from 100 million, and four months to do 300 million
from 200 million. Currently, the total number of subscribers
has reached 370 million.
In addition, LINE has been reaffirming its status as a global
communication platform with the success of LINE-linked
applications; LINE Camera exceeded 70 million downloads,
and LINE Game that currently offers 55 games reached
cumulative 280 million downloads. The growth of LINE attests to
its value as a new communication tool recognized by global users.
We will continue to develop new features and improve service
quality in order to secure more users in the world.

2013 AT A GLANCE

SUPPORTING SMES AND SMALL BUSINESS
OWNERS FOR SHARED GROWTH

FULFILLING
OUR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Naver has been proactively supporting SMEs
and small business owners to secure their competitiveness.

As a corporate citizen, we have been dedicating our
best efforts to intensify activities that uphold public interests.

We established an organization participated by representatives
of SMEs and small business owners and relevant experts to help
them solve problems and search for constructive alternatives
in their online service businesses. We also signed an agreement
with the Small Enterprise Development Agency to display around
ten thousand pieces of information on Nadle Stores on Naver
Comprehensive Search and Naver Map for their business
promotion. The investment in the ‘Future Creation Fund’ will offer
business opportunities to venture companies that have difficulties
in funding despite innovative ideas and techniques.

Naver and Korea Broadcasting Service concluded an agreement
to solidify cooperation in generating contents that benefit public
interests, including fostering global software talents, building
a foundation for disaster broadcasting and developments in media
industry, and enhancing the public value of internet services and
media contents. In addition, we raised KRW 50 billion for the
‘Naver Culture Contents Fund’ to benefit domestic digital content
creators and improve content qualities.
Within our head office, we built a space where anyone can
access to the web and use information in an equitable manner
regardless of one’s disability status, in order to raise awareness
of its importance. Furthermore, the Naver Culture Foundation
launched the ‘Hello! Artist’ through Naver Cast for making
a communication channel between the public and enthusiastic
artists.

033

NAVER ANNUAL REPORT 2013

SERVICE
OVERVIEW

034

SERVICE OVERVIEW

SERVICE
OVERVIEW

035

NAVER ANNUAL REPORT 2013

SERVICE
OVERVIEW

034

SERVICE OVERVIEW

SERVICE
OVERVIEW

035

NAVER / NAVER MOBILE

NAVER ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Korea’s No.1 internet search portal

Naver service optimized for mobile devices

www.naver.com

m.naver.com

Naver is Korea’s No.1 internet search portal where around 16 million users visit every day.
It provides comprehensive search services including Knowledge-iN, Blogs, Cafés, News,
Professional Databases, Images and others to be seen by users at a glance.
Naver will continue to enhance search quality and user convenience for taking the initiative
in sharing information and knowledge.

Naver has been proactively responding to rapid changes in the mobile environment.
Based on our understanding of mobile users’ needs, we have launched a number of competitive
mobile services. Search, Knowledge-iN Expert’s Answer service, Café, and News have been
optimized to mobile environment, and various applications such as Naver Calendar
and Naver Address help mobile users experience new internet environments on their mobile devices.

NAVER

NAVER MOBILE

As of December 2013

Number of subscribers

37 million
Number of daily unique visitors

16 million
Number of daily page views

1 billion
SEARCH
As of December 2013

Number of daily unique visitors

11 million

Unwavering efforts to improve user convenience
Naver has been focusing on combining search technologies developed over the past decade to
come up with a new human-friendly search engine. As a result, in 2013, we launched a new search
service that could provide additionally combined information as well as general information through
analyzing relevant databases. Our search technique also took a step forward from text to voice base,
from keyword to dialogue type centered on natural languages, and from single content to
dimensionally related information. This progress laid a foundation for our search service to evolve
toward the level that understands human languages better.
Meeting diverse user needs by expanding professional databases
Naver strives to provide knowledge and information on a variety of professional areas ranging from
humanities to fashion and beauty. Our professional database services include Naver Encyclopedia
that offers information from more than one thousand dictionaries in cooperation with around
250 publishing companies and public institutes, Junior Encyclopedia that contains illustration-based
information for children, Encyclopedia of Automobile Engineering with in-depth information on
automobiles, and Expert Reports to provide information on diverse areas of study. We will continue to
shore up the quality of our professional database services.
Expanding online dictionary service
Naver Dictionary has been upgraded under the goal of facilitating communication of people around
the world. It covers a total of 19 different languages by adding 6 languages in December 2013.
Considering basic daily conversation services, the number of languages covered goes up to 21.
In particular, we have introduced dictionaries for languages with relatively lower demand in
a format that was optimized to the web, which has been highly recognized by expert groups.
We will expand our online dictionary service by developing easy-to-use dictionaries not only
for domestic users but also for international users.

As of December 2013

Number of monthly unique visitors

37 million

Number of monthly page views

39 billion

Unique mobile visitors to PC

88 %

Mobile-specific web services
Naver Mobile has been consistently improving the quality of its search service to provide users
with the most optimal search results on the mobile environment.
As a result, features such as ‘Personalized Auto-Complete,’ ‘Mobile Auto-Complete Answer
Search’ and ’Hairstyle Search’ are currently offered. New services have been continuously launched
to satisfy diverse needs of mobile users in addition to the conventional search service such as
the ‘Exclamation Mark Search’ and ‘Fan Rank Search’. ‘Naver Relax,’ ‘Naver Automobile’
and ‘Chinese Wordbook’ services have also been enjoying large popularity.
Going forward, Naver will continue to reflect the usage pattern of mobile users to enhance
the level of convenience and efficiency of mobile-specific web services.
Various mobile application services
Naver Mobile has been making unwavering efforts to enrich the mobile lives of users by launching
various applications. ‘Naver Calendar’ has continuously received love from users thanks to high
convenience and efficient functions and finally recorded first place in user and cumulative search
records among mobile calendar sector.
Especially, ‘Naver Calendar’ for iOS was ranked the top of both the free applications chart and
productivity chart in App Store, with great feedback from iOS users. We also launched a series of
mobile services such as ‘Naver Address’ that enables users to easily edit and back up their
address book, ‘Naver Dictionary,’ and ‘Smart Housekeeping Book.’

Number of daily page views

247 million
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Making daily lives more convenient
Naver is making life richer and more convenient with new and innovative services.
They include ‘Naver Map’ which contains various location services such as Museum View, Route Search,
Public Transportation Search, and Local Search; ‘Naver Software’ which enables users to download
a variety of software for their desktops and laptops; ‘Naver Form’ to assist users with statistical analysis
and let them share results with others; and ‘Naver Works’ to help companies to develop internal system
without excessive cost.

SERVICE OVERVIEW

NAVER’S MAJOR MOBILE SERVICES
Naver Webtoon

Naver offers the ‘Naver Webtoon’ service suitable for mobile devices.

Naver Music

Various genres of music are provided through our ‘Naver Music Mobile’.

Naver Map

Local search, route search, real-time bus schedule and traffic condition
can be searched simultaneously through smart phones.
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LINE
As of February 2014

A mobile messenger beloved by users around the globe

Number of subscribers

line.naver.jp/ko

370 million

LINE is a new communication messenger service that provides users with free messaging
and voice call services without any restrictions on time and place.
It has been growing into the largest global communication messenger through equipping with
newly-developed features and improving service quality.
Now with various linked applications and services, it has become not just a mobile messenger,
but a global mobile platform. Looking ahead, we will continue to make efforts in a various
way in order to enrich the daily digital lives of users worldwide.

Number of countries

231

#1 downloaded app countries
(App Annie)

52
Grossing rank in worldwide iOS
and GooglePlay outside of Games
(App Annie)

LINE Global Subscribers
( Unit: Millions )

330

2013

2012

150

1 st

Strengthened global position
Our global mobile messenger LINE is used by around 370 million users in more than 230 countries
worldwide as of February 2014. Since its introduction, the pace of growth has been accelerating;
the number of subscribers surpassed 100 million within 19 months, 200 million within another
6 months, and 300 million in another 4 months. Especially, it was ranked first in the number of
downloads in many countries not only in Asia such as Japan, Taiwan, Thailand and Indonesia,
but also in Spain, India and South American countries such as Mexico.
According to the list of successful products released by Nikkei Marketing Journal, a magazine
specializing in the distribution industry, LINE ranked third in Western Japan area that covers Osaka
and did second nationwide, securing the status as the most popular mobile platform in Japan.
Going forward, we plan to strengthen global marketing activities in key areas in order to expand
subscribers base around the world including Japan.
Wide array of features and linked services
LINE offers a large number of free-of-charge features such as one-on-one chat, voice call, video call,
group chat, and image- and video-sharing via mobile devices and PCs. LINE provides a variety of
contents to help worldwide users enjoy a fun and convenient digital environment via mobile devices
as well as serving as a simple messenger. Particularly, game service demonstrated the potential as
a mobile game platform by recording substantial number of downloads in major regions including
Japan and Taiwan. Also, the official LINE application, ‘LINE Camera,’ recorded 70 million downloads
within 10 months of launching and reached first place in 27 countries’ App Store and 19 countries
Google Play Store including Asian and South American countries. We plan to build and solidify
LINE’s position as a global mobile platform by continuously delivering new services such as
‘LINE Commerce’ and ‘Line Music.’

LINE SERVICE
LINE Stickers

More than 500 free stickers and paid stickers with popular characters

Free Video/ Voice Calls

Free video and voice call services on smart phones and PCs

LINE Games

Playing games with friends by using LINE accounts

LINE for PCs

Available in multi-devices (PC, Mobile and Tablets)

Multimedia Chat

Sharing messages, photos, current location, videos and voice messages

My Home/Timeline

A simple and easy way of posting memorable moments to share with friends

Making Friends Easily

Adding new friends by using simple features like ‘LINE ID’, ‘QR Code’,
and ‘Shake it’

Group Chat

Creating group chatting rooms with friends to keep in touch with
everyone at the same time

LINE FAMILY BRANDS
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LINE PLAY

Social network service to decorate own avatars and rooms
and play games with friends

LINE Mall

Open mobile market to let users buy and sell goods (Japan only)

LINE Camera

More than 1,000 kinds of stamps and 100 photo frames

LINE Tools

Useful tools such as ruler, compass, mirror, flashlight, calculator, etc.

LINE Vaccine

Scanning/checking device conditions and removing virus
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A mobile community for closed networks

Customized global yellow pages

band.naver.com

line.whoscall.com

As of February 2014
Launched

Aug. 2012
Number of subscribers

25 million
Number of Bands

9 million

As of February 2014

BAND is an acquaintance-based social network service that combines mobile messaging
and cafe functions, which is available on both PC and mobile platforms. It is currently used by
various groups including communities, alumni, friends and family. Since its introduction
in August 2012, the number of subscribers has been rapidly increasing to reach 25 million.
This service enjoys wide popularity in oversea markets as well, securing more than 5 million overseas
subscribers. It currently provides a total of 10 different languages including English, Japanese
and Spanish, and we will continue to expand the subscribers base in overseas markets going forward.
BAND has been continuously making efforts to heighten subscriber satisfaction through numerous
features including cover page decoration, mobile-specific photo album and bulletin board,
linkage with Naver Address, calendar sharing and theme editing.
In addition, we launched sticker shop and gift shop in 2013, and are planning to expand
the services with user connected games and display advertisement, which are anticipated to
play an increasing role in revenue growth.

Launched

Jul. 2012
Number of downloads

10 million

LINE whoscall is a service that identifies caller IDs and bans spams, utilizing a database of
more than 600 million phone number information collected around the globe.
Since its introduction in July 2012, it has exceeded 10 million downloads worldwide and was
also selected as the ‘Best Application of the Year’ in 2013 on Google Play stores of
eight countries including Taiwan, Hong Kong, Indonesia and Malaysia.

Number of languages

13

Utility application service
As of February 2014
Launched

Mar. 2013

Number of downloads – Launcher

5 million

Number of downloads – Series

dodol.com

Dodol Launcher, boasting more than 5 million downloads since the launch in March 2013,
has been fortifying its position as the leading phone decoration application.
It has provided over 140 different free system themes and added convenient functions such as
Quick Switch, Memory Cleaner, and Search by Initial Consonant, which has made
a great appeal to users. As part of the Dodol Series, we have also rolled out Dodol Cover,
Dodol Pop, Dodol Calendar and Dodol Searcher that have also been garnering positive feedbacks.
We will encourage content creators and application developers for participation as well as
release English and Japanese packs, in an effort to expand the service globally.

30 million

040

SERVICE OVERVIEW

Contents service that encourages
user participation

Comprehensive web portal service in Japan
livedoor.com

matome.naver.jp

Matome, as the modified version of Korea’s Knowledge-iN service,
is a kind of online community services. It demonstrates about
60 million users monthly. It is a web–space where a user posts
about a certain topic and other users responds and share
their thoughts.
Matome lets users share opinions and knowledge on common
interest in one webpage instead of searching numerous webpages
containing the relevant key words.

Livedoor, Japan’s comprehensive portal site, offers users
a variety of blogs, media, and web services, as well as advertising
on both PC and mobile platforms. Two of its most popular
services are Livedoor News and Livedoor Blog. Livedoor mobile
service also enjoys rapid growth with a monthly page view of
100 million. In addition, Livedoor is involved in IT infrastructure
business, including data centers and network operations.
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SEARCH ADVERTISING
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Revenue

Naver is leading the domestic search ads market backed by advanced search quality.
Our growth in the mobile search ads remains robust as well due to endeavors to expand market share.
Naver demonstrates the excellence in search engine, high capability as Korea’s No.1 search portal,
and high-efficiency advertising products, which boosts growth in search ads business.
In 2013, we achieved remarkable growth in mobile search ads, clicks on mobile ads,
and the number of registered mobile advertisers.
As a result, our revenue increased 12.4% year-on-year to KRW 1.4 trillion.

Based on K-IFRS consolidated
financial statements
(Unit: Billions of KRW)

1,351.9

Attracting more advertisers and efforts to revitalize advertising industry
Naver continued solid growth in search advertising sales despite sluggish domestic economy and advertising
industry. This was driven by search quality improvement to match with ads, upgraded advertising products to
ensure advertisers’ return on investment, and attraction of more advertisers thanks to marketing power of
Naver Business Platform. We have also strengthened cooperation with advertising agencies and affiliated
business partners to ensure qualitative growth of the online advertising market. In 2014, we will continue to put
priority on improving search quality and securing advertisers to reinforce the profitability of search ads,
thereby sustaining stable growth.

1,202.6

Improving user satisfaction and launching mobile optimized products
In response of rapid growth in mobile ads market, Naver is focusing on developing products optimized to
mobile environment beyond text-based advertising User Interface. The ‘Mobile Click Choice Plus’ launched in
July 2013 has been receiving positive feedbacks due to the provision of UIs optimized to each business
and a variety of information. This product currently targeting keywords such as pensions and baby photos
and interiors is positively accepted by users and advertisers.
In September 2013, we launched the ‘Mobile Brand Search’ service to support mobile brand marketing of
advertisers. In addition, we improved mobile advertising UI for most frequently used keywords including credit
card by each business category and enhanced supports to maximize advertising efficiency for advertisers.
As a result, the number of clicks on mobile ads increased and the proportion of mobile ads in total revenue
expanded up to 18% in 2013. We will consistently develop UIs for mobile search advertising in order to deliver
improved advertising efficiency and user satisfaction, thereby strengthening profitability.
Increasing popularity of Matome, the user-generated contents service in Japan
Matome, a contents service in Japan that encourages the participation of users such as the Wikipedia,
has been experiencing an increasing level of popularity in the Japanese market.
Since March 2013, Yahoo Japan has started to include the contents of Matome in their search results,
generating more user participations and feedbacks. Thanks to the success of Matome, the share of overseas
markets in terms of search ads revenue increased. Naver will strive to engage more users and diversify contents.

Number of Advertisers
(Unit: Thousands)

Mobile Portion
(Unit: %)

318

FY2013
FY2012

2012
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272

18

FY2013
FY2012

11

2013
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Revenue

Naver is committed to maximizing advertising efficiency through developing diversified and
sophisticated ad products as well as proactively responding to rapidly-changing mobile environment.
In 2013, we continued to operate a range of display ads in online and mobile, strengthening
user convenience and ad performance for advertisers.
Thanks to the rise in the number of major advertisers and the share of mobile advertising,
we recorded revenue of KRW 323.5 billion in display ads in 2013.
Especially, mobile advertising has been maintaining the trend of rapid quarterly growth.
In 2014, revenue is expected to grow thanks to special events such as the Winter Olympics,
FIFA World Cup, Local Council Elections and Asian Games.

Based on K-IFRS consolidated
financial statements
(Unit: Billions of KRW)

346.3

323.5

Development of premium display ad products
Display ads business has been enjoying continuous growth backed by efforts to upgrade products and increase
the number of advertisers based on our strong leadership as Korea’s No.1 portal website.
We introduced advanced display ad products such as ‘Time Board’ that allows advertisers to have their ads
placed exclusively for an hour on the Naver’s front page and ‘Rolling Board’ that enables various targeting ads.
The company also fortified its competency by harnessing new techniques such as rich media ad aimed
at strengthening advertisement attention and user participation. Our sponsorship ads have gained popularity
by creating opportunities for advertisers to announce their brands through our news and sports service pages,
especially during special events.
Mobile-optimized advertising
Naver provides advertisers with display ad products optimized to mobile devices and services.
Depending on the goal and budget of the advertiser, mobile display ads can be exposed to not only the main
homepage, news, sports and Knowledge-iN pages of Naver Mobile but also external mobile web services
and popular applications affiliated with Naver. Mobile rich media ads ensure almost double effectiveness
compared to ordinary banner ads through enabling interaction with users and utilization of multimedia contents.
Newly-launched brand search ad product targeting large brand advertisers has also been receiving positive
feedbacks. Naver will come up with a wide array of differentiated ad products with high efficiency to meet
expanding mobile market and secure solid growth foundation.

Mobile Portion
(Unit: %)

4.3

FY2013
FY2012

2012
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LINE has been enjoying enormous popularity in major countries such as Japan, Taiwan
and Thailand since its introduction in June 2011. It has grown into a global mobile messenger as
attested by the number of users exceeding 370 million as of February 2014. LINE’s growth has been
led by robust sales of games and stickers as well as the rapid growth of ads segment.
We are striving to diversify revenue sources by launching new services spanning music, shopping
and advertising. Going forward, we plan to expand our reach into Southeast Asia, Europe
and the United States and increase profitability by continuously providing new contents.

370

(Unit: Millions)

2014. 01

Game
LINE Game has presented a variety of hit games since the launch of ‘LINE Birzzle’ in July 2012.
It currently services a total of 55 games such as ‘LINE POP,’ ‘LINE Bubble,’ ‘LINE Wind Runner’ and ‘LINE Pokopang’
with a proactive approach to the mobile game market. Particularly, we have focused on servicing local languages
and sourcing local developers’ games since the second half of 2013 for the expansion of global users.
LINE plans to continuously provide quality game contents to ensure revenue growth in the world.

330

2013. 11

300

Sticker
Stickers that help express even the most delicate feelings have reaped great success in Japan, having a decisive
impact on the popularity of LINE. Besides our own LINE characters, we have been providing stickers that reflect
the characteristics of each market through special events and adopting global characters by affiliating with
companies such as Disney. We will accelerate revenue growth in the sticker segment by continuously adopting
popular characters preferred by overseas LINE subscribers for our stickers.

/ 2014. 02

LINE Global Subscribers

Others
Through services such as LINE Q, LINE Manga, LINE News and LINE Music, we offer useful and entertaining
contents to subscribers. LINE Webstore and LINE Shopping/Mall enable e-commerce of abundant goods
and services with upgraded convenience. Going forward, we plan to raise profitability
by launching a range of contents through LINE.
2013. 09

250

Subscribers by Country
(Unit: Millions, As of February 2014)

50

JAPAN

22

THAILAND
2013. 05

17

TAIWAN

165

2013. 03

134
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SPAIN

16

INDIA

16

KOREA

10

MEXICO

10

USA

10

MALAYSIA

10
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Other business sector includes mobile SNS service BAND, Naver Real Estate, Naver Music,
N Store, and IT infrastructure services, which has achieved stable growth in revenue and profit.
In 2013, Naver realized KRW 182.3 million in revenue from other business sector.
Securing potential growth engines
Naver has been expanding share in the mobile market by timely introducing a number of services. BAND, the acquaintance-based mobile social network service, has achieved around 25 million
downloads, of which more than 5 million came from overseas subscribers in particular. The company
also secured diverse growth engines by acquiring Dodol Launcher and Whoscall and is planning the
overseas entry of such products. Looking ahead, Naver will make unwavering efforts to foray into
overseas markets to lay the foundation for future growth

Revenue

Improving service quality existing contents
Naver is committed to enhancing service quality of existing contents for real estate, music, VOD,
books, and community items. ‘Naver Music’ and ‘Naver TV’ have been upgraded in terms of diversified contents and improved user convenience, resulting in high satisfaction. The integrated digital
contents platform ‘N-Store’ that was launched in 2012 has been contributing to setting up a sound
ecosystem where diverse contents are continuously distributed through PC and mobile devices.
We will continue to expand and reinforce our contents to secure growth potential.

Based on K-IFRS consolidated
financial statements
(Unit: Billions of KRW)

2013

182.3

Data center to vouch for stable services
Naver’s independent data center ‘Gak,’ which was established in June 2013 in Chuncheon,
is a state-of-the-art data storage center where data is protected safely and securely
from external disaster and physical shock. Data generated from our services such as Knowledge-iN,
Naver Blog, and LINE are being safely stored. The data center will serve as a basis on which the
company is able to provide advanced services in a stable manner.
Offering IT services based on advanced technologies
Naver offers a wide range of IT-related services in Korea and Japan such as IT infrastructure
consulting, Internet Data Center and the development of network, storage, security and disaster
recovery systems, which are managed through Naver Business Platform and DataHotel Co., Ltd.
We expect revenue growth in IT services segment as well.

192.3

2012
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WE GROW TOGETHER WITH ENTREPRENEURS.

GROWING TOGETHER WITH NAVER
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Naver believes innovation and cooperation are
the most important fundamentals to create wider
and better spaces on the internet. We also keep
in mind more than 7 million small business owners
around us are stepping stones for Korean
economic development. Students who are being
immersed in developing software in their schools
will become talents to build a new future of Naver,
and a lot of creative artists will contribute to
enriching the contents ecosystem in the future.
Business partners are very valuable assets for
Naver as it has grown through collaborating with
them and been benefiting from rich internet
ecosystem of the nation. We are always in search
for ways to grow together with business partners
to fulfill our social responsibility. Under the belief
that a healthy ecosystem is the competitiveness
of Naver, we aspire to build a future where we grow
together with entrepreneurs, small business
owners, developers and creators.
Naver will continue to bring forth hope
in the name of co-prosperity.
SUSTAINABILITY

Naver Venture Fund
Through the Naver Venture Fund, we provide initial capital to
young entrepreneurs who find difficulties in starting up a new
business despite their innovative ideas and enthusiasm.
Since the announcement of a plan to raise a total of KRW 50 billion
for venture fund in July 2013, Naver has invested in the ‘Future
Creation Fund’ created by the Small and Medium Business
Administration and the ‘Pacemaker Fund’ created by Bon Angels
Venture Partners, a private venture fund operator. As such, we
have been continuously expanding our financial support to
business startups. With the Naver Venture Fund as the first step,
we will strive to create a virtuous cycle in the venture ecosystem
and nurture companies in the fledgling stage.
Startup Alliance
The Startup Alliance is an organization to develop and cultivate
business startups which are fundamentals of the Creative
Economy, and systematically support them to enter overseas
markets. The Startup Alliance was launched in July 2013 and
participated by more than 47 bodies such as leading internet
companies including Naver, the Ministry of Science, ICT and Future
Planning, various internet-related associations, venture incubators
and venture capitals. Naver first chaired the organization and plans
to provide entrepreneurs with a financial support amounting to
KRW 10 billion over a period of five years.

WE GROW TOGETHER WITH SMALL BUSINESS OWNERS.

Small Business Owners’ Hope Foundation
The ‘Small Business Owners’ Hope Foundation’ was established
to provide substantial supports to small business owners who are
fundamental to the national economy under the goal of
co-prosperity and cooperation with them. Naver contributed
amounting to KRW 50 billion to the foundation and it will be
engaged in helping small business owners facilitate their online
marketing activities, developing cooperative projects between
conventional and internet-based businesses, and conducting
research and studies for the improvement of their business
conditions. The foundation will play a pivotal role for representing
Naver’s commitment to shared growth and co-prosperity with
small business owners.
Open Platforms for Co-prosperity
To help business partners activate their contents business in each
field, Naver has suspended certain services with the same kinds of
contents of small internet enterprises and focused on distributing
their contents. To this end, we opened our key platforms including
Wingspoon, Wingbus, Wannabe, Naver Kitchen, Good Morning
Alarm application and Naver Coupon. Especially, we determined
to stop our own real estate offerings information service on the
Naver Real Estate platform and adopt that of real estate agencies,
which was highly welcomed by the industry.
CO – PROSPERITY

055

SUSTAINABILITY CO – PROSPERITY

NAVER ANNUAL REPORT 2013

WE GROW TOGETHER WITH DEVELOPERS.

D2 Program
The ‘D2 Program’ was prepared to encourage developers to
create valuable technology contents and disseminate those to
other developers, through which they are able to participate in
developing and sharing open sources. In addition, Naver has
been continuously coming up with a variety of programs targeting
at achieving co-prosperity with developers, which include the
DEVIEW, an exemplary conference of developers in Korea,
D2 FEST to create open sources for 90 days by capable
developers, OPEN SEMINAR and Hello World to share the
expertise of Naver’s developers, and XE (Express Engine) to
develop open sources.
NHN NEXT
The ‘NHN NEXT’ is an educational institute established by
Naver in 2013 in order to foster talents in the field of software
development. This institute will complete an optimized
multidisciplinary curriculum and field-centered education systems,
with which it aims to become a top class educational institute
for software development and contribute to the community.
Over the next decade, we will invest a total of KRW 100 billion to
build a space where students are able to pursue their
dreams without concerns.

WE GROW TOGETHER WITH CREATORS.

Naver Culture Fund
The ‘Naver Culture Fund’ was made to build a desirable
environment for creativity by providing systematic supports
for content creations and continuously investing in public
contents. We concluded an agreement with the Ministry of Culture,
Sports and Tourism to invest a total of KRW 50 billion to provide
supports for the creation of story contents, production of
knowledge contents, contents digitization, and production and
marketing of small content companies. We have also funded KRW
10 billion in the Korea Content Financial Cooperative and been
sponsoring the ‘Inside and Outside of Culture’, an open lecture
given by Korea’s leading intellectuals and scholars.
Globalization of cartoons
Naver supports the advance of Korean cartoon contents to the
global stage. We have launched the Cartoon Development
Committee to promote overseas expansion of Korean cartoons
and participated in the Frankfurt Book Fair, a world-class book and
media fair. In particular, at the fair, we set up the webtoon
exhibition hall which was visited by a lot of online platform
operators such as Finnish telecommunication companies and
Belgian online business companies as well as global publishers
from France, Germany, Taiwan and Africa, and touted as a success
by fans from around the world. Moreover, the Page Profit Sharing
system has presented a new revenue model for webtoon artists.
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PRESERVING EARTH THROUGH ONLINE

A STEP TAKEN BY NAVER TO MAKE
THE WORLD A BETTER PLACE

058

For more than ten years, Naver has engaged in
connecting people and leading services and
platforms to broaden and share knowledge in
Korea where internet service has been faster and
wider than any other country in the world. Through
our businesses, we have been striving to provide
more people with increased access to
imaginations, dreams, cultures, arts and quality
knowledge that enrich human life.
We have focused on communicating with our
neighbors, sharing information and knowledge,
building a web environment easily accessible to
everyone, and carrying out both online and offline
activities to protect the environment.
There are many things that Naver can do today
and will have to do tomorrow. In that sense, we
will continue making strides toward a better world
and continually work hard to help our communities
grow in a healthier and more compassionate way.

SUSTAINABILITY

Charitable Donations by Global Users through LINE
Our global mobile messenger LINE created an opportunity for
global users to support the Philippines hit by Typhoon Haiyan
in November, 2013. A set of donation stickers “Pray for the Philippines” was launched through LINE and provided to the subscribers
in the Philippines for free and sold at USD 0.99 in other countries.
The gross proceeds except for payment fees were donated to the
Philippine Red Cross to help the victims and for rehabilitation.
A total of JPY 58,773,190 or KRW 600 million was raised through
the campaign for one and half a month. LINE will continue to play
a role as a global platform to fulfill its social responsibility.
Happybean’s Planning & Issue Campaign
Happybean’s ‘Planning & Issue Campaign’ is to provide bloggers,
webtoon artists, film studios, organizations, and companies with
opportunities to come together and discuss a topic related to
public interest. This campaign was prepared to develop
participatory public contents and stir up public issues, and started
in March 2013 with the topic ‘Earth Hour’ to turn off the light
around the world. Since then, a lot of social topics familiar to us
have been treated, which include refugees around us, dosshouses
that need electric pads, unenviable national holidays for Korean
housewives, and common stereotypes against women.
Participants in the campaign are speaking up via their writings,
drawings, videos and proposals for donation events.
This campaign will give us moment to look around and think
together in these bustling times.
Community for Sharing That Makes Positive Changes
to the World
Happybean has cooperated with other donation groups to lead
more people to donations. The more we share our thoughts
with others and participate in donations with them, the more the
world becomes happy. Through the sharing community platform,
Happybean is introducing a new lively culture for sharing.
Naver’s ‘Search for Happiness’,Bringing Happiness
through Search
Naver’s ‘Search for Happiness’ is a new-concept public service
to donate only by web search. If a user searches public keywords
such as ‘support for the elderly living alone,’ the number of total
searches is matched with donation amounts. It is a service that
has never been tried before. This service was conducted twice
with the target of raising KRW 100 million each time, in which 2
million users participated, and it ranked the top ten on real-time
hot search words list. Donations raised through this new service
were delivered to 73 organizations through Happybean. Naver’s
‘Search for Happiness’ will open a new prospect in the field of
social contribution.

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION
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GAK, NAVER’S ECO-FRIENDLY DATA CENTER

RIGHT APPROACH TO THE ENVIRONMENT

We acknowledge the importance of
environment and therefore, the environment
comes first in our business practices.
Our approach to environmental stewardship is
making our buildings eco-friendly and
conducting campaigns to encourage employees
to have eco-friendly work habits. In 2013,
we also opened a data center called Gak
equipped with a world-class eco-friendly system.

Data Center with Cutting-edge Cooling System
Our new data center is the space to safely store numerous
digital data running through Naver and LINE created by tens of
millions of people in servers. All servers must operate without
a moment of hesitation in order to safeguard the data actively
processed in the internet for 24/7 throughout the year, but emits
immense heat in the process. Naver’s eco-friendly data center
project started with a decade-long study on the trend of Korea’s
temperature. The study suggested Mount Gubong in Chuncheon
is well suited to site the center since it has a low annual average
temperature and stair-like foundation allows cool air to flow
into the center.
Obtained the ‘Platinum’ Certification for Eco-friendly Buildings
A server room’s temperature can reach up to 50 degrees
Celsius. In consideration of the temperature, we developed our
own servers that are resistant to high temperature, thereby
minimizing the waste of electricity. We also developed racks that
closely place hundreds of servers to promote space efficiency.
The center is also designed in such a way to ensure that we make
ice from cost-effective night electricity and then use it during the
day. Hot air emitted after cooling off the servers is used in growing
green house plants in the data center or clear snow from the roads
during winter.
Water discharged after washing hands is saved to be used in
toilets while rainwater is used as cooling water or firefighting
purpose. Sedum, the plant covering the exterior of the building,
helps lower indoor temperature. We also drive electric vehicles
in the center to reduce carbon emissions. In addition, use of LED
lighting and renewable energy sources such as solar energy and
wind power enables us to minimize energy consumption. As a
result, our data center was recognized by LEED, an international
green building certificate system, with an honor of Platinum grade
as we earned the highest score of 95 points.
Recording Korea by Making the Most of the Environment as It Is
Jangkyunggak is a tower that houses the Tripitaka Koreana.
Naver’s data center ‘Gak’ was named from the last letter of the
tower under the belief that Gak has the mission to safely store data
generated by tens of millions of people for our tomorrow.
Naver firmly believes that one of the best ways for data storage is
to leverage the benefits of the surrounding environment.
In addition, the eco-friendly data center will serve as a good
example to show that the earth and humans can prosper together.
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INTERNAL ENVIRONMENTAL CAMPAIGNS

Green Factory, a Building that Resembles the Nature
Green Factory, Naver’s office building, means a green factory
producing knowledge. We had eco-friendly construction elements
designed in the building interior and sought ways and conducted
studies to enhance energy efficiency from the construction.
As a result, a wide variety of eco-friendly ideas have been put into
practice at every corner of the building. The ideas include ice
thermal storage system utilizing ice, wastewater reuse system,
and the use of reusable partitions for realignment of office spaces.
Going Green in Everyday Life
Naver carries out environmental practices with the voluntary
participation and support of employees. It is focused on
preserving the environment by making every day choices that
have a positive impact on the environment such as using
coffee mug instead of disposable paper cups, saving water,
eco-friendly idea contest, and using environmental themes
for the PC wallpapers.

062

SUSTAINABILITY

ENVIRONMENT

063

SUSTAINABILITY ETHICAL MANAGEMENT

NAVER ANNUAL REPORT 2013

BECOMING THE MOST RESPECTED AND TRUSTED
CORPORATION THROUGH PRACTICES OF BUSINESS ETHICS

Establishment and Practice of Business Ethics
Naver set business ethical guidelines that incorporate the
behaviors and values we expect our employees to meet.
It includes modesty, sense of ownership, creativity and innovation,
challenge and passion, prevention of conflicts with the company,
creation of healthy corporate culture. All our employees will strictly
comply with the guidelines to gain trust and love from the society.
Creation of Ethical Value
Naver established a set of standards and guidelines and operates
a counseling center for ethical management to govern its
ethical business practices such as its business regulations,
fair competition, and purchase of company shares by its
employees. We also carry out a number of ethics programs on
a regular basis and operate the ‘With U’, the sexual harassment
counseling center, to help employees remain aware of the need to
be open, honest, and ethical both inside and outside their
workplace.

HONEST AND TRANSPARENT MANAGEMENT
TO BUILD A SOUND COMPANY

Fair and Transparent Trade with Business Partners
Our transactions with business partners are being conducted
in a fair, open, honest, and transparent manner through the Fair
Trade Compliance Program started in 2007. This program include
appointing the Compliance Officer, providing employees with
education and training for fair transaction, delivering compliance
guidebook, operating a counseling center and hot-line for
employees and outsiders, and monitoring activities.

Naver has been practicing honest and
transparent management to fulfill its responsibility
as a corporate citizen. We have set up a code of
ethics and methodical ethical management
system, under which all employees faithfully
comply with business ethics. This ensures that
Naver will be respected and trusted by every
stakeholder through honest and transparent
management.

NAVER’S BUSINESS ETHICS
RESPECT AND A SENSE OF OWNERSHIP
Naver’s employees are expected to respect values what the
company aims for and never forget that they are the front-line faces
of the company.

RESPECT
AND A SENSE
OF
OWNERSHIP

CHALLENGE
AND
PASSION

CREATIVE
AND
INNOVATION

NAVER’S
CORE VALUES

AVOIDING
BEHAVIORS THAT
IMPACT NEGATIVELY
ON THE
COMPANY
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SUSTAINABILITY

DEVELOPING
A HEALTHY
CORPORATE
CULTURE

CREATIVITY AND INNOVATION
Naver’s employees should never be satisfied with the status quo.
They must have a friendly and helpful attitude, and provide our customers
with highest-quality services.
CHALLENGE AND PASSION
Naver’s employees should adhere to the belief that
“people who do not face challenges gain nothing.”
This means that they should always be willing to take on new challenges.
AVOIDING BEHAVIORS THAT IMPACT NEGATIVELY ON THE COMPANY
Naver’s employees must know where to draw the line between public
and private matters in their work. They should not do anything outside the
workplace that might damage the company.
DEVELOPING A HEALTHY CORPORATE CULTURE
Naver’s employees must respect the rights of others and recognize
the value of honesty and trust. Their words and actions must not hurt or
offend their fellow workers, and they must not discriminate against
them in any way.

ETHICAL MANAGEMENT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Disclaimer
Our ‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis’ contains information
about not only Naver’s current operating performances and
financial conditions but also future goals and strategies in
accordance with a prospect of the domestic economy and internet
industry. Readers and potential investors should be aware that
statements regarding Naver’s operating environment and market
outlook can be affected significantly by unforeseeable future
events. Therefore, the company’s future business results and
performances may differ substantively from those described
herein.
In addition, Naver does not guarantee either the accuracy or
the completeness of the information given below. Statements
concerning the company’s past achievements and future
prospects must not be construed as constituting definite promises
or guarantees, and Naver is under no obligation to publish or
otherwise provide additional information regarding unforeseen
future events.

I. INTRODUCTION
Naver’s consolidated financial statements have been made by
applying the Korean International Financial Reporting Standard
since fiscal year 2011 in compliance with the Article 7-2 of the
Act on External Audits of Stock Companies. The company also
prepared its non-consolidated financial statements using the
same method. Our ‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis’ was
prepared on a consolidated basis, unless stated otherwise.
Meanwhile, data of the previous year on consolidated
comprehensive income statements were revised due to the
spinoff of Hangame business in 2013. The LINE game IP has
been separated from Naver in line with the split-off of NHN
Entertainment. Moreover, the games and cartoon sales with
typically large share of the 3rd party development were subject
to sales recognition change as of the split-off date of August 1st
from the gross sales to net sales method. Net sales recognizes
revenue which is given to Naver excluding commissions paid to
Google and Apple stores and revenue distributed to contents
suppliers in compliance with the contract. This method has a slight
effect on our operating revenue but no effect on profits.

Naver was established in June 2, 1999 with a goal of offering
Korean and other Internet users the widest possible selection
of online services. And, as of August 1, 2013, the company
spun its Hangame business off and changed the name to Naver
Corporation from NHN Corporation.
By capitalizing on outstanding search engine technologies, highquality contents, and mass database processing capability, Naver
offers competitive online services such as Korea’s No.1 internet
search portal ‘Naver’ with more than 37 million subscribers,
global messenger platform ‘LINE’, and acquaintance-based social
networking service ‘BAND.’ Revenues are created from search
ads, display ads, and digital items such as mobile games and
stickers of LINE.
Recent market growth and changes at home and abroad are
working positive for our business environment. Online contents,
ads, and e-commerce markets are sustainably growing thanks to

increasing internet access rate. Particularly, the explosive growth
of mobile internet users is expected to unleash rapid progress
in mobile ads and contents markets in the near future. Naver
is focusing on expanding mobile contents business as well as
strengthening global operations centered on ‘LINE’ service to
result in a higher quality revenue stream and margin expansion.

Subsidiaries for consolidated reporting
as of the end of 2013
Our service area has expanded and business capability has
intensified through cooperation with, or direct and indirect
investment in promising SMEs and venture companies, and M&As.
As of the end of 2013, Naver has 30 subsidiaries. A total of 14
companies including BrainPub, CampMobile, and LINE Plus were
newly incorporated and 22 companies such as Studio Hon and
Wisecat were excluded due to share disposal and spinoff during
the year.
Units: Billions of KRW, %

Major

Subsidiaries (4)

Company Name

Main business

Stake

Assets

Naver Business Platform Corp.

Portal and other Internet information-related services

100.00%

576.2

LINE Corp.

Mobile messenger service

100.00%

510.9

LINE Plus Corp.

Global marketing for mobile messenger service

100.00%

168.7

CampMobile Corp.

Development and distribution of mobile contents

100.00%

67.9

Other subsidiaries

DataHotel Corp. / Naver I&S Corp. / NHN Search Marketing Corp. / Woori Levered Golden KP Private Placement Securities Investment Trust No.1

(26)

Fund No.3 / Incomms Corp./ Greenweb Service Corp. / Line Business Partners Corp. / Amazing Soft Corp. / SearchSolution Corp. / LINE Play Corp. /

(in order of asset value)

/ NHN Technology Service Corp. / NHN China Corp. / Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.8 / Gogolook Co., Ltd. / Hyundai Korea Paper Bond

LINE Fukuoka Corp. / NHN Vietnam Co., Ltd. / CommPartners Corp. / ForSchooner Inc. / Diva Interactive Corp. / i-Connect Corp. / LINE Euro-Americas Corp. / N-Visions Corp. / BrainPub Corp. / Quick Cat Corp. / Livedoor Career Co., Ltd.

Note) Naver has a 100% stake in all the above subsidiaries, except for Quick Cat (51.01%) and Gogolook (70.00%). Please refer to Notes to the Independent Auditors’ Report for details.
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II. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE
In 2013, Naver achieved double-digit growth in operating revenue
at home and abroad thanks to the development of innovative
search services and advanced advertising products, fast-growing
mobile business, increase of LINE subscribers, and diversification
of profit sources.

Our consolidated operating revenue grew by 28.5% over the
previous year to KRW 2.31 trillion, which was led by a rise in
search ad revenue in the domestic market and a remarkable sales
growth of LINE in the world. Operating income increased 0.6%
to KRW 524.1 billion, while net income decreased 18.7% to KRW
325.8 billion.
Units: Billions of KRW, %

Consolidated

Operating revenue

Non-consolidated

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

1,798.7

2,312.0

28.5%

1,131.4

1,223.5

8.1%

Operating income

521.2

524.1

0.6%

518.9

590.4

13.8%

Operating margin (%)

29.0%

22.7%

(6.3%p)

45.9%

48.3%

2.4%p

Net income from continuing operations

400.7

325.8

(18.7%)

414.0

437.3

5.6%

LINE

Operating revenue from search ads rose by 12.4% compared to
the prior year to KRW 1.35 trillion in virtue of continuous increase
of the number of advertisers and clicks led by our overwhelming
market dominance. Especially, the proportion of mobile search
ads has expanded up to 20%, which was attributable to our
development and launch of optimized products meeting mobile
market changes and the consequent satisfaction improvement
of advertisers and users. We launched the ‘Mobile Click Choice
Plus’ ad service to deliver industry-customized user interface and
various information in July 2013, and the ‘Mobile Brand Search’
service to support advertisers’ brand marketing in September
2013. These new services have contributed to reinforcing our
competitiveness in mobile internet business.

LINE achieved KRW 454.2 billion, an increase of 690.4% from
the previous year, in operating revenue on net sales base that
took effect since August 1, 2013. It amounted to KRW 577.6
billion, up 905.1%, in terms of the past gross sales base. LINE has
more than 320 million subscribers in the world as of the end of
2013 and is so popular as to rank the top in downloads in Spain
and Mexico as well as Asian countries such as Japan, Taiwan,
Indonesia, and India. In particular, we have launched a lot of
contents – not only LINE game including LINE POP, LINE Bubble,
and LINE Wind Runner, but also LINE sticker, LINE Music, and
LINE Webstore – through the mobile platform of LINE. These
contents have contributed to improving satisfaction of global
users and generating profits. We expect LINE’s revenue growth
and proportion in total revenue to sustainably increase.

Display Ads
Operating revenue from display ads decreased 6.6% year-on-year
to KRW 323.5 billion in 2013 due to the base effect of London
Olympic Games and the domestic election in the previous year.
However, we expect sustainable revenue growth in display ads in
the future, as we have developed new ad programs such as ‘Time
Board,’ ‘Rolling Board,’ and ‘Rich Media Ad’ in order to sharpen
our competitiveness by capitalizing on competitive edge as
Korea’s No.1 portal site and mobile display ads market is rapidly
growing.

1. Operating revenue
Naver generates operating revenue from search ads, display ads,
and digital items of LINE, etc. Our operating revenue in 2013
was KRW 2.31 trillion, of which search ads, display ads, and LINE
accounted for 58.5%, 14.0%, and 19.6%, respectively. Remaining
7.9% was created from contents and IT infrastructure services. By

Search Ads

region, we achieved KRW 1.74 trillion, up 8.3% over the previous
year, in Korea, KRW 545.1 billion, up 181.9%, in Japan, and KRW
31.1 billion, up 1,055.0%, in other countries. Regional proportion
was 75.1% from Korea, 23.6% from Japan, and 1.3% from other
countries, respectively.

Others
Other operating revenue is generated from BAND, Naver Real
Estate, Naver Music, N Store, and IT Infrastructure Service. It
recorded KRW 182.3 billion in 2013, a decrease of 5.2% from the
previous year.

Units: Billions of KRW, %

Consolidated

Non-consolidated

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

Operating revenue

1,798.7

2,312.0

28.5%

Search ads

1,202.6

1,351.9

12.4%

Display ads

346.3

323.5

57.5
192.3

LINE
Others
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Proportion

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

1,131.4

1,223.5

8.1%

58.5%

925.0

999.1

8.0%

(6.6%)

14.0%

172.2

168.6

(2.1%)

454.2

690.4%

19.6%

-

-

-

182.3

(5.2%)

7.9%

34.2

55.8

63.2%
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III. FINANCIAL POSITION

2. Profitability
Operating expenses in 2013 showed an increase of 40.0% from
the previous year to KRW 1.79 trillion, of which commissions,
labor costs, and advertising expenses accounted for 37.0%,
27.6%, and 13.8%, respectively. This was mainly due to the growth
of operating revenue and intensified global marketing activities.
Commissions were KRW 66.2 billion, up 53.0% year-on-year. Labor
costs and advertising expenses also increased 10.3% and 265.3%
from the previous year to KRW 49.3 billion and KRW 24.7 billion,
respectively.

increased 224.0% from the prior year due to the appropriation
of donations of KRW 100 billion in compliance with the consent
decision of the Fair Trade Commission.

As a result, our consolidated operating income rose by 0.6%
year-on-year to KRW 524.1 billion in 2013. Operating margin was
22.7%, a decrease of 6.3%p. Meanwhile, non-operating expenses

Naver will continue to invest in core and new businesses in
the coming year in order to ensure sustainable growth, while
efficiently controlling costs.

Consequently, our consolidated net income from continuing
operations decreased 18.7% from the previous year to KRW 325.8
billion in 2013. Earnings per share from continuing operations
were KRW 8.6 thousand. ROE and ROA recorded 22.1% and
12.1%, respectively.

Units: Billions of KRW, %

Consolidated
FY2012

FY2013

% Change

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

1,277.5

1,787.8

40.0%

612.5

633.1

3.4%

Labor costs

446.7

492.7

10.3%

27.1%

190.5

161.1

(15.5%)

Commissions

432.5

661.6

53.0%

37.0%

319.9

375.4

17.4%

Advertising

67.7

247.2

265.3%

13.8%

40.2

31.1

(22.6%)

Depreciation

94.6

121.4

28.3%

6.8%

16.6

21.0

26.4%

Communications

97.4

119.3

22.5%

6.7%

1.0

0.8

(18.4%)

Employee benefits

52.0

56.5

8.7%

3.2%

20.7

18.1

(12.5%)

Others

86.5

89.1

3.0%

5.0%

23.6

25.6

8.5%

521.2

524.1

0.6%

518.9

590.4

13.8%

29.0%

22.7%

6.3%p

45.9%

48.3%

2.4%p

400.7

325.8

(18.7%)

414.0

437.3

5.6%

22.3%

14.1%

(8.2%p)

36.6%

35.7%

(0.9%p)

Operating expenses

Operating income
Operating margin (%)
Net income from continuing operations
Net margin from continuing operations (%)
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1. Assets
Naver’s consolidated total assets at the end of 2013 recorded
KRW 2.70 trillion, a decrease of 7.8% from the previous year.

Current Assets
Current assets were KRW 1.34 trillion, down 23.2% year-onyear. Cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables
increased 10.1% and 11.5%, respectively, while short-term
financial instruments decreased by 54.2% due to the spinoff
of Hangame business. As for trade and other receivables, the
proportion of current receivables sharply increased compared to
the previous year. The company continues to monitor cash flows
in accordance with mid to long-term business plans and shortterm management strategies and operates cash to cover overall
business activities.

Non-current Assets
Non-current assets of the company increased 14.6% year-on-year
to KRW 1.36 trillion due to rises in tangible assets and availablefor-sale financial assets. Tangible assets grew 40.0% from KRW
565.6 billion in the previous year to KRW 791.6 billion, which was
mainly attributable to the completion of data center ‘Gak’ and
purchases of lands, buildings, and machinery for the construction
of our employee training center in Chuncheon. Available-for-sale
financial assets also increased 24.5% to KRW 235.0 billion. This
resulted from the acquisition of newly issued shares of NHN
Entertainment Corp. allocated to treasury shares as a result of the
spin-off of Hangame business. Meanwhile, investments in affiliates
decreased 88.6% due to the transfer of equity of such affiliated
companies as Mediaweb and Webzen.

Units: Billions of KRW, %

Consolidated

Non-consolidated

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

2,927.3

2,697.7

(7.8%)

2,641.5

2,260.1

(14.4%)

1,738.9

1,336.1

(23.2%)

1,157.7

751.4

(35.1%)

Cash and cash equivalents

395.4

435.3

10.1%

133.5

101.3

(24.1%)

Short-term financial instruments

645.3

295.4

(54.2%)

527.9

244.0

(53.8%)

Trade and other receivables

291.0

324.5

11.5%

213.5

179.0

(16.2%)

Others

407.2

281.0

(31.0%)

282.8

227.1

(19.7%)

Non-current assets

1,188.4

1,361.7

14.6%

1,483.8

1,507.4

1.6%

Tangible assets

565.6

791.6

40.0%

360.9

556.8

54.3%

Intangible assets

121.6

134.0

10.2%

44.4

34.3

(22.7%)

Available-for-sale financial assets

188.8

235.0

24.5%

49.3

192.3

290.4%

Investments in affiliates

123.3

14.0

(88.6%)

907.6

605.7

(33.3%)

Others

189.2

187.0

(1.2%)

121.6

118.2

(2.8%)

Total assets
Current assets
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IV. CASH FLOWS

2. Liabilities
Our consolidated total liabilities at the end of 2013 were KRW
1.22 trillion, up 19.4% year-on-year. Current liabilities increased
29.0% to KRW 832.4 billion, which was mainly led by the
occurrence of short-term borrowings in foreign currency of JPY
8.55 billion and the increase of other current liabilities. Long-term
borrowings fell by 43.4% to KRW 110.1 billion due to the issuance

of corporate bond of KRW 110.1 despite repayment of long-term
borrowings in Korean Won and foreign currency. As a result,
consolidated debt-to-equity ratio increased from 53.8% in the
previous year to 82.9% in 2013. However, the ratio is recognized
as fairly low level in consideration of our cash flows and business
conditions.
Units: Billions of KRW, %

Consolidated

Non-consolidated

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

1,023.7

1,222.4

19.4%

656.5

645.5

(1.7%)

645.4

832.4

29.0%

363.1

375.1

3.3%

Trade and other payables

255.3

270.6

6.0%

108.2

107.1

(1.0%)

Short-term borrowings

135.5

241.6

78.3%

100.0

150.7

50.7%

Income tax payable

117.5

122.5

4.2%

110.6

81.6

(26.2%)

Others

137.1

197.7

44.2%

44.4

35.7

(19.5%)

378.4

390.1

3.1%

293.4

270.4

(7.8%)

194.5

110.1

(43.4%)

194.5

100.0

Total liabilities
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Liabilities for defined benefit obligations
Others

Cash and cash equivalents increased 10.1% from the previous year
to KRW 435.3 billion at the end of 2013.
Cash flow from operating activities grew by 5.5% to KRW 628.0
billion, which was mainly attributable a sharp increase of 248.1 %
in net income.
Cash flow from investing activities recorded minus KRW 423.4
billion, a reduction of 38.6% from the previous year. This was
mainly attributable to the decreases of short-term financial
instruments and CAPEX for the acquisition of tangible and
intangible assets.
Cash flow from financing activities showed minus KRW 162.1

billion due to sharp increase in cash outflow. Cash outflow rose by
66.3% year-on-year to KRW 372.1 billion from the repayment of
KRW 100 billion and the spinoff.
In 2014, Naver expects to generate a stable cash flow from its
operating activities by maintaining high market shares in online
ads through its PC and mobile platforms and by increasing
its revenue from new businesses such as LINE both inside
and outside of Korea. As a result, the company plans to drive
new businesses, make further investments in sustainability
management, accumulate extra cash, and implement shareholdercentered policies through repurchasing treasury stocks and paying
dividends.
Units: Billions of KRW, %

Consolidated

Non-consolidated

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

Cash flow from operating activities

595.5

628.0

5.5%

561.5

534.1

(4.9%)

(48.6%)

Cash flow from investing activities

(690.0)

(423.4)

(38.6%)

(710.7)

(445.1)

(37.4%)

Cash flow from financing activities

23.9

(162.1)

-

83.6

(119.9)

-

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

466.3

395.4

(15.2%)

199.1

133.5

(33.0%)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

395.4

435.3

10.1%

133.5

101.3

(24.1%)

171.2

159.8

(6.7%)

97.7

64.9

(33.6%)

12.6

120.2

853.6%

1.2

105.5

8857.3%

3. Shareholders’ Equity
The company’s consolidated total shareholders’ equity at the
end of 2013 was KRW 1.48 trillion, a decrease of 22.5% from the
year before. Share capital fell by 31.5% year-on-year to KRW 16.5
billion mainly due to the spinoff and, consequently, the number
of issued shares decreased to 32,962,679 from 48,127,704 in the
previous year. We hold treasury shares for the purpose of stock
price stabilization and response to the exercise of stock options.

V. OUTLOOK FOR 2013

The number of treasury shares was 3,166,384 at the end of 2013
and their acquisition costs were appropriated to other capital.
Other capital recorded a loss of KRW 3.11trillion due to the
reduction of share capital from the spinoff and losses on disposal
of treasury shares. Meanwhile, retained earnings increased
70.8% to KRW 4.56 trillion backed by profits from discontinued
operations.
Units: Billions of KRW, %

Consolidated

Share capital
Share premium
Other capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests
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Non-consolidated

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

FY2012

FY2013

% Change

24.1

16.5

(31.5%)

24.1

16.5

(31.5%)

195.8

132.9

(32.1%)

195.8

132.9

(32.1%)

(953.1)

(3,114.8)

226.8%

(926.8)

(3,097.4)

234.2%

(38.2)

(119.4)

212.8%

(0.9)

(74.1)

8525.8%

2,667.8

4,556.2

70.8%

2,692.7

4,636.7

72.2%

7.2

4.0

(44.3%)

-

-

-
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In the internet industry, PC-based sector is facing a slowdown
in growth due to the saturation of online users and sluggish
recovery of the global economy. On the other hand, mobile sector
is enjoying a full-fledged growth phase thanks to smartphone
market which is continuously expanding.
As for our internet portal business, we spun Hangame business off
in 2013 in order to establish an efficient decision-making system,
strengthen core competitiveness, and minimize management risks.
In the coming year, we will focus on consistently improving search
quality for portal users and advertisers, providing differentiated
contents, and developing new ad products in order to secure
stable growth in online ads business. More services and ad
products suitable for mobile users will also be launched.

Particularly, we will devote ourselves to the growth in the global
mobile service market. To this end, we set the target at achieving
500 million LINE subscribers in 2014 and plans to drive marketing
activities throughout the world. Our focuses will also be on
localizing existing contents such as LINE games, stickers, and
ads and continuously providing new services including LINE Call,
LINE Mall, and LINE Music. By doing so, LINE will consolidate its
leading position as a mobile service platform in the world and
generate stable revenue.
Naver is always committed to leading changes and innovation of
the industry in the rapidly-changing market environment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Based on a report originally issued in Korean

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation):

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of NAVER Corporation and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended. Management is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Korean International Financial Reporting
Standards. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
However, we did not audit the financial statements of LINE Corp. in Japan, whose financial statements reflect total
assets constituting 16.6% of consolidated total assets (before elimination of inter-company transactions) as of December
31, 2013, and total revenues constituting 17.9% of consolidated total revenues (before elimination of inter-company
transactions) for the year ended December 31, 2013. Those financial statements were audited by other auditor whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the
entity is based solely on the report of the other auditor.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:
The procedures and practices utilized in the Republic of Korea to audit consolidated financial statements may differ from
those generally accepted and applied in other countries. Accordingly, this report is for use by those knowledgeable about
Korean auditing standards and their application in practice.
As discussed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group spun off Hangame business sector and
established NHN Entertainment Corp. on August 1, 2013. The profit or loss of Hangame business sector are classified to
profit for the year from discontinued operations in the statements of comprehensive income.

Seoul, Korea
February 25, 2014

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and
the its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Korean International Financial
Reporting Standards.

This report is effective as of February 25, 2014, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances, which may occur between the
audit report date and the time of reading this report, could have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto. Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should understand that the above audit report has not been updated to reflect the
impact of such subsequent events or circumstances, if any.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries
Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Assets

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION, CONTINUED

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries
Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4,7)

\ 435,257,840

395,434,661

Trade and other payables (Notes 4,14,18,26,30)

\ 270,627,493

255,279,507

Short-term financial instruments (Notes 4,26)

295,369,520

645,254,201

Short-term borrowings (Notes 4,15,26)

241,583,304

135,495,516

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 4,26)

242,082,589

280,975,949

Income tax payables (Note 28)

122,453,139

117,526,281

Trade and other receivables (Notes 4,8,26,30)

324,456,229

291,010,455

Provisions (Note 16)

2,833,121

243,596

Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 4,9,26)

4,516,250

40,386,744

Derivative liabilities (Notes 4,26)

-

138,363

Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 4,9,26)

-

11,226,048

Other current liabilities (Note 17)

194,876,150

136,707,945

34,406,363

74,655,140

832,373,207

645,391,208

1,336,088,791

1,738,943,198

94,846

178,245

Property, plant and equipment (Note 12)

791,565,324

565,585,659

Long-term borrowings (Notes 4,15,26)

110,096,833

194,540,660

Intangible assets (Note 13)

134,030,301

121,593,623

Liabilities for defined benefit obligations (Note 18)

159,792,740

171,214,163

Provisions (Note 16)

110,833,415

10,917,675

765,526

-

8,481,257

1,506,443

390,064,617

378,357,186

1,222,437,824

1,023,748,394

16,481,339

24,063,852

132,920,605

195,843,363

(3,114,846,057)

(953,132,870)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Note 22)

(119,417,816)

(38,174,268)

Retained earnings (Note 23)

4,556,178,354

2,667,794,172

1,471,316,425

1,896,394,249

3,992,591

7,174,026

1,475,309,016

1,903,568,275

\ 2,697,746,840

2,927,316,669

Other current assets (Note 10)
Total current assets

Long-term financial instruments (Notes 4,26)

Total current liabilities
Trade and other payables (Notes 4,14,26,30)

9,527,095

8,972,844

Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 4,9,26)

235,035,656

188,752,551

Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 4,9,26)

2,819,521

3,502,000

14,029,856

123,258,778

132,479,740

65,095,671

Total liabilities

Trade and other receivables (Notes 4,8,26,30)

23,466,801

81,611,151

Stockholders’ equity

Other non-current assets (Note 10)

18,703,755

30,001,194

1,361,658,049

1,188,373,471

Share premium

\ 2,697,746,840

2,927,316,669

Other capital (Note 21)

Equity-accounted investees (Note 11)
Deferred tax assets (Note 28)

Total non-current assets
Total assets

[Continued]

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 28)
Other non-current liabilities (Note 17)
Total non-current liabilities

Share capital (Notes 1,20)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries
Item

(In thousands of Korean won, except earnings per share)

2013

2012

Continuing Operations

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, CONTINUED

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries
Item

For the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012

(In thousands of Korean won, except earnings per share)

2013

2012

Profit (loss) attributable to:

Operating revenues (Notes 5,30)

\ 2,311,962,798

1,798,657,244

Owners of the Company

\ 1,897,461,180

546,076,186

1,787,824,256

1,277,470,172

Non-controlling interests

(2,171,865)

(1,647,634)

524,138,542

521,187,072

1,895,289,315

544,428,552

Non-operating revenues (Note 25)

7,720,867

6,321,217

Non-operating expenses (Note 25)

136,996,353

42,285,420

Owners of the Company

1,833,955,766

453,954,872

Finance income (Note 27)

77,502,998

73,213,233

Non-controlling interests

(2,171,865)

(1,647,635)

Finance costs (Note 27)

13,231,912

9,963,341

1,831,783,901

452,307,237

Share of profit (loss) of equity-accounted investees, net (Note 11)

(2,210,094)

72,564

Earnings per share (Note 29)

Profit before income tax

456,924,048

548,545,325

Basic earnings per share

Income tax expense (Note 28)

131,109,410

147,876,860

8,619

9,114

Profit for the year from continuing operations

325,814,638

400,668,465

41,608

3,308

8,619

9,112

\ 41,607

3,307

Operating expenses (Notes 24,30)
Results from operating activities (Note 3)

Discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations
Diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year from discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 31)

1,569,474,677

143,760,087

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

Profit for the year

1,895,289,315

544,428,552

Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations

Other comprehensive income (loss)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss subsequently
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

(72,729,616)

(1,433,706)

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

(1,739,215)

(66,775,097)

Change in equity of equity accounted investees

(6,774,716)

1,849,916

Defined benefit plan actuarial gain (loss)

17,738,133

(25,762,427)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

(63,505,414)

(92,121,314)

\ 1,831,783,901

452,307,238

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss subsequently

Total comprehensive income for the year

[Continued]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries

(In thousands of Korean won)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY, CONTINUED

Balance at January 1, 2012

Net change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets

Exchange differences

on translating foreign
operations

Change in equity of equity
method investments

Defined benefit plan
actuarial losses

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Share
capital

Share
premium

Other
capital

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss)

\ 24,063,852

195,247,998

(841,004,172)

28,184,619

2,171,048,073

321,660

1,577,862,030

-

-

-

-

546,076,186

(1,647,634)

544,428,552

-

-

-

(1,433,706)

-

-

(1,433,706)

-

-

-

(66,775,096)

-

-

(66,775,096)

-

-

-

1,849,915

-

-

1,849,915

Retained
earnings

Noncontrolling
interests

Total
stockholders’
equity

subsidiary

Acquisition of treasury
shares

Dividends to owners of
the Company

Exercise of share options
Total transactions with owners
of the Company

Balance at December 31, 2012

Share
capital

Share
premium

Other
capital

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss)

\ 24,063,852

195,843,363

(953,132,870)

(38,174,268)

2,667,794,172

7,174,026

1,903,568,275

-

-

-

-

1,897,461,180

(2,171,865)

1,895,289,315

-

-

-

(72,729,616)

-

-

(72,729,616)

-

-

-

(1,739,216)

-

-

(1,739,216)

-

-

-

(6,774,716)

-

-

(6,774,716)

-

-

-

-

17,738,134

-

17,738,134

-

-

-

(81,243,548)

1,915,199,314

(2,171,865)

1,831,783,901

-

-

-

-

-

4,128,359

4,128,359

-

-

-

-

-

6,044,440

6,044,440

-

-

-

-

(26,815,132)

-

(26,815,132)

-

50,229

490,892

-

-

-

541,121

-

-

8,866,052

-

-

-

8,866,052

-

-

(10,177,376)

-

-

-

(10,177,376)

-

(1,820,680)

251,829,663

-

-

-

250,008,983

(7,582,513)

(61,152,307)

(2,412,722,418)

-

-

(11,182,369)

(2,492,639,607)

(7,582,513)

(62,922,758)

(2,161,713,187)

-

(26,815,132)

(1,009,570)

(2,260,043,160)

\ 16,481,339

132,920,605

(3,114,846,057)

(119,417,816)

4,556,178,354

3,992,591

1,475,309,016

Item

Balance at January 1, 2013

Retained
earnings

Noncontrolling
interests

Total
stockholders’
equity

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

-

-

-

(66,358,887)

(25,762,427)
520,313,759

(1,647,634)

(25,762,427)
452,307,238

Profit for the period
Net change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets

Exchange differences

on translating foreign
operations

Change in equity of
equity-accounted
investees

Defined benefit plan
actuarial gain

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transactions with owners of the Company, recognized directly in equity
Establishment of

(In thousands of Korean won)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

2013 and 2012

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Item

For the years ended December 31,

Transactions with owners of the Company, recognized directly in equity

-

-

-

-

-

8,500,000

8,500,000

-

-

(117,317,749)

-

-

-

(117,317,749)

-

-

-

-

(23,567,660)

-

(23,567,660)

-

595,365

5,189,051

-

-

-

5,784,416

Exercise of share options

-

595,365

(112,128,698)

-

(23,567,660)

8,500,000

(126,600,993)

Compensation expenses

\ 24,063,852

195,843,363

(953,132,870)

(38,174,268)

2,667,794,172

7,174,026

1,903,568,275
[Continued]

Acquisition of investments
in subsidiaries

Sales of subsidiaries
Dividends to owners of
the Company

associated with share
options

Acquisition of treasury
shares

Disposal of treasury shares
due to the spin-off

Decrease in equity due to
the spin-off of Hangame
business

Total transactions with owners
of the Company, recognized
directly in equity

Balance at December 31, 2013

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

082

FINANCIAL REVIEW

083

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries
Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

2013

2012

Cash flows from operating activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED

For the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries
Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

2013

2012

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

\ (2,297,391)

(18,915,919)

Trade and other receivables

(145,543,230)

(70,617,657)

(864,114)

(11,565,933)

Changes in:

Profit for the year

\ 1,895,289,315

544,428,552

Adjustments for:
Bad debt expense

-

712,632

Other current assets

5,186,552

794,429

Other non-current assets

(9,974,391)

9,903,052

(11,831)

-

Trade and other payables

58,871,309

(970,556)

Depreciation

115,624,618

88,821,467

Other current liabilities

79,548,199

13,899,932

Amortization

16,072,233

18,247,105

Provisions

100,631,052

(18,205)

(33,814,489)

(34,787,867)

9,881,716

(1,466,536)

-

5,751,270

(19,260,900)

(15,662,957)

(405,023)

(446,125)

70,992,250

714,979,799

Other bad debt expense
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts

Foreign currency translation gain, net
Loss on sale of trade receivables
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment

737,228,141

28,144,610

36,286,115

29,940,035

Interest paid

(8,266,251)

(9,341,919)

(446,652)

(5,099,522)

Dividends received

4,445,938

3,371,709

(4,713,656)

(10,970,322)

(201,097,873)

(172,042,900)

(237,162)

(440,330)

\ 627,952,380

595,501,146

(12,089,782)

(1,878,380)

Loss on impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

18,417,108

4,546,728

Reversal of impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

(1,159,900)

-

6,740

-

Loss on valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net
Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net
Gain on transaction of derivative instruments
Gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets, net

Loss on sale of held-to-maturity financial assets
Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net

45,903
342,023

17,363,438

Changes

804,725,956

Loss on impairment of intangible assets

-

Defined benefit plan

Interest received

Loss (Gain) on disposal of intangible assets, net

(1,553)

Other non-current liabilities

1,426,382

(2,331,177)

(2,241,689)

(10,994,716)

9,103,964

431,793

59,662,266

50,801,891

-

(151,527)

(31,964,937)

(40,017,228)

Interest expense

8,133,187

9,333,708

Dividend income

(4,190,938)

(1,692,321)

160,043,632

187,254,899

Loss (Gain) on disposal of equity accounted investees, net
Compensation expenses associated with share options
Expenses related to defined benefit plans
Miscellaneous income, net
Interest income

Income tax expense
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations
Adjustments

(1,481,318,119)

-

\ (1,161,555,609)

288,214,368

Cash generated from operating activities

Income tax paid
Net cash provided by operating activities

[Continued]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED

For the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries
Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

2013

2012

Cash flows from investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED

For the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012

NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries
Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

2013

2012

Cash flows from financing activities

Decrease of short-term investments

\ 641,905,338

668,068,224

Decrease of short-term loans receivable

300,000

-

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Decrease of long-term investments

525,413

-

Proceeds from exercise of share options

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets

63,140,326

53,151,836

Proceeds from sale of held-to-maturity investments

11,219,307

3,362,681

Proceeds from sale of investments in associates

11,556,379

19,523,839

-

3,743

103,484

-

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

18,360,075

3,313,451

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets

20,926,588

429,793

Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries
Proceeds from settlement of derivative financial instruments

Proceeds from sale of business unit

9,032,079

-

14,962,723

9,214,208

(590,973,290)

(967,756,355)

Increase of short-term loans receivable

(71,615,710)

(16,822,660)

Acquisition of available-for-sale securities

(59,055,003)

(85,249,435)

-

(13,570,519)

(571,325)

(8,972,844)

Acquisition of equity-accounted investees

(11,744,250)

(5,354,196)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

(30,944,963)

(11,687)

(379,576,901)

(280,362,446)

Acquisition of intangible assets

(60,845,261)

(29,113,964)

Increase of other non-current receivables

(10,066,317)

(39,838,796)

\ (423,361,308)

(689,985,127)

Decrease of other non-current receivables
Increase of short-term investments

Acquisition of held-to-maturity financial assets
Increase of long-term investments

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

\ 95,415,141

13,807,400

2,999,998

219,775,500

557,157

5,542,701

-

8,500,000

Proceeds from issuing bond

111,041,634

-

Repayment of short-term borrowings

(36,360,942)

(32,759,429)

Repayment of long-term borrowings

(1,922,648)

(50,039,528)

Payment of dividends

(26,815,132)

(23,567,660)

Acquisition of treasury shares

(10,177,376)

(117,317,750)

(100,000,000)

-

Investments by non-controlling shareholders

Repayment of current-portion of bond
Decrease in cash due to the spin-off
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

(196,796,223)

-

\ (162,058,391)

23,941,234

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) and Subsidiaries

December 31, 2013

2.Basis of Preparation

1. Reporting Entity
NAVER Corporation (the “Company”) was established on June
2, 1999 under the Commercial Code of the Republic of Korea to
provide internet portal services. The Company’s headquarters is
located at Buljeong-ro 6, Bundang-gu, Seongnam-si, Gyeonggi-do,
Korea.

then on November 28, 2008, the Company transferred its share
listing to the Korea Composite Stock Price Index market. As
of December 31, 2013, the Company’s share capital amounted
to \16,481 million with 300,000,000 authorized shares and
32,962,679 issued shares with a par value of \500 per share.

(1) Statement of compliance

As discussed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
on August 1, 2013, the Group spun off its Hangame business
sector, which was distributed to the owners of the Company, into
a new company called NHN Entertainment Corp.

Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2013 are
composed of the Company and subsidiaries of the Company (the
“Group”), shares of affiliated companies and jointly controlled
companies of the Group.

(2) Basis of measurement

On October 29, 2002, the Company listed its shares on the
Korean Securities Dealers’ Automated Quotations market, and

As of December 31, 2013, the major shareholders of the Company
are as follows:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Korean International Financial Reporting
Standards (“K-IFRS”), as prescribed in the Act on External Audits
of Corporations.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the following material items in the
statement of financial position:
①F
 inancial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured

at fair value

② Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
Name of shareholders

Number of shares

Percentage of ownership

Haejin Lee and executive personnel of the Company

3,018,116

9.16%

National Pension Fund

2,649,675

8.04%

Fidelity Funds

2,538,503

7.70%

The Capital Group Companies, Inc.

1,716,006

5.20%

Treasury shares

3,166,384

9.61%

Others

19,873,995

60.29%

Total

32,962,679

100.00%

③ Liabilities for defined benefit plans are recognized at the net of

the total present value of defined benefit obligation less the fair
value of plan assets and unrecognized past service costs

(3) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements of Group entities are presented in the
currency of the primary economic environment (“functional
currency”) in which each of the Group entities operates. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Korean won,
which is the Parent Company’s functional currency and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group
operates.

(4) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with K-IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting
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policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in
the following note:
- Note 3: Revenue
- Note 3: Scope of consolidation
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that
have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within
the next financial year are included in the following notes:
- Note 16: Provisions
- Note 18: Employee benefits
- Note 19: Commitments and contingencies

(5) Changes in accounting policies
Except as described below, the accounting policies applied by the
Group in these consolidated financial statements are the same
as those applied by the Company in its consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012.
- K-IFRS No. 1110, Consolidated Financial Statements
- K-IFRS No. 1111, Joint Arrangement
- K-IFRS No. 1112, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
- K-IFRS No. 1113, Fair Value Measurement
- K-IFRS No. 1019, Employee Benefits
- K-IFRS No. 1001, Presentation of Financial Statements
① Subsidiaries

As a result of amendment to K-IFRS No. 1110, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for determining whether it has
control over and consequently whether it consolidates its
investees. K-IFRS No. 1110 introduces a new control model
that focuses on whether the Group has power over an investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and ability to use its power to affect those returns.
There is no significant impact of applying this standard on the
consolidated financial statements.
② Joint arrangement

As a result of K-IFRS No. 1111, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for its interests in joint arrangements. Under
K-IFRS No. 1111, the Group has classified its interests in joint
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arrangements as either joint operations (if the Group has rights
to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to an
arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Group has rights only to
the net assets of an arrangement). When making this assessment,
the Group considered the structure of the arrangements, the
legal form of separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the
arrangements and other facts and circumstances. Previously, the
structure of the arrangement was the sole focus of classification.
There is no significant impact of applying this standard on the
consolidated financial statements.
③ Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The standard brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements about an entity’s interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured
entities. The standard requires an entity to disclose information
that enables users of financial statements to evaluate the nature
of and risks associated with its interests in other entities and
the effects of those interests on its financial position, financial
performance and cash flows. The Group retrospectively applied
the standard to the comparative consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2012 and the Group provides
required disclosures in note 11. There is no significant impact of
applying this standard on the consolidated financial statements.
④ K-IFRS No. 1113, Fair Value Measurement

K-IFRS No. 1113 establishes a single framework for measuring fair
value and making disclosures about fair value measurements when
such measurements are required or permitted by other K-IFRSs.
It unifies the definition of fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. It replaces and expands the disclosure requirements about
fair value measurements in other K-IFRSs, including K-IFRS No.
1107. As a result, the Company has included additional disclosures
in this regard (Refer to Notes 4).
⑤ K-IFRS No. 1019, Employee Benefits

As a result of amendment to K-IFRS No. 1019, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to the basis
for determining the income or expense related to its post-

employment defined benefit plans. Under K-IFRS No. 1019, the
Group determines the net interest expense on the net defined
benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments.
Consequently, the net interest on the net defined benefit liability
now comprises: interest cost on the defined benefit obligation,
interest income on plan assets, and interest on the effect on the
asset ceiling. Previously, the Company determined interest income
on plan assets based on their long-term rate of expected return.
⑥ K-IFRS No. 1001, Presentation of Financial Statements

As a result of the amendments to K-IFRS No. 1001, the Company
has modified the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income in its statement of comprehensive income, to present
separately items that would be reclassified to profit or loss from
those that would never be. Comparative information has been represented accordingly.

(6) Authorization date for issuing financial statements
The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors on February 5, 2014, which will be
submitted for approval to the shareholders’ meeting to be held on
March 21, 2014.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied by the Group in
preparation of its consolidated financial statements are included
below. The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements, except for changes in accounting policies as
explained in Note 2.
The Group reclassified the presentation of certain information in
the comparative comprehensive income statement by adopting
the amendment to K-IFRS No. 1001, Presentation of Financial
Statements, and reflecting results of discontinued operations.

(1) Basis of consolidation
① Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has right to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the

Parent
company

Subsidiaries

NAVER

NAVER Business Platform Corp.

Corporation

(formerly, NHN
Corporation)

consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.
The Company spun off its Hangame business sector as of August
1, 2013. Details of subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
are presented as follows:

Location

Primary business

Korea

Percentage of ownership
2013

2012

Portals and other Internet information services

100.00%

100.00%

Korea

Information systems services

100.00%

100.00%

LINE Corp. (formerly, NHN Japan Corp.) (*)

Japan

Mobile messenger services

100.00%

100.00%

NHN Japan Corp. (*)

Japan

Online game development and distribution

-

-

NHN Global Limited

Cayman Islands

Investment

-

100.00%

NHN-PCCS HK Limited

Hong Kong

Investment

-

100.00%

NHN USA Inc.

U.S.A.

Internet service

-

100.00%

NHN China Corp.

China

Software development and distribution

100.00%

100.00%

NHN Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Vietnam

Internet service

100.00%

100.00%

NHN Singapore Pte., Ltd.

Singapore

Internet service

-

100.00%

NHN Investment Corp.

Korea

Investment in new technology

-

100.00%

SearchSolution Corp.

Korea

Software development and distribution

100.00%

100.00%

Game Marketing & Business Corp.

Korea

Operating online gaming PC cafe

-

100.00%

N-Visions Corp.

Korea

Performances and exhibitions business

100.00%

100.00%

Wisecat Inc.

Korea

Development and production of software

-

51.00%

Orange Crew Corp.

Korea

Smart device game development

-

100.00%

Gplus Corp.

Korea

Operation of customer service center for games

-

100.00%

Brainpub Corp.

Korea

Mobile contents development and distribution

100.00%

-

Camp Mobile Corp.

Korea

Mobile contents development and sales

100.00%

-

Dancing Anchovy Entertainment, Inc.

Korea

Smart device game development and sales

-

-

Dvine Interactive Co., Ltd.

Korea

Web design services

100.00%

-

Korea

Investment

-

100.00%

KTB CLN Linked Private Securities Investment Trust

Korea

Investment

-

100.00%

Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.3

Korea

Investment

-

100.00%

Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.8

Korea

Investment

100.00%

-

Hyundai Korea Paper Bond Fund No.3

Korea

Investment

100.00%

100.00%

Korea

Investment

100.00%

100.00%

(formerly, NHN Business Platform Corp.)
NAVER I&S Corp.

(formerly, NHN I&S Corp.)

NHN & Start New Technology Project Investment
Cooperative No.1

Woori Levered Golden KP Private Placement
Securities Investment Trust

[Continued]
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Financial information of consolidated subsidiaries as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2013 is summarized as follows:
Parent
company

Subsidiaries

Location

Primary business

NAVER Business

NHN Search Marketing Corp.

Korea

Amazingsoft Corp.

Platform Corp.
NAVER I&S
Corp.

LINE Plus Corp.

Camp Mobile
Corp.

LINE Corp.

2012

Sales agency specializing in search advertising

100.00%

100.00%

Korea

Software development and sales

100.00%

-

IncommsCorp.

Korea

Internet commerce and customer service center

100.00%

100.00%

NAVER Business Platform Corp.

Greenweb Service Corp.

Korea

Monitoring, developing of contents and advertising

100.00%

100.00%

NAVER I&S Corp.

NHN Technology Service Corp.

Korea

Operation and security services of IT infrastructure

100.00%

100.00%

LINE Corp.

CommPartners Corp.

Korea

Operation of online shopping services

100.00%

100.00%

NHN China Corp.

LINE Play Corp. (formerly, NHN Arts Corp.)

Korea

Contents and mobile service development

100.00%

100.00%

LINE Euro-Americas Corp.

U.S.A.

Mobile messenger marketing in U.S.A and Europe

100.00%

Iconnect Co., Ltd.

Korea

Mobile applications marketing

100.00%

Quicket Corp.

Korea

Mobile applications marketing

Gogolook Co., Ltd

Taiwan

Mobile applications marketing

DataHotel Corp.

Japan

Livedoor Career Co., Ltd.

DataHotel
Corp.

Wisecat Inc.

Liabilities

Equity

Revenue

Net
income

Other
comprehensive income

\ 576,182,064

401,240,242

174,941,822

711,228,438

14,242,675

17,344,342

47,570,518

23,608,376

23,962,142

31,256,937

3,514,664

5,842,086

510,871,447

324,646,032

186,225,415

504,713,474

81,920,719

81,920,719

12,013,108

2,266,168

9,746,940

18,322,191

(1,064,630)

(1,064,630)

NHN Vietnam Co., Ltd.

2,386,669

2,799,584

(412,915)

-

(5,027,333)

(5,027,333)

-

SearchSolution Corp.

5,782,852

757,643

5,025,209

1,660,000

315,036

419,640

-

N-Visions Corp.

639,639

116,256

523,383

1,140,568

130,083

130,083

51.01%

-

Brainpub Corp.

530,452

98,030

432,422

529,734

91,828

91,828

70.00%

-

Camp Mobile Corp.

67,854,774

14,774,305

53,080,469

575,905

(27,560,354)

(26,919,532)

IT infrastructure service

100.00%

100.00%

Dvine Interactive Co., Ltd.

937,120

1,073,953

(136,833)

12,330

(239,431)

(239,431)

Japan

Job searching services

100.00%

100.00%

Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.8

11,224,913

8,470

11,216,443

-

(283,557)

(283,557)

Japan

Web searching services

100.00%

100.00%

Hyundai Korea Paper Bond Fund No.3

10,376,702

3,755

10,372,947

-

541,154

541,154

LINE Plus Corp.

Korea

Global marketing of mobile messenger

100.00%

-

Woori Levered Golden KP Private Placement Securities Investment Trust

20,906,624

3,600

20,903,024

-

(693,382)

(693,382)

LINE Fukuoka Corporation

Japan

Internet services

100.00%

-

NHN Search Marketing Corp.

21,881,400

8,034,136

13,847,264

26,702,196

3,146,458

3,547,135

NHST Japan Corp.

Japan

Internet services

-

100.00%

Amazingsoft Corp.

6,301,772

1,006,622

5,295,150

3,593,938

1,128,410

1,128,410

NHN Service Technology Corp.

China

Internet services

-

100.00%

Incomms Corp.

9,861,668

7,793,566

2,068,102

18,186,032

276,808

(1,353,442)

Mediator Corp.

Japan

PC cafe business

-

100.00%

Greenweb Service Corp.

9,252,248

8,493,369

758,879

19,905,872

385,514

(1,643,944)

Sync Corp.

Japan

Design and development of game software

-

100.00%

17,537,368

19,636,603

(2,099,235)

49,049,270

(2,838,854)

1,054,711

CommPartners Corp.

1,836,486

1,628,928

207,558

5,711,849

13,319

14,966

ForSchooner Inc.

Japan

IT infrastructure service

100.00%

-

LINE Play Corp.

4,173,187

6,367,808

(2,194,621)

8,711,105

(1,035,700)

(805,834)

Studio Hon Corp.

Korea

Online game development

-

59.19%

LINE Euro-Americas Corp.

780,362

119,604

660,758

-

(1,504,439)

(1,504,439)

Iconnect Co., Ltd.

898,015

671,506

226,509

1,404,443

(475,279)

(475,279)

Quicket Corp.

284,324

152,109

132,215

90,954

(398,204)

(398,204)

Gogolook Co., Ltd.

10,932,508

370,899

10,561,609

-

-

-

DataHotel Corp.

49,517,426

12,618,471

36,898,955

54,472,750

7,528,710

7,528,710

NHN

Investment
Corp.

KTB-NHN China Private Equity Fund

KTB-NHN China
Private Equity
Fund

KTB/NHN China Ventures I Ltd.

Korea

British

Virgin Islands

Investment

Investment

-

-

66.67%

100.00%

NHN Technology Service Corp.

LINE Business Partners Corporation

new Technology
Investment

Name of subsidiary

Livedoor Career Co., Ltd.

NHN & Start
Project

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Assets

Jlisting Co., Ltd.)

Corp.(*)

As of December 31, 2013

2013

LINE Business Partners Corporation (formerly,

NHN Japan

(In thousands of Korean won)

Percentage of ownership

Funways Corp.

Korea

Mobile device game development

-

-

Cooperative

LINE Plus Corp.
LINE Fukuoka Corporation
ForSchooner Inc.

No.1

124,992

703

124,289

-

(1,060)

(1,060)

9,152,718

7,039,288

2,113,430

7,363,683

714,476

714,476

168,722,010

117,664,865

51,057,145

127,886,215

(149,425,644)

(148,942,854)

3,902,406

2,193,299

1,709,107

622,232

(305,248)

(305,248)

\ 1,415,128

889,991

525,137

2,347,452

673,134

673,134

(*) On April 1, 2013, NHN Japan Corp., one of the Company’s subsidiaries, completed the spin-off of online game development and business service divisions. The remaining company changed
its name to “LINE Corp.” and the newly established Company is named”NHN Japan Corp”.
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(In thousands of Korean won)

As of December 31, 2013

If a subsidiary of the Group uses accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to its financial statements in preparing the

consolidated financial statements.

Name of subsidiary

Financial information of consolidated subsidiaries as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2012 is summarized as follows:

DataHotel Corp.

(In thousands of Korean won)

As of December 31, 2012
Name of subsidiary

For the year ended December 31, 2012
Other
comprehensive income

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Assets

Liabilities

Equity

Revenue

Net
income

Other
comprehensive income

\ 47,015,938

9,558,322

37,457,616

69,033,233

21,193,748

21,193,748

Livedoor Career Co., Ltd.

156,381

873

155,508

-

(5,983)

(5,983)

2,587,658

756,779

1,830,879

5,849,242

121,842

121,842

NHN-PCCS HK Limited

108,913

30,371

78,542

-

(7,617)

(7,617)

Studio Hon Corp.

490,944

10,287,281

(9,796,337)

133,333

(2,656,668)

(2,656,668)

24,992,969

2,200

24,990,769

-

(509,231)

(509,231)

\ 22,318,082

-

22,318,082

-

(5,204)

(5,204)

LINE Business Partners Corporation

Assets

Liabilities

Equity

Revenue

Net
income

\ 495,533,329

337,935,849

157,597,480

630,613,638

22,645,947

15,927,177

52,466,235

20,702,943

31,763,292

28,294,149

304,580

(1,790,526)

381,683,825

140,863,623

240,820,202

365,748,298

(27,786,595)

(27,786,595)

82,832

32,052

50,780

-

(5,975,549)

(5,975,549)

NHN USA, Inc.

21,019,278

474,937

20,544,341

1,924,775

(2,879,376)

(2,879,376)

NHN China Corp.

11,888,201

2,444,293

9,443,908

22,670,846

(502,213)

(502,213)

Name of subsidiaries

Reason

NHN Vietnam Co., Ltd.

5,606,149

1,061,166

4,544,983

98,371

(956,311)

(956,311)

BrainpubCorp.

Obtained controlling interest through acquisition

NHN Singapore Pte., Ltd.

2,759,778

107,549

2,652,229

-

(581,263)

(581,263)

Camp Mobile Corp.

Obtained controlling interest through establishment of new entity

151,698,681

1,262,236

150,436,445

248,812

2,366,038

3,293,193

LINE Plus Corp.

Obtained controlling interest through establishment of new entity

SearchSolution Corp.

5,302,456

611,391

4,691,065

1,724,900

303,025

303,025

LINE Euro-Americas Corp.

Obtained controlling interest through establishment of new entity

Game Marketing & Business Corp.

1,600,417

596,155

1,004,262

1,681,674

(148,981)

(148,981)

Amazingsoft Corp.

Obtained controlling interest through additional acquisition

477,958

84,658

393,300

884,222

69,007

69,007

LINE Fukuoka Corporation

Obtained controlling interest through establishment of new entity

Quicket Corp.

Obtained controlling interest through additional acquisition

Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.8

Obtained controlling interest through acquisition

Iconnect Co., Ltd.

Obtained controlling interest through acquisition

ForSchooner Inc.

Obtained controlling interest through acquisition

Funways Corp.

Obtained controlling interest through acquisition

NAVER Business Platform Corp.
NAVER I&S Corp.
LINE Corp.
NHN Global Limited

NHN Investment Corp.

N-Visions Corp.
Wisecat, Inc.

KTB-NHN China Private Equity Fund
KTB/NHN China Ventures I Ltd.

Consolidated subsidiaries that have been included in the
consolidated financial statements for the first time for the year
ended December 31, 2013 are as follows:

10,967,700

10,574,941

392,759

7,765,782

(162,189)

(708,477)

Orange Crew Corp.

6,144,742

2,361,836

3,782,906

1,022,841

(10,725,185)

(11,050,134)

NHN Arts Corp.

2,902,171

3,641,682

(739,511)

727,131

(4,834,686)

(4,834,686)

NHN & Start new Technology Project Investment Trust No.1

7,476,012

57,278

7,418,734

-

(81,266)

(81,266)

KTB CLN Linked Private Securities Investment Trust

10,120,076

698

10,119,378

-

47,107

47,107

Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.3

12,066,766

11,207

12,055,559

-

2,200,615

2,200,615

Dancing Anchovy Entertainment, Inc

Obtained controlling interest through acquisition

9,990,406

3,638

9,986,768

-

(528,273)

(528,273)

Dvine Interactive Co., Ltd.

Obtained controlling interest through acquisition

Woori Levered Golden KP Private Placement Securities Investment Trust

20,066,934

3,471

20,063,463

-

40,582

40,582

Gogolook Co., Ltd

Obtained controlling interest through establishment of new entity

NHN Search Marketing Corp.

18,218,998

7,918,870

10,300,128

26,430,003

4,174,023

3,512,842

Incomms Corp.

8,128,493

4,706,950

3,421,543

17,150,351

917,901

525,335

Gplus Corp.

7,700,089

3,522,802

4,177,287

14,083,654

985,667

968,549

Greenweb Service Corp.

7,647,142

5,244,319

2,402,823

18,974,353

325,516

(358,470)

16,213,063

19,367,009

(3,153,946)

41,884,548

(1,635,996)

(4,919,777)

CommPartners Corp.

1,368,538

1,175,946

192,592

3,870,477

32,624

(240,522)

NHST Japan Corp.

6,477,997

3,762,361

2,715,636

21,897,699

602,792

602,792

NHN ST Corp.

6,147,163

630,417

5,516,746

23,074,800

998,601

998,601

Mediator Corp.

2,096,704

2,124,498

(27,794)

8,091,289

347,908

347,908

\ 867,619

14,985

852,634

3,339

(1,574,772)

(1,574,772)

Hyundai Korea Paper Bond Fund No.3

NHN Technology Service Corp.

Sync Corp.

[Continued]
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Consolidated subsidiariesthat have been excluded in the
consolidated financial statements forthe year ended December
31, 2013 are as follows:
Name of subsidiaries

Reason

Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.3

Disposition of controlling interest

KTB CLN Linked Private Securities Investment Trust

Disposition of controlling interest

Studio HonCorp.

Disposition of controlling interest

NHN Global Limited

Liquidation

NHN-PCCS HK Limited

Liquidation

NHN Japan Corp.

Spin-off
[Continued]
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⑤ Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Name of subsidiaries

Reason

NHN USA Inc.

Spin-off

NHN Singapore Pte., Ltd.

Spin-off

NHN Investment Corp.

Spin-off

Game Marketing & Business Corp.

Spin-off

Wisecat Inc.

Spin-off

Orange Crew Corp.

Spin-off

Dancing Anchovy Entertainment, Inc.

Spin-off

NHN & Start new Technology Project Investment Cooperative No.1

Spin-off

Gplus Corp.

Spin-off

NHST Japan Corp.

Spin-off

NHN Service Technology Corp.

Spin-off

Mediator Corp.

Spin-off

Sync Corp.

Spin-off

KTB-NHN China Private Equity Fund

Spin-off

KTB/NHN China Ventures I Ltd.

Spin-off

Funways Corp.

Spin-off

② Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are accounted for
separately from the Company’s ownership interests in a subsidiary.
Each component of net profit or loss and other comprehensive
income is attributed to the owners of the Company and noncontrolling interest holders, even when the allocation reduces the
non-controlling interest balance below zero.
③ Loss of control

If the Company loses control of subsidiaries, the Company
derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the former subsidiaries
from the consolidated statement of financial position and
recognizes the gain or loss associated with the loss of control
attributable to the former controlling interest. Meanwhile, the
Company recognizes any investment retained in the former
subsidiaries at its fair value when control is lost.
④ Associates and jointly controlled entities (equity method investees)

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and
operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the
Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net
assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and
obligations for its liabilities.
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Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities are initially
recognized at cost and subsequently accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. The carrying amount of investments
in associates and jointly controlled entities is increased or
decreased to recognize the Group’s share of the profits or losses
and changes in the Group’s proportionate interest of the investee
after the date of acquisition. Distributions received from an
investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment.
If an associate or jointly controlled entity uses accounting policies
different from those of the Company for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made
to the consolidated financial statements. As of and during the
periods presented in the consolidated financial statements, no
adjustments were made in applying the equity method.
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity
accounted investee, the carrying amount of that interest, including
any long-term investments, is reduced to nil, and the recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the
investee.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Intra-group balances and transactions, including income and
expenses and any unrealized income and expenses and balance
of trade accounts and notes receivable and payable arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized gains arising
from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated
against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as
unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

(2) Business Combination
The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The
consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured
at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any
goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain
on a bargain purchase is recognized in profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to
the issue of debt or equity securities.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are
generally recognized in profit or loss.
Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at
the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as
equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for
within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.
If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required
to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s employees
(acquiree’s awards), then all or a portion of the amount of the
acquirer’s replacement awards is included in measuring the
consideration transferred in the business combination. This
determination is based on the market-based measure of the
replacement awards compared with the market-based measure
of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement
awards relate to pre-combination service.

(3) Foreign currency
① Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective
functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to the
functional currency using the reporting date’s exchange rate.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair
value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are
recognized in profit or loss, except for differences arising on the
retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments, a financial
liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign
operation, or qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognized
in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
② Foreign operations

If the presentation currency of the Group is different from a
foreign operation’s functional currency, the financial statements of
the foreign operation are translated into the presentation currency
using the following methods:
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, whose functional
currency is not the currency of a hyperinflationary economy, are
translated to presentation currency at exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations
are translated to functional currency at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign currency differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on the acquisition of that foreign operation is
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation. Thus they
are expressed in the functional currency of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.
When a foreign operation is disposed of, the relevant amount in
the translation is transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit
or loss on disposal. On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the relevant proportion of such
cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interest. In
any other partial disposal of a foreign operation, the relevant
proportion is reclassified to profit or loss.
Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation, the settlement
of which is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable
future and which in substance is considered to form part of the
net investment in the foreign operation, are recognized in other
comprehensive income in the translation reserve.
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(6) Non-derivative financial liabilities
③ Foreign exchange difference in net investment for overseas branch

Foreign exchange differences arise from a monetary item
receivable from or payable to an overseas branch that are
not expect to be settled in the reasonably estimated future
are assumed to be a part of net investments, recognizing the
differences as other comprehensive income and reclassified to net
income at the time of disposition of the net investments.

(4) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are used by the
Group in management of its short-term commitments. Generally
equity investments are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
However, redeemable preference shares, for which the period
from the acquisition to redemption is short, are classified as cash
and cash equivalents.

(5) Non-derivative financial assets
The Group recognizes and measures non-derivative financial
assets by the following four categories: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
Group recognizes financial assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
Upon initial recognition, non-derivative financial assets are
measured at their fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the asset’s acquisition.
① Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as financial assets are classified at fair
value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated
as such upon initial recognition. Upon initial recognition,
transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss when incurred.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.
② Held-to-maturity financial assets

A non-derivative financial asset with a fixed or determinable
payment and fixed maturity, for which the Group has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity, are classified as held-tomaturity investments. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-tomaturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
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Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
except for loans and receivables of which the effect of discounting
is immaterial.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial
liabilities in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of financial liabilities. The Group
recognizes financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial liability.

④ Available-for-sale financial assets

① Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

③ Loans and receivables

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments or loans and receivables.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value,
which changes in fair value, net of any tax effect, recorded in
other comprehensive income in equity. Investments in equity
instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost.
When a financial asset is derecognized or impairment losses are
recognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are
recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.
⑤ Derecognition of a financial asset

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest
in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the
Group is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred financial assets, the Group continues
to recognize the transferred financial assets and recognizes
financial liabilities for the consideration received.
⑥ Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position only when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is the intention
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading or designated as such upon
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss. Upon
initial recognition, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
② Other financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as other financial
liabilities. At the date of initial recognition, other financial liabilities
are measured at fair value minus transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The Group derecognizes a financial liability from the consolidated
statement of financial position when it is extinguished (i.e. when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires).

(7) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are
recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
When the Group repurchases its share capital, the amount of
the consideration paid is recognized as a deduction from equity
and classified as treasury shares. The profits or losses from the
Item

purchase, disposal, reissue, or retirement of treasury shares are
not recognized as current profit or loss. If the Group acquires
and retains treasury shares, the consideration paid or received is
directly recognized in equity.

(8) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured and recognized
initially at cost. The cost includes any other costs directly
attributable to bring the assets to a working condition for their
intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing the
assets and restoring the site on which they are located.
The cost of replacing a part of property, plant and equipment
is included in the carrying amount of the asset or recognized
as a separate asset as necessary if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow into the
Group and if the cost can be reliably measured. Accordingly, the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The cost
of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in current profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment is computed using
the straight-line method based on the depreciable amount of the
assets over the useful lives of the respective assets as provided
below. Land is not depreciated. A component that is significant
compared to the total cost of property, plant and equipment is
depreciated over its separate useful life.
Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item and recognized in non-operating revenues or
expenses.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:

Estimated useful lives (years)

Buildings

30

Structures

10

Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery
Others

5
3~5
3
4~6
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Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year-end, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, and adjusted, if appropriate. The change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

(9) Borrowing costs
The Group capitalizes borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognized in expense as incurred. A qualifying asset is an asset
that requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale. Financial assets and inventories that are
manufactured or otherwise produced over a short period of time
are not qualifying assets. Assets that are ready for their intended
use or sale when acquired are not qualifying assets.
To the extent that the Group borrows funds specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Group determines the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual
borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period
less any investment income on the temporary investment of those
borrowings. The Group immediately recognizes other borrowing
costs as an expense. To the extent that the Group borrows funds
generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the Group shall determine the amount of borrowing costs

eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization rate to
the expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate shall be
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs that
the Group capitalizes during a period shall not exceed the amount
of borrowing costs incurred during that period.

(10) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially measured at cost, and recognized at
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses after initial recognition.
Intangible assets except goodwill are amortized using the
straight-line method over the useful lives of the respective assets
as provided below. The residual value of intangible assets is
assumed to be zero. However, as there are no foreseeable limits
to the periods over which certain intangible assets are expected
to be available for use, these intangible assets are regarded as
having indefinite useful lives and not amortized.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period
are as follows:

Item

Estimated useful lives (years)

Industrial property rights

5

Computer software costs

5

Others

The amortization periods and methods for intangible assets with
finite useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end. The
amortization periods and methods for intangible assets with
infinite useful lives is reviewed each period to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate.
① Goodwill

Goodwill arising from business combinations is recognized as
the excess of the acquisition cost of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Any deficit is a bargain purchase that is recognized in profit or
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loss. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.
② Researchand development

Expenditures on research activities, undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and
understanding, are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Development expenditures are capitalized only if development
costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits
are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset.
Other development expenditures are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred.
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③ Subsequent expenditures

Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditures on
internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred.

(11) Government grants
Government grants are not recognized unless there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the grant’s conditions
and that the grant will be received.
Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
deducted in calculating the carrying amount of the asset. The
grant is recognized in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable
asset as a reduced depreciation expense.

(12) Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is
assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired
if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset that can be estimated reliably. However, losses expected
as a result of future events, regardless of likelihood, are not
recognized.
Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity
securities) are impaired can include significant financial distress of
issuers of financial assets or debtor, default or delinquency by a
debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms
that the Company would not consider otherwise, indications that
a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an
active market for a security, or the existence of observable data
that shows the negative effect on expected future cash flows of
the group of financial assets after the initial recognition can be
reliably estimated, though the decrease in expected future cash
flows of individual financial assets cannot be reliably estimated.
In addition, for an investment in an equity security classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of
impairment.
If financial assets have objective evidence that they are impaired,
impairment losses should be measured and recognized.

① Financial assets measured at amortized cost
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at
amortized cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying
amount and the present value of its estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. If it is
not practicable to obtain the instrument’s estimated future cash
flows, impairment losses would be measured by using prices
from any observable current market transactions. The Group can
recognize impairment losses directly or establish a provision to
cover impairment losses. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed either
directly or by adjusting an allowance account.
② Financial assets carried at cost

An impairment loss in respect of a equity securities measured
at acquisition cost is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are
not reversed.
③ Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial
asset has been recognized in other comprehensive income
and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has not
been derecognized. Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss
for an investment in an equity instrument classified as availablefor-sale is not reversed through profit or loss. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as availablefor-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit
or loss, the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the
reversal recognized in profit or loss.

(13) Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other
than assets arising from employee benefits, deferred tax assets
and non-current assets held for sale, are reviewed at the end of
the reporting period to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for
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use, irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment,
are tested for impairment annually by comparing their recoverable
amount to their carrying amount.
The Group estimates the recoverable amount of an individual
asset. If it is impossible to measure the individual recoverable
amount of an asset, then the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of cash-generating unit (“CGU”). A CGU is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU
is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. The value in use is estimated by applying a pre-tax discount
rate that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU for which
estimated future cash flows have not been adjusted, to the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset or CGU.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an
asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
CGU that is expected to benefit from the synergies arising from
the goodwill acquired. Any impairment identified at the CGU
level first reduce the carrying value of goodwill and then is used
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the CGU
on a pro rata basis. Except for impairment losses in respect of
goodwill which are never reversed, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

(14) Employee benefits
① Short-term employee benefit

② Defined contribution plans

When an employee has rendered service to the Group during
a period, the Group recognizes the contribution payable to a
defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as a liability
(accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due
for service before the end of the reporting period, the Group
recognizes that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment leads to a reduction in future payments or a
cash refund.
③ Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other
than defined contribution plans. The Group’s net obligation in
respect of its defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The fair value of any
plan assets is deducted.
The calculation is performed annually by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method. The discount rate is the
yield at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in
which the benefits are expected to be paid. The Group recognizes
all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in
retained earnings immediately.
The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the
net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result
of contributions and benefit payments. Consequently, the net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) now comprises:
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation, interest income on
plan assets, and interest on the effect on the asset ceiling.

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits that are
due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service. When an
employee has rendered service to the Group during an accounting
period, the Group recognizes the undiscounted amount of shortterm employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan
is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.
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(15) Share-based payment

(18) Finance income and finance costs

The Group has granted share options to its employees. For
equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the Group
measures the goods or services received, and the corresponding
increase in equity as a capital adjustment at the fair value of
the goods or services received, unless that fair value cannot be
estimated reliably. If the Group cannot reliably estimate the fair
value of the goods or services received, the Group measures their
value, and the corresponding increase in equity, indirectly, by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested
(including available-for-sale financial assets), dividend income,
gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, changes
in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, and gains on hedging instruments that are recognized in
profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in profit
or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognized in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s right
to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted
securities is the ex-dividend date.

(16) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
The risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround events and
circumstances are taken into account in reaching the best estimate
of a provision. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined at the present value of the
expected future cash flows.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed.
A provision shall be used only for expenditures for which the
provision was originally recognized.

(17) Revenue
① Services

Revenue from services rendered is recognized, only if it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and these benefits can be measured reliably in profit or loss, in
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction. The
stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work
performed.
② Commissions

When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as
the principal in a transaction, the revenue recognized is the net
amount of commission made by the Group.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings,
unwinding of the discount on provisions, dividends on preference
shares classified as liabilities, changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, impairment losses
recognized on financial assets, and losses on hedging instruments
that are recognized in profit or loss. Borrowing costs that are not
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

(19) Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current
tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items
recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
① Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the
taxable profit or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. The
taxable profit is different from the accounting profit for the year
since the taxable profit is calculated excluding the temporary
differences, which will be taxable or deductible in determining
taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods, and non-taxable or nondeductible items from the accounting profit.
② Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized, using the liability method, in respect
of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
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(21) Operating segment
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. However,
deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary differences
arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
The Group recognizes a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except to the extent
that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. A deferred
tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that the differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary difference can be
utilized.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.
The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
if, and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(20) Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares
held. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares
held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, such
as share options granted to employees.
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The Group identifies segments based on the internal report
reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to segments and assess
its performance. As described in note 5, the Group has three
reportable segments, which are the Group’s strategic business
units. The strategic business units are managed because they
provide different services and they require different technology
and marketing strategies.
Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. As it is not possible to
allocate operating expenses and property, plant and equipment
by operating segment due to inherent nature of the Group’s
business, that information is not presented by operating segment.

(22) Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business
that represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale,
or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the
comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive income is
re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the
start of the comparative period.

(23) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following amendment to existing standards have been
published but not yet enforced for annual periods beginning after
January 1, 2013, and the Group has not early adopted them.
Management believes the impact of the amendments on the
Group consolidated financial statements is not significant.
Amendments to K-IFRS No. 1032, Financial instruments:
Presentation
The standard clarifies criteria of when the Group is able to
offset financial assets and liabilities. The standard will be applied
retrospectively for the Group’s annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2014.
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4. Financial Risk Management
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of
financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk
This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to
each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s
management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are
included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

(1) Risk management framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management
framework.
The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify
and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.

The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.
The Group’s Audit Committee oversees how management
monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the
Group. The Group Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight
role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and
ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

(2) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables
from customers and investments.
Maximum amounts of possible financial loss to the Group due to
credit risk as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

\ 435,240,852

395,397,424

-

79,148,570

2,819,521

14,728,048

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

235,533,553

251,817,860

Short-term financial instruments

295,369,520

645,254,201

Cash and cash equivalents (*)
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments

Long-term financial instruments
Trade and other receivables
Total

9,527,095

8,972,844

347,923,030

372,621,606

\ 1,326,413,571

1,767,940,553

(*) Cash on hand has been excluded as it has no credit risk.
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(3) Liquidity risk
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The Group regularly
performs credit assessment of customers and counterparties
considering their financial position and historical data in order to
manage the credit risk.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that
represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and
other receivables and investments. The main components of this
allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually
significant exposures, and a collective loss component established
for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been
incurred but not yet identified.
The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical
data of payment statistics for similar financial assets.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty
in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group’s reputation.

① Currency risk

Book values of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group monitors its cash flow through long-term and shortterm management strategies and ensures it has sufficient cash on
demand to meet expected operational expenses.
Book values of financial liabilities based on the remaining
maturities as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

December 31, 2013
Book value

Contractual
cash outflow

Payable in less than
one year

Payable in one to
five years

\ 162,163,881

162,163,881

162,069,035

94,846

85,911,237

86,273,614

86,273,614

-

Debentures (including current portion)

115,069,900

124,362,060

8,347,267

116,014,793

Long-term borrowings (including current portion)

150,699,000

151,502,626

151,502,626

-

\ 513,844,018

524,302,181

408,192,542

116,109,639

Trade and other payables
Short-term borrowings

Total

Other receivables

Trade receivables

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2012

Item

Trade and other payables
Short-term borrowings

December 31, 2013
Currency

Amount

Exchangerate

Won equivalent

USD

2,647,759.10

1,055.30

\ 2,794,180

JPY

2,950,988,534.00

10.05

29,647,401

AUD

155.06

939.96
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HKD

902,950.20

136.09

122,882

EUR

18,908.30

1,456.26

27,535

SGD

755,226.57

832.75

628,915

NZD

19,725.86

874.26

17,246

TWD

8,092,441.00

35.32

285,825

THB

5,919,601.36

32.14

190,256

USD

2,807,541.89

1,055.30

2,962,799

CNY

16,489,088.00

174.09

2,870,585

IDR

15,369,552.00

0.09

1,328

JPY

25,464,940.00

10.05

255,836

USD

2,952,636.57

1,055.30

3,115,917

JPY

2,051,090.00

10.05

20,606

HKD

657,570.00

136.09

89,489

TWD

5,990,928.00

35.32

211,600

Monetary assets:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

currencies other than the functional currency as of December 31,
2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Book value

Contractual
cash outflow

Payable in less than
one year

Payable in one to
five years

\ 190,556,536

190,556,536

190,378,291

178,245

2,748,641

2,759,522

2,759,522

-

Total

\ 43,242,546

Monetary liabilities:
Other payables

USD

738,176.03

1,055.30

\ 778,997

JPY

20,869,173.00

10.05

209,664

174.09

43,684

138,363

138,363

138,363

-

CNY

250,927.11

Debentures (including current portion)

100,000,000

103,420,000

103,420,000

-

EUR

709,244.50

1,456.26

1,032,844

Long-term borrowings (including current portion)

227,287,535

230,610,769

35,037,801

195,572,968

IDR

4,005,050,000.00

0.09

346,036

\ 520,731,075

527,485,190

331,733,977

195,751,213

HKD

12,000.00

136.09

1,633

THB

1,654,998.96

32.14

53,192

PHP

307,717.20

23.78

7,318

JPY

15,000,000,000.00

10.05

150,699,000

Derivative liabilities

Total

(4) Market risk
The amounts above include estimated interest from financial
liabilities scheduled to be paid, but does not reflect the effects of
application of any set-off agreements.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect
the future cash flow or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments the Group holds. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
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Long and short-term borrowings
Total

\ 153,172,368
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(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

December 31, 2012
Currency

Potential impacts on profit before income taxes as a result of
change in exchange rates as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
would have been as follows:

Amount

Exchangerate

Won equivalent

USD

26,821,346.85

1,071.10

\ 28,728,345

JPY

74,122,672.00

12.48

924,680

CNY

10,162.00

171.88

1,747

AUD

11,579.90

1,111.43

12,870

HKD

14,832.76

138.18

2,050

Others

EUR

1,739.00

1,416.26

2,463

Total

GBP

3,002.34

1,730.95

5,197

SGD

790,512.00

875.48

692,077

Other receivables

USD

1,957.89

1,071.10

2,097

Accrued revenues

USD

129,721.00

1,071.10

138,944

Trade receivables

USD

889,484.83

1,071.10

952,727

TWD

1,879,167.00

36.90

69,341

USD

600,000.00

1,071.10

642,660

(In thousands of Korean won)

Monetary assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term loans receivable
Total

\ 32,175,198

Long-term borrowings

USD

1,215,126.51

1,071.10

\ 1,301,522

JPY

11,503,319.00

12.48

143,504

HKD

309,999.99

138.18

42,836

TWD

376,152.99

36.90

13,880

JPY

15,000,000,000.00

12.48

187,200,000

Total

December 31, 2012

Ifincreased by 5%

If decreased by 5%

Ifincreased by 5%

If decreased by 5%

USD

\ 404,695

(404,695)

1,458,163

(1,458,163)

JPY

(6,049,241)

6,049,241

(9,317,191)

9,317,191

148,055

(148,055)

36,451

(36,451)

\ (5,496,491)

5,496,491

(7,822,577)

7,822,577

② Interest rate risk

Interest bearing financial assets and liabilities as of December 31,
2013 and 2012 are as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

Item
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

Monetary liabilities:
Other payables

December 31, 2013

Currency

Total

December 31, 2012

Fixed rate

Variable rate

Fixed rate

Variable rate

\ 457,673,803

321,532,111

858,548,676

352,591,048

(160,292,407)

(191,387,730)

(197,257,477)

(132,789,410)

\ 297,381,396

130,144,381

661,291,199

219,801,638

Potential impacts on stockholders’ equity and profit (loss) for one
year from the reporting date as a result of change in interest rate
would have been as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

\ 188,701,799
December 31, 2013
Item

Stockholders’ equity

Profit (loss)

If increased by 0.5% P

If decreased by 0.5% P

If increased by 0.5% P

If decreased by 0.5% P

Interest expense

\ (725,359)

725,359

(725,359)

725,359

Interest income

\ 1,218,607

(1,218,607)

1,218,607

(1,218,607)
(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2012
Item

Stockholders’ equity
If increased by 0.5% P
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Profit (loss)

If decreased by 0.5% P

If increased by 0.5% P

If decreased by 0.5% P

Interest expense

\ (503,272)

503,272

(503,272)

503,272

Interest income

\ 1,336,320

(1,336,320)

1,336,320

(1,336,320)
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③ Other market price risk

Market price risk arises from the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets that
the Company possesses. Major investments within the portfolio
are managed separately and the approval of the board of
directors is necessary for important acquisition or sale decisions.

①T
 he fair values of financial instruments, together with the

The effect on profit for the period and other comprehensive
income if the price of listed equity financial assets, classified as the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and availablefor-sale financial assets that the Group possesses, fluctuates by
5% as of December 31, 2013 is as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item
Profitfor the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax effect

If increased by 5%

If decreased by 5%

\ 248,208

(248,208)

\ 5,286,665

(5,286,665)

carrying amounts as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as
follows:

Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Book value

Fair value

Book value

Fair value

\ 242,082,589

242,082,589

280,975,949

280,975,949

182,009,601

182,009,601

67,539,785

67,539,785

424,092,190

424,092,190

348,515,734

348,515,734

Cash and cash equivalents

435,257,840

435,257,840

395,434,661

395,434,661

Time deposits, etc

304,896,615

304,896,615

654,227,045

654,227,045

Trade and other receivables

347,923,030

347,923,030

372,621,606

372,621,606

Financial assets:

Financial assets recognized at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets (*)
Subtotal
Financial assets recognized at amortized cost

(5) Capital management
The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business.

The Group uses the debt ratio as an indicator of capital
management. The debt ratio is calculated by dividing total debt
by total equity.
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Total liabilities

\ 1,222,437,824

1,023,748,395

Total equity

\ 1,475,309,016

1,903,568,275

82.86%

53.78%

Debt ratio

(6) Fair values
The Group measures the fair value of financial instrument as
follows:
- In the case of current assets and liabilities, the fair value
approximates their carrying amounts.
- In the case of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

and available-for-sale financial assets traded, the fair values
are measured at the closing bid price quoted in the market at
the end of the reporting period. Meanwhile, the fair value of
unquoted investments is calculated using the valuation results
from external pricing service companies.

2,819,521

2,819,521

14,728,048

14,728,048

Subtotal

Held-to-maturity financial assets

1,090,897,006

1,090,897,006

1,437,011,360

1,437,011,360

Total

1,514,989,196

1,514,989,196

1,785,527,094

1,785,527,094

-

-

138,363

138,363

Trade and other payables

162,163,881

162,163,881

190,556,536

190,556,536

Short-term borrowings

241,583,304

241,583,304

135,495,516

135,495,516

Long-term borrowings

110,096,833

110,096,833

194,540,660

194,540,660

513,844,018

513,844,018

520,592,712

520,592,712

\ 513,844,018

513,844,018

520,731,075

520,731,075

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities recognized at fair value
Derivative liabilities
Financial liabilities recognized at amortized cost

Subtotal
Total

(*) Available-for-sale financial assets with no quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured have been excluded.

② Fair value hierarchy

The Group classified the levels of the fair value hierarchy for the
financial instruments, which are estimated as fair value on the
consolidated financial statements, based on the inputs used in fair
value estimation as follows:
“Level 1” indicates quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. Instruments included in “Level 1” are
composed of listed equity securities that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.
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The Group uses valuation techniques to estimate fair values
of financial instruments which are not traded in an active
market. If the significant inputs which are required for fair value
measurements are observable directly or indirectly in a market,
the instrument is classified as “Level 2”. On the other hand, if the
significant inputs are not based on observable market data, that
instrument is classified as “Level 3”.
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5. Operating Segments

The fair values of financial instruments based on the fair value
hierarchy as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Level 1

Item

Level 2

Level 3

Total

December 31, 2013
Financial assets:

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets

Total

\ 16,024,180

-

226,058,409

242,082,589

139,489,836
155,514,016

-

42,519,765

182,009,601

-

268,578,174

424,092,190

(1) Operating segments

Item

37,816,505

-

243,159,444

280,975,949

Available-for-sale financial assets

21,749,835

-

45,789,950

67,539,785

\ 59,566,340

-

288,949,394

348,515,734

-

-

138,363

138,363

Total
Financial liabilities:

Derivative liabilities

As to recurring fair value measurements categorized within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy, reconciliation from the opening

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Balance at the beginning of year

Available-for-sale financial assets

2013

2012

2013

2012

\ 243,159,444

244,985,884

45,789,950

42,790,054

Unrealized gain or loss
Included in net income

Revenue

Ratio

\ 1,745,399,759

75.50%

1,560,484,948

86.76%

Contents providing

417,381,667

18.05%

62,079,398

3.45%

Others

149,181,372

6.45%

176,092,898

9.79%

\ 2,311,962,798

100.00%

1,798,657,244

100.00%

Included in other comprehensive income

4,753,091

-

2,882,795

-

-

415,135

(2,650,182)

Acquisition and disposition

Total

(*) The Group reorganized its business units and reportable segments and comparative information was restated accordingly.

(3) Geographical information
As it is impossible to determine each operating segment’s profit
for the year due to the inherent nature of the Group’s business,
that information is not presented by operating segment.

Non-current assets
2012

2013

2012

\ 1,735,743,847

1,602,616,812

795,827,576

572,898,863

Japan

545,084,599

193,344,848

134,025,985

138,404,834

31,134,352

2,695,584

14,445,820

5,876,780

\ 2,311,962,798

1,798,657,244

944,299,381

717,180,477

Domestic

270,965,737

7,500,979

10,671,799

Others

Disposition

(210,547,908)

(277,545,268)

-

(7,904,516)

Total

(23,628,797)

-

(11,186,299)

-

\ 226,058,409

243,159,444

42,519,765

45,789,950
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Revenue
2013

216,500,000

Spin-off

The following table provides information for each geographical
region about revenue for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012, and non-current assets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.
(In thousands of Korean won)

Acquisition

Balance at the end of year
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Advertising

Item
575,670

2012
Ratio

balance to the closing balance for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 are as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

2013
Revenue

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

(2) Information for each operating segment
Operating revenue information by segment for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2012
Financial assets:

and 2012 are related to continuing business sectors.

The Group identified its operating segments as advertising,
contents providing and others. The main clients of the Group are
numerous individual and corporate internet users and advertisers.
As discussed in note 31, the Group spun off Hangame business
sector in 2013, operating revenue presented in operating
segments information for the years ended December 31, 2013
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6. Acquisitions of Subsidiary

(3) G
 oodwills recorded as a result of the acquisitions are as
follows:

(1) Business combination

(In thousands of Korean won)

On January 17, 2013 the Group obtained control of Amazingsoft
Corp., by acquiring additional 55% of the shares in the company
at \5,776 million in addition to the 45% of the shares held by
the Group. As a result, Amazingsoft Corp. became a wholly
owned subsidiary of NAVER Corporation. On February 28, 2013,
the Group obtained control of Brainpub Corp., which develops
mobile application contents, by acquiring 100% of the shares in
the company at \3,500 million. On April 10, 2013, the Group
obtained control of ForSchooner Inc., which provides IT system
services, by acquiring 100% of the shares in the company at
\1,284 million. On May 3, 2013, the Group obtained control of
Iconnect Co., Ltd., which develops mobile contents, by acquiring
100% of the shares in the company at \1,500 million. On May
24, 2013, the Group obtained control of Funways Corp., which
develops mobile games, by acquiring 60% of the shares in the
company at \2,400 million. On July 19, 2013, the Group obtained
control of Dancing Anchovy Entertainment, Inc., which develops
smartphone games, by acquiring 50.1% of the shares in the
company at \5,332 million. On July 29, 2013, the Group obtained
control of Dvine Interactive Co., Ltd., which develops web

designs and operates online information and database services,
by acquiring 100% of the shares in the company at \500 million.
On November 5, 2013, the Group obtained control of Quicket
Corp., by acquiring additional 17.3% of the shares in the company
at \1,814 million in addition to the 33.7% of the shares held by
the Group. On December 24, 2013, the Group obtained control
of Gogolook Co., Ltd., which operates marketing of mobile
application, by acquiring 70% of the shares in the company at
\18,789 million.

Item

Total consideration transferred
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets
Goodwill

Amazingsoft Corp.

BrainpubCorp.

For
Schooner
Inc.

Iconnect
Co., Ltd.

Funways
Corp.

Dancing
Anchovy
Entertainment Inc.

Dvine Interactive Co.,
Ltd.

Quicket
Corp.

Gogolook
Co., Ltd

\ 10,501,855

3,500,000

1,283,865

1,500,000

2,400,000

5,332,375

500,000

5,355,000

18,789,216

5,152,944

340,594

(87,813)

512,175

1,451,320

(1,185,829)

(97,402)

821,917

7,442,488

\ 5,348,911

3,159,406

1,371,678

987,825

948,680

6,518,204

597,402

4,533,083

11,346,728

(4) Others

In 2013, the Group obtained controls of Amazingsoft Corp.,
Brainpub Corp., ForSchooner Inc., Iconnect Co., Ltd., Funways
Corp., Dancing Anchovy Entertainment, Inc., Dvine Interactive
Co., Ltd., Quicket Corp. and Gogolook Co., Ltd. However,
Funways Corp. and Dancing Anchovy Entertainment Inc. are
excluded from the consolidated entities due to the spin-off of
Hangame business sector. The Group expects enhancement of
capacity for development of software and mobile contents and
the Group’s IT system service.

In connection with the acquisitions, the Group incurred various
costs including external legal fees and due diligence costs. These
costs have been included in operating expenses in the Group’s

consolidated statement of comprehensive income. There are
no contingent consideration related to the acquisitions and
separately recognized transactions.

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are
as follows:

(2) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as

(In thousands of Korean won)

follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Amazingsoft Corp.

BrainpubCorp.

For
Schooner
Inc.

Iconnect
Co., Ltd.

Funways
Corp.

Dancing
Anchovy
Entertainment Inc.

Dvine Interactive Co.,
Ltd.

Quicket
Corp.

Gogolook
Co., Ltd

\ 2,812,565

249,660

480,389

246,212

1,451,320

1,280,821

1,105

250,970

7,357,601

Trade and other receivables

1,487,909

224,984

754,933

676,667

-

1,458,621

10,877

769,190

313,879

Property, plant and equipment

1,053,815

-

30,831

33,501

-

235,288

1,908

17,613

4,628

56,711

-

3,425

-

-

52,606

2,653

-

-

465,494

54,963

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

66,610

-

42,633

-

-

-

-

-

41,784

Trade and other payables

(521,160)

(99,135)

(496,003)

(258,070)

-

(144,967)

(13,945)

(14,515)

(259,629)

Borrowings

(269,000)

(89,878)

(904,021)

(100,000)

-

(3,999,998)

(100,000)

(25,494)

-

Deferred tax liabilities

-

-

-

(86,135)

-

(68,200)

-

(175,847)

(15,775)

Identifiable net assets

\ 5,152,944

340,594

(87,813)

512,175

1,451,320

(1,185,829)

(97,402)

821,917

7,442,488

Item

Cash and cash equivalents

Intangible assets
Long-term financial instruments
Deferred tax assets
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Item
Cash on hand
Demand deposits
Time deposits
Total

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

\ 16,988

37,237

395,518,473

361,400,260

39,722,379

33,997,164

\ 435,257,840

395,434,661

115

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Trade and Other Receivables

9. Investment Securities

(1) Trade and other receivables as of December 31, 2013 and

(1) Available-for-sale financial assets

2012 are as follows:

Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2012

Current

Non-current

Current

Non-current

\ 234,094,397

241,905

249,754,986

2,658,567

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(2,820,428)

(241,905)

(7,514,880)

(2,658,567)

Other receivables

93,554,747

19,089

28,280,358

-

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(5,778,289)

(19,089)

(6,635,458)

-

5,405,802

-

10,302,789

-

Loans

-

23,000

16,822,660

52,105,635

Allowance for doubtful accounts

-

-

-

(635,049)

Leasehold deposits

-

23,443,801

-

30,140,565

\ 324,456,229

23,466,801

291,010,455

81,611,151

Trade receivables

Accrued revenues

Total

(2) C
 hanges in allowance for doubtful accounts on trade and

other receivables for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item
Balance at the beginning of year
Write-off ofreceivables
Increase in (Reversal of) allowance
Spin-off (*)
Others
Balance at the end of year

2013

2012

\ 17,443,954

17,699,836

(2,264,615)

(6,480,073)

(296,522)

742,901

(5,497,732)

-

(525,374)

5,481,290

\ 8,859,711

17,443,954

(*) This represents the amount of allowance for doubtful accounts on trade and other receivables transferred to NHN Entertainment,the newly established entity due to the spin-off (Refer to
note 31).

(3) T
 he aging and impairment of trade receivables for each
follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Gross

Impairment

Gross

Impairment

\ 228,846,069

1,968,309

239,537,756

2,444,660

4,277,301

22,888

3,438,922

315,923

Six months to one year past maturity

266,973

166,095

497,259

197,240

Over one year past maturity

945,959

905,041

8,939,616

7,215,624

\ 234,336,302

3,062,333

252,413,553

10,173,447

Prior to maturity
Less than six months past maturity

Total
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December 31, 2012

Acquisition cost

Percentage of
ownership

Book Value

Book Value

Asiana Airlines, Inc. (*1)

-

-

-

10,215,583

SK Hynix,Inc. (*1)

-

-

-

10,214,524

Others

-

-

-

503,100

Subtotal

-

-

-

20,933,207

\ 5,603,617

7.14%

5,603,617

5,603,617

-

-

-

9,414,615

09-7 Korea Venture Fund No.15 (*3)

3,368,571

5.71%

3,368,571

3,780,000

Rekoo Media Limited

2,249,000

0.91%

2,249,000

4,598,751

236,771,909

9.54%

139,489,836

-

9,999,986

0.70%

9,999,986

-

Nepes Display Corporation (*5)

-

-

-

2,188,354

Wonil Co., Ltd. (*5)

-

-

-

3,000,000

UGInt Co.,Ltd. (*5)

-

-

-

3,001,500

DCG Systems Co.,Ltd. (*5)

-

-

-

3,191,223

2010KIF-Premier Fund (*5)

-

-

-

11,625,000

Ato H Corp. (*5)

-

-

-

3,000,000

Aeria Games & Entertainment, Inc. (*5)

-

-

-

19,186,705

Others

79,991,029

-

78,840,896

139,616,323

Subtotal

337,984,112

239,551,906

208,206,088

\ 337,984,112

239,551,906

229,139,295

Debt securities

Other securities
Shinhan Maritime No.1 Private Equity Fund
MiraeAsset Nice Private Equity Fund (*2)

NHN Entertainment Corporation (*4)
LOTTE Engineering & Construction Co.,Ltd

Total

category as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as

Item

Available-for-sale financial assets as of December 31, 2013 and
2012 are as follows:

(*1) In 2013, the Group collect the principal of debt security at maturity.
(*2) In 2013, the Group sold the security and the amount of \8,079 million, proceeds from sale in excess of carrying value, was recognized as profit a gain in profit or loss.
(*3) In 2013, the Group was refunded a portion of its investment, amounting to\411 million, in 09-7 Korea Venture Fund No.15. There is no change in the ownership after the refund.
(*4) In 2013, 2013, the Group acquired newly issued shares of NHN Entertainment Corp. allocated to treasury shares as a result of the spin-off of Hangame business. As of December 31, 2013,
the difference between fair value and acquisition cost of those shares was recognized as an item of other comprehensive loss, loss on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets, in the
separate statement of comprehensive income.
(*5) These investments were transferred to NHN Entertainment Corp., the newly established entity as a result of spin-off of Hangame business sector (Refer to note 31).
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(In thousands of Korean won)

(2) Held-to-maturity financial assets

Investee

Held-to-maturity financial assets as of December 31, 2013 and
2012 are as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

December 31, 2013

Acquisition cost

December 31, 2012

Current

Non-current

Current

Non-current

\ 3,796,206

-

2,819,521

-

3,502,000

Daiwa bonds

-

-

-

1,247,500

-

Rakuten bonds

-

-

-

6,236,048

-

NFFSHC bonds

-

-

-

3,742,500

-

\ 3,796,206

-

2,819,521

11,226,048

3,502,000

Japanese Government bonds

Total

10. Other Assets
Other assets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

December 31, 2013
Non-current

Current

Non-current

\ 2,332,949

-

47,268,851

61,684

25,673,681

18,703,755

26,877,282

29,939,510

Income tax refund receivables

1,470,110

-

142,791

-

Prepaid value added tax

4,858,376

-

352,511

-

71,246

-

13,705

-

\ 34,406,362

18,703,755

74,655,140

30,001,194

Prepaid expenses

Other
Total

December 31, 2012

Webzen Inc.(*4)

-

52,052,687

Stonebridge Early Stage Fund (*4)

-

4,944,202

Ko-FC LB Pioneer Champ 2010-10 Investment Trust (*4)

-

7,749,116

Smart Phone Contents Investment Limited (*4)

-

1,193,978

121,973

192,686

PT. Civitas Online (*4)

-

-

Geniusgames Corp. (*4)

-

2,502,600

BonAngels Pacemaker Fund (*2)

1,961,789

-

Korea Contents Mutual Aid Association (*3)

3,015,883

-

\ 10,672,200

81,538,477

Cloud Application Factory Corp.

Total

(*1) In 2013, the Group acquired additional 55% of the shares in Amazingsoft Corp. and the investee became a subsidiary of the Group. The difference between carrying value and fair value of
existing shares at the time of acquisition amounting to \579 million is recognized as loss on equity-accounted investees.
(*2) In 2013, the Group participated in the establishment of BonAngels Pacemaker Fund for support of the domestic IT industry and early stage companies. The Group invested \2,000 million
and acquired 26.32% of shares of BonAngels Pacemaker Fund.
(*3) In 2013, the Group acquired 45.01% of shares in Korea Contents Mutual Aid Association at \3,000 million for promoting domestic mobile contents industry.
(*4) These equity-accounted investees were transferred to NHN Entertainment Corp., the newly established entity as a result of spin-off of Hangame business sector (Refer to note 31).

December 31, 2012

Current

Advance payments

December 31, 2013

② Joint ventures

(In thousands of Korean won)

Investee

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

\ 2,928,331

2,870,985

429,325

-

Kan Communications Co., Ltd. (*1)

-

1,929,555

Neowiz NHN Asset Management Co., Ltd. (*2)

-

36,919,761

\ 3,357,656

41,720,301

Digital YTN Corp.
LINE Project Cooperative

Total

(*1) Kan Communications Co., Ltd., which was equally owned by NAVER Business Platform Corp. (formerly, NHN Business Platform Corp.) and KT Corp., was liquidated on May 7, 2013.
(*2) These equity-accounted investees were transferred to NHN Entertainment Corp., the newly established entity as a result of spin-off of Hangame business sector (Refer to note 31)

11. Equity-accounted investees

(2) T
 he overview of equity-accounted investees as of

(1) The details of equity-accounted investees as of December

December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follow:

31, 2013 and 2012 are as follow:

① Associates

① Associates
(In thousands of Korean won)

Investee

December 31

Software development and distribution

27.17%

27.17%

Korea

December 31

Software development and distribution

25.00%

25.00%

Amazingsoft Corp.

Korea

December 31

Software development and distribution

-

45.00%

Mediaweb Inc.

Korea

December 31

Online game distribution and advertising

-

23.80%

NetMania Co., Ltd.

Korea

1,987,476

Synapsoft Corp.

-

5,306,613

-

2,736,201

414,366

2,436,231

Amazingsoft Corp. (*1)
Mediaweb, Inc.(*4)

[Continued]
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20.00%

December 31

507,930
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20.00%

Korea

2,458,552

Synapsoft Corp.

Online payment service

Allat Corp.

\ 2,628,394

NetMania Co., Ltd.

December
31, 2012

Year-end

December 31, 2012

Allat Corp.

December
31, 2013

Location

December 31, 2013

Investee

Primary business

[Continued]
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December
31, 2013

December
31, 2012

Game and other software development and distribution

-

28.45%

December 31

Investment

-

27.27%

Korea

December 31

Investment

-

30.30%

Smart Phone Contents Investment Limited

Japan

December 31

Contents development for smartphones

-

49.95%

Cloud application factory Corp.

Korea

December 31

Software development and production

30.10%

30.10%

Indonesia

December 31

Online game distribution

-

49.00%

Geniusgames Corp.

Korea

December 31

Online game development

-

23.83%

BonAngels Pacemaker Fund

Korea

December 31

Investment

22.73%

-

Korea Contents Mutual Aid Association

Korea

December 31

Investing and lending funds to contents developers

45.01%

-

Investee

Location

Year-end

Webzen Inc.

Korea

December 31

Stonebridge Early Stage Fund

Korea

Ko-FC LB Pioneer Champ 2010-10 Fund

PT. Civitas Online

Primary business

② 2012

- Summary of financial information
As of December 31, 2012
Current Assets

Non-current
Assets

Current
liabilities

Non- current
liabilities

Revenue

Net income

Neowiz NHN Asset Management Co., Ltd.

\ 4,827,450

154,468,131

84,165,559

1,290,500

-

(307,246)

December
31, 2013

December
31, 2012

Digital contents distribution

50.00%

50.00%

December 31

Contents development for smartphone

50.00%

-

Korea

December 31

Real estate investment and lease

-

50.00%

Korea

December 31

Mobile advertising

-

50.00%

Year-end

Digital YTN Corp.

Korea

December 31

LINE Project Cooperative

Korea

Neowiz NHN Asset Management Co., Ltd
Kan Communications Co., Ltd.

Primary business

Other
Total
comprehend comprehend-sive income
sive income
-

(307,246)

- Additional financial information
(In thousands of Korean won)

As of December 31, 2012
Investee

Location

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Investee

② Joint ventures

Investee

(In thousands of Korean won)

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Cash and cash
equivalents

Current
financial
liabilities

Non-current
financial
liabilities

\ 389,340

84,161,599

1,290,500

Neowiz NHN Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Depreciation Amortization

-

-

Interest
income

Interest
expense

Income tax
expense

2,495

297,054

-

(4) Reconciliation of the summarized financial information

presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in the joint venture or associate

1) Associates
① 2013

- There are no material associates to the Group.

(3) F
 inancial information of associates and joint ventures as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are

② 2012

as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

1) Associates
① 2013

- There are no material associate to the Group.

Item

Net assets (A)

Percentage of
ownership (B)

Group’s share of
net assets (AxB)

Goodwill

Carrying
amount

Webzen,Inc.

\ 125,638,542

32.40%

40,706,060

11,346,627

52,052,687

② 2012
(In thousands of Korean won)

As of December 31, 2012
Investee

Webzen Inc.

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Current Assets

Non-current
Assets

Current
liabilities

Non- current
liabilities

Revenue

Net income

\ 48,630,487

110,390,619

13,766,059

19,616,505

57,536,268

2,423,661

Other
Total
comprehend comprehend-sive income
sive income
(560,744)

1,862,917

2) Joint ventures
① 2013

- There are no material associates to the Group.
② 2012

2) Joint ventures

Item

① 2013

Neowiz NHN Asset Management Co., Ltd.

- There are no material associate to the Group.
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(In thousands of Korean won)

Net assets (A)

Percentage of
ownership (B)

Group’s share of
net assets (AxB)

Carrying
amount

\ 73,839,522

50.00%

36,919,761

36,919,761
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(In thousands of Korean won)

(5) Aggregate carrying amount of all individually immaterial

Item

associates and joint ventures are as follow:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of
Item

Carrying amount

Individually immaterial associates
Individually Immaterial joint ventures

Profit or loss

Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive
income

\ 10,672,200

1,758,731

223,686

1,982,417

\ 3,357,656

(3,185,112)

(144,653)

(3,329,765)

② 2012

(In thousands of Korean won)

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of
Item

Carrying amount

Individually immaterial associates
Individually Immaterial joint ventures

Machinery

Furniture
and fixtures

-

Disposals

-

-

Depreciation (*2)

-

9,480,952

4,232,521

84,160,183

77,380

655,174

566,050

Decrease by spin-off

-

-

Effect of foreign exchange

-

(8,441)

(3,939)

Business combinations

-

205,046

Others

-

-

77,380

Government grants (*3)

Balance at December 31. 2013

Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive
income

\ 29,485,790

4,433,073

(229,071)

4,204,002

Balance at January 1, 2013

\ 4,800,540

(921,941)

-

(921,941)

Balance at December31, 2013

Vehicles

Others Construction-inprogress (*1)

Total

16,662,158

2,648,677 289,310,158

39,190,956

(32,667) (101,709,366)

(7,419,202)
15,449,453

699,354

-

(43,878) (10,952,394)

74,105

4,684,828

-

352,570,882

-

(40,636)

-

(109,201,871)

29,393

2,272,116

-

115,624,618

-

-

116,447

2,114,405

(6,492,552)

(123,250)

(453,210)

-

(18,065,284)

(9,933,319)

(253,048)

83,179

(739,475)

-

(10,855,043)

43,878

775,009

560,641

33,644

12,766

-

1,630,984

-

174,386

(1,172,975)

5,974

67,942

-

(924,673)

26,994,889

7,410,642 252,524,011

39,863,273

103,045

5,804,331

116,447

332,894,018

110,485,063 233,809,386

23,286,407 127,444,433

40,238,892

48,709

8,782,039

21,490,730

565,585,659

\ 229,226,395 254,220,449

36,206,230 154,546,219

41,616,634

62,287

8,339,802

67,347,308

791,565,324

Carrying amounts

(*1) As of December 31, the Company’s construction of Chuncheon training institute and other properties are in progress and the Company has spent \60,636 million in 2013 which is
recognized as construction-in-progress.
(*2) Depreciation amounting to \6,058 million is related to assets of Hangame business sector and is included in profit for the year from discontinued operations (Refer to note 31).
(*3) In 2013, the Company received government grants from Gangwon-do and Chuncheon-si for construction of NAVER High-tech Industrial Complex located at Chuncheon-si.

investees as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as
follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

-

\75,555,846

Webzen, Inc.

ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:
Land

(In thousands of Korean won)

Buildings

Structures

Machinery

Furniture
and fixtures

Vehicles

Others Construction-inprogress (*1)

Total

Acquisition cost

(1) Changes in property, plant and equipment for the year

Balance at January 1, 2012

ended December 31, 2013 are as follows:
Land

(2) C
 hanges in property, plant and equipment for the year

Item

12. Property, Plant and Equipment

(In thousands of Korean won)

Buildings

Structures

Machinery

Furniture
and fixtures

Vehicles

Others Construction-inprogress (*1)

Total

Acquisition cost

Acquisitions

Structures

Balance at January 1, 2013

Profit or loss

(6) Fair value of marketable securities of equity-accounted

Balance at January 1, 2013

Buildings

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

① 2013

Item

Land

\ 110,485,063 250,471,544

Acquisitions

\ 73,138,470 178,939,355

9,157,764 337,662,520

64,516,167

398,939

11,734,183

4,459,839

680,007,237

197,422 101,909,826

28,300,111

7,304

7,098,199

107,313,032

280,362,446

(278,875) (14,043,967) (13,288,200)

(271,074)

(4,020,075)

-

(31,902,191)

31,356,531

4,180,021

Disposals

-

-

Effect of foreign exchange

-

-

-

(8,778,333)

(1,152,196)

(15,255)

(1,347,322)

(786)

(11,293,892)

Business combinations

-

-

-

-

941,076

2,900

1,882

-

945,858

5,990,062

67,352,168

16,858,773

4,545

112,890

-

-

(90,281,355)

37,083

25,935,084 416,754,591

79,429,848

122,814

13,466,867

21,490,730

918,156,541

1,650,302 240,809,577

35,843,846

119,860

7,272,946

-

296,141,258

(61,104) (12,221,594) (12,441,312)

25,935,084 416,754,591

79,429,848

122,814

13,466,867

21,490,730

918,156,541

Others

5,839,691 134,365,166

29,554,885

139,892

1,984,874

60,636,231

389,026,571

Balance at December 31, 2012

110,485,063 250,471,544

126,679,068

29,826,764

-

-

(560,000) (116,399,009) (10,157,278)

-

(40,635)

-

(127,156,922)

Decrease by spin-off

(2,114,687)

-

(161,436) (14,534,666) (14,025,730)

(174,137)

(846,368)

-

(31,857,024)

Balance at January 1, 2012

-

Effect of foreign exchange

(6,064,299)

(4,101)

(1,882,599)

5,418

(2,085,201)

(10,009)

(27,932,111)

Disposals

-

-

(81,032)

(4,228,108)

-

(29,033,150)

252,307

921,131

161,436

806,133

776,171

71,345

20,045

-

3,008,568

Depreciation (*2)

-

6,217,431

1,059,479

63,558,991

16,045,424

39,937

1,900,205

-

88,821,467

66,323

-

12,402,097

3,969,335

(2,215,390)

-

1,644,551

(14,653,197)

1,213,719

Impairment loss

-

-

-

-

45,903

-

-

-

45,903

43,616,872 407,070,230

81,479,907

165,332

14,144,133

Effect of foreign exchange

-

-

-

(2,841,361)

(325,851)

(5,848)

(261,576)

-

(3,434,636)

Disposals

Business combinations
Others
Balance at December 31, 2013

229,303,775 281,215,338

- (17,891,320)

67,463,755 1,124,459,342
[Continued]
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Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
10,444,727
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(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

Land

Buildings

Structures

Machinery

Furniture
and fixtures

Vehicles

Others Construction-inprogress (*1)

Total

Business combinations

-

-

-

-

31,587

1,188

1,361

-

34,136

Others

-

-

-

4,545

(8,641)

-

-

-

(4,096)

Balance at December 31, 2012

-

16,662,158

2,648,677 289,310,158

39,190,956

74,105

4,684,828

-

352,570,882

7,507,462

96,852,943

28,672,321

279,079

4,461,237

4,459,839

383,865,979

23,286,407 127,444,433

40,238,892

48,709

8,782,039

21,490,730

565,585,659

Carrying amounts
Balance at January 1, 2012
Balance at December 31, 2012

73,138,470 168,494,628
\ 110,485,063 233,809,386

(*1) As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s construction of Chuncheon training institute and other properties are in progress and the Company has spent \107,313 million in 2012 which is
recognized as construction-in-progress.
(*2) Depreciation amounting to \4,905 million is related to assets of Hangame business sector and included in profit for the year from discontinued operations (Refer to note 31).

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

Industrial
property rights

Software

Goodwill

Others

Total

1,327,226

20,046,658

37,721,401

62,498,338

121,593,623

\ 1,263,341

20,484,842

51,183,848

61,098,270

134,030,301

Carrying amounts
Balance at January 1, 2013
Balance at December 31, 2013

(*1) The recoverable amounts of some membership and intangible assets separately identified through business combination included in others are below carrying amount and, as such
differences are material, the Group recognized impairment losses. The recoverable amounts of membership and intangible assets separately identified through business combination are
measured at fair value less costs to sell and value in use, respectively.
(*2) Impairment losses and amortization amounting to \14,836 million and \2,789 million, respectively, are related to assets of Hangame business sector and included in profit for the year
from discontinued operations (Refer to note 31).
(*3) In 2013, the Company received government grants from Gangwon-do and Chuncheon-si for construction of NAVER High-tech Industrial Complex located at Chuncheon-si.

(2) C
 hanges in intangible assets for the year ended December
31, 2012 are as follows:

13. Intangible Assets

Item

(1) Changes in intangible assets for the year ended December
31, 2013 are as follows:

Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

Industrial
property rights

Software

Goodwill

Others

Total

\ 5,797,200

54,473,942

63,273,593

115,812,992

239,357,727

1,085,432

18,329,295

35,092,613

44,702,246

99,209,586

(95,068)

(7,239,019)

-

(34,237,592)

(41,571,679)

(541,342)

(9,805,276)

(32,005,783)

(19,449,969)

(61,802,370)

(42,718)

(1,374,678)

(5,819,516)

(4,263,847)

(11,500,759)

10,010

242,490

34,851

287,351

9,707

-

-

(209,088)

(199,381)

6,223,221

54,626,754

60,540,907

102,389,593

223,780,475

4,469,974

34,427,284

25,552,192

53,314,654

117,764,104

Disposals

(26,919)

(3,225,654)

-

(17,394,071)

(20,646,644)

Amortization (*2)

586,011

7,839,441

-

7,646,781

16,072,233

-

-

-

492,999

492,999

(309,505)

(4,741,113)

(23,968,789)

(11,474,854)

(40,494,261)

-

-

7,773,656

9,589,782

17,363,438

228,352

(1,027,549)

-

(244,036)

(1,043,233)

Business combinations

6,952

156,207

-

8,797

171,956

Others

5,015

713,296

-

(648,729)

69,582

4,959,880

34,141,912

9,357,059

41,291,323

89,750,174

Balance at January 1, 2013
External acquisition
Disposals
Decrease by spin-off
Effect of foreign exchange
Business combinations
Others
Balance at December 31, 2013
Accumulated amortization and impairment losses
Balance at January 1, 2013

Government grants (*3)
Decrease by spin-off
Impairment loss (*1,2)
Effect of foreign exchange

Balance at December 31, 2013

Industrial
property rights

Software

Goodwill

Others

Total

\ 5,590,942

48,216,467

67,989,426

89,327,249

211,124,084

405,179

10,053,730

1,064,467

27,357,660

38,881,036

(193,650)

(1,820,400)

-

(382,909)

(2,396,959)

(5,271)

(1,900,306)

(5,780,300)

(468,182)

(8,154,059)

-

(75,549)

-

(20,826)

(96,375)

5,797,200

54,473,942

63,273,593

115,812,992

239,357,727

Balance at January 1, 2012

3,972,253

26,627,394

9,456,705

32,235,871

72,292,223

Disposals

(193,650)

(1,344,779)

-

(86,714)

(1,625,143)

630,616

8,889,555

-

8,726,934

18,247,105

Impairment loss (*)

63,634

1,264,939

16,095,487

12,515,975

29,940,035

Effect of foreign exchange

(2,879)

(1,009,825)

-

(77,412)

(1,090,116)

4,469,974

34,427,284

25,552,192

53,314,654

117,764,104

1,618,689

21,589,073

58,532,721

57,091,378

138,831,861

\ 1,327,226

20,046,658

37,721,401

62,498,338

121,593,623

Acquisition cost
Balance at January 1, 2012
External acquisition
Disposals

Acquisition cost

(In thousands of Korean won)

Effect of foreign exchange
Others
Balance at December 31, 2012
Accumulated amortization and impairment losses

Amortization (*)

Balance at December 31, 2012
Carrying amounts
Balance at January 1, 2012
Balance at December 31, 2012

(*) Impairment losses and amortization amounting to \20,197 and \6,701 million, respectively, are related to assets of Hangame business sector and included in profit for the year from
discounted operations (Refer to note 31).

(3) Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of cash-generation
units for impairment testing for goodwill annually. The recoverable

amount is determined based on its value in use estimated as the
present value of its expected future cash flow from the continuing
use of the assets.

[Continued]
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Item

Line Corp.

DataHotel Corp.

10.0%

10.8%

1.9%

1.9%

Pre-tax rate
Expected permanent growth rate

The key assumptions used in the estimation of its value in use
reflects management’s assessment of future trends in the internet

industry based on both external sources and internal sources
(historical data).

(2) S
 hort-term borrowings as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

Lender

Short-term

borrowings in

foreign currency

14. Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are
as follows:

December 31, 2012

Current

Non-current

Current

Non-current

\ 155,760,143

-

150,376,295

36,978

Accrued expenses

109,859,446

-

104,853,798

-

Deposits received

5,007,904

-

49,414

-

-

94,846

-

141,267

\ 270,627,493

94,846

255,279,507

178,245

Other payables

Leasehold deposits received
Total

Short-term borrowings in Korean won

(1) Borrowings as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as
(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

\ 49,980

-

85,861,257

2,748,641

150,699,000

32,746,875

4,973,067

100,000,000

241,583,304

135,495,516

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings in foreign currency
Current portion of long-term borrowings in foreign currency
Current portion of debentures
Total

Long-term borrowings in Korean won

-

7,415,660

Long-term borrowings in foreign currency

-

187,125,000

110,096,833

-

\ 110,096,833

194,540,660

Total
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0.96

-

1,247,500
(JPY 100,000,000)

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

0.93

-

873,250
(JPY 70,000,000)

Shinhan Bank Japan

1.10

\ 10,009,427
(JPY 996,299,922)

4,141
(JPY 331,934)

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

0.93

1,004,660
(JPY 100,000,000)

623,750
(JPY 50,000,000)

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

0.80

10,046,600
(JPY 1,000,000,000)

-

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

0.90

12,055,920
(JPY 1,200,000,000)

-

Hana Bank

1.95

5,023,300
(JPY 500,000,000)

-

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

0.58

40,186,400
(JPY 4,000,000,000)

-

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

0.87

7,534,950
(JPY 750,000,000)

-

Industrial Bank of Korea

5.06

49,980

-

\ 85,911,237

2,748,641

are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

Lender

Annual interest
rate(%)

Maturity
(year)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Long-term borrowings in

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

6M LIBOR + 0.75

2013

-

7,796,875
(JPY 625,000,000)

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

1M LIBOR + 0.90

2014

\ 100,466,000
(JPY 10,000,000,000)

124,750,000
(JPY 10,000,000,000)

1.50

2014

50,233,000
(JPY 5,000,000,000)

87,325,000
(JPY 7,000,000,000)

-

-

-

7,415,660

150,699,000

227,287,535

\ (150,699,000)

(32,746,875)

-

194,540,660

foreign currency

Shinhan Bank Japan
Long-term borrowings in

Non-current liabilities

Debentures

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

(3) L
 ong-term borrowings as of December 31, 2013 and 2012

follows:

Short-term borrowings in Korean won

December 31, 2012

Total

15. Borrowings

Item

December 31, 2013

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

Item

Annual interest rate (%)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Korean won

Golden Bridge Asset Management Co.,Ltd. and
The Korea Securities Finance Corporation

Subtotal
Less: Current portion of long-term borrowings
Total
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(4) Debentures as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as

- 2012

follows:

Item
1st public offering
2nd public offering
LINE Corp. 1st private offering

(In thousands of Korean won)

Issue date

Maturity date

Annualinterestrate (%)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

August 14, 2010

August 13, 2013

4.56

-

100,000,000

September 11, 2013

September 11, 2016

3.37

\ 100,000,000

-

August 30, 2013

August 31, 2016

0.33

15,069,900
(JPY 1,500,000,000)

-

(4,973,067)

(100,000,000)

\ 110,096,833

-

Less : current portion of debentures
Total

- 2013

(In thousands of Korean won)

Current

Non-current

Provision for
lawsuit(*1)

Personnel
expense(*2)

Provision for
restoration(*4)

Total

Social
contribution(*3)

Provision for
restoration(*4)

Total

-

-

243,596

243,596

-

10,917,675

10,917,675

\ 926,439

1,524,592

2,056,259

4,507,290

100,000,000

3,492,041

103,492,041

Decrease

-

-

(1,872,718)

(1,872,718)

-

(2,826,700)

(2,826,700)

Decrease by spin-off

-

-

(45,047)

(45,047)

-

(749,601)

(749,601)

\ 926,439

1,524,592

382,090

2,833,121

100,000,000

10,833,415

110,833,415

Ending balance

Non-current

\ 4,612,443

6,641,097

243,596

4,463,434

Decrease

(4,612,443)

(186,856)

Ending balance

\ 243,596

10,917,675

Beginning balance
Increase

Item

Changes in provisions for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012 are as follows:

Increase

Current

Other liabilities as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

16. Provisions

Beginning balance

Provision for restoration

Item

17. Other Liabilities

The debentures bear interests, which is payable quarterly in arrear,
with its principal payable at maturity.

Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

(*1) Provision for lawsuit is estimated based on probable outflow of resources in connection with a pending lawsuit of which defendant is the Group.
(*2) According to a judgment decided at Supreme Court on December 18, 2013, previous agreement between labor and management that specified bonus coin provided to employees of the
Company is not included in ordinary wages became invalid. Accordingly, related provision is estimated based on the estimated expenses expected to incur when employees claim additional
compensation of which state of limitation has not been expired.
(*3) In 2013, the Group submitted a plan of tentative consent decree to Fair Trade Commission (the “Commision”) after consultation with the Commission. The plan will be finalized by general
meeting of Fair Trade Commission. Related provision is accounted for based on the amount specified in the plan in which the Company promised to contribute to social funds for next three
years.
(*4) Provision for restoration of leased property is estimated restoration expenses expected to incur when the lease term is terminated.

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Current

Non-current

Current

Non-current

Advances received

\ 99,067,526

-

64,453,892

1,506,443

Unearned revenues

1,714,027

-

7,004,530

-

Deferred revenues

1,944,030

-

723,063

-

Withholdings

62,210,042

8,481,257

33,984,934

-

Value added tax payable

29,940,525

-

30,541,525

-

\ 194,876,150

8,481,257

136,707,944

1,506,443

Total

18. Employee Benefits
(1) Liabilities for defined benefit obligations as of December
31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Item
Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Liabilities for defined benefit obligations

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

\ 182,483,928

200,839,903

(22,691,188)

(29,625,740)

\ 159,792,740

171,214,163

(2) O
 ther liabilities for employee benefits as of December 31,
2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Item
Liabilities for paid leave
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(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

\ 25,081,306

31,068,572
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(3) F
 air value of plan assets as of December 31, 2013 and

(6) Expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized

2012 are as follows:

in the statement of comprehensive income as operating

expense and the details of expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item
Time deposits and others

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

\ 22,691,188

29,625,740

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

2013

2012

Current service costs

\ 51,989,233

45,927,345

Net interest expense

4,923,547

4,874,546

\ 56,912,780

50,801,891

Total

(4) Movements in the present value of defined benefit

obligations for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item
Defined benefit obligations at the beginning of period
Benefits paid by plan
Current service costs and interest (*)

2013

2012

\ 200,839,903

138,314,983

(23,520,450)

(22,248,342)

59,565,810

52,953,274

(22,690,416)

11,335,268

4,514,249

25,249,587

(4,903,393)

(4,764,867)

(31,321,775)

-

\ 182,483,928

200,839,903

Actuarial losses (gains) in other comprehensive income
Demographic variables
Financial variables
Experience adjustments
Decrease by spin-off
Defined benefit obligations at the end of period

(7) The amount of accumulated actuarial losses included in

other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2013 and
2012 are as follow:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item
Beginning balance
Remeasurement
Ending balance

2013

2012

\ (65,703,981)

(39,941,554)

17,738,133

(25,762,427)

\ (47,965,848)

(65,703,981)

(8) As of December 31, 2013, the weighted average duration

(*) Current service costs and interest for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounting to \3,998 million and \8,717 million, respectively, included in profit for the year from
discontinued operations are related to employees of Hangame business sector (Refer to note 31).

of the defined benefit obligation is 8.63 years.

(5) Movements in the present value of plan assets for the

years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(9) The Group used the discount rate based on market rate
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

2013

2012

\ 29,625,740

34,579,276

223,382

202,485

(4,496,433)

(6,787,870)

Expected return on plan assets

1,039,299

2,151,383

Actuarial losses in other comprehensive income

(325,012)

(519,534)

(3,375,788)

-

\ 22,691,188

29,625,740

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of year
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid by the plan assets (*)

Spin-off
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year

of high quality corporate bonds denominated in identical
currencies to defined benefit obligations having similar
estimated payment terms as of the reporting date in

Item

order to calculate present value of the defined benefit

obligations. Significant actuarial assumptions for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013

2012

Weighted average of future salary increases

11.63%

10.70%

Market rate of high quality corporate bonds

4.20%

4.00%

(*) Expected return on plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounting to \132 million and \334, respectively, classified as profit for the year from discontinued
operations is related to employees of Hangame business sector (Refer to note 31).
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20. Share Capital

(10) Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial

assumption as of December 31, 2013 is as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item
Discount rate(1% movement)
Future salary increases (1% movement)

Defined benefit obligations
Increase

Decrease

\ (16,976,569)

14,530,369

\ 13,728,215

(14,800,241)

(1) Changes in the number of the Company’s common shares
issued and outstanding for the year ended December 31,
2013 are as follows:

Issued shares

Treasury shares

Outstanding shares

\ 48,127,704

4,596,646

43,531,058

Exercise of share options

-

(4,470)

4,470

Acquisition of treasury shares

-

21,203

(21,203)

(15,165,025)

(1,446,995)

(13,718,030)

\ 32,962,679

3,166,384

29,796,295

Item

Issued shares

Treasury shares

Outstanding shares

January 1, 2012

\ 48,127,704

4,158,189

43,969,515

Exercise of share options

-

(42,820)

42,820

Acquisition of treasury shares

-

481,277

(481,277)

\ 48,127,704

4,596,646

43,531,058

Item
January 1, 2013

Decrease by spin-off
December 31, 2013

19. Commitments and Contingencies
(1) The Group has credit lines totaling \170,000 million with

Kookmin Bank, Shinhan Bank, Hana Bank and Woori Bank

as of December 31, 2013 and aggregate of ￥3,700 million

with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Shinhan Bank
Japan, Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. and Hana Bank.
(2) A
 s of December 31, 2013, the Group is involved in

eleven lawsuits for alleged damages of \1,653 million in
aggregate. The ultimate outcome of the above lawsuits
cannot yet be determined. The Group believes that

although the outcome of these legal actions is uncertain,

they would not ultimately result in a material unfavorable
effect on the Group’s financial position, operating results
or cash flows.

(3) T
 he Group spun off Hangame business sector as of August
1, 2013. According to the commercial law, the Company
has a joint obligation with NHN Entertainment Corp. to
repay liabilities incurred before spin-off.

(4) As of December 31, 2013, the Group is covered by

property damage insurance which has coverage of

\355,285 million in aggregate from Meritz Fire & Marine

Insurance Co., Ltd. and two other insurance companies,

management indemnity obligation insurance up to the loss
of \50,000 million from LIG Insurance Co., Ltd., medical
insurance and gas accident damages insurance.

(5) As of December 31, 2013, the Group is provided with

(2) C
 hanges in the number of the Company’s common shares
issued and outstanding for the year ended December 31,
2012 are as follows:

December 31, 2012

guarantee of \12,368 million relating to deposits,

authorization, and performance guarantees from Seoul
Guarantee Insurance.

(6) The Group acquired and deposited Japanese government
bonds, amounts of which are equivalent to cyber money
used in internet site operated by the Group under the

Act on Settlement of Fund in Japan. They are recorded as
held-to-maturity investments.

21. Other Capital
(1) Other capital as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item
Treasury shares
Loss on disposal of treasury share
Share options
Others (*)
Total

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

\ (643,717,557)

(925,660,707)

(39,640,899)

-

9,297,846

590,866

(2,440,785,447)

(28,063,029)

\ (3,114,846,057)

(953,132,870)

(*) Others include the amounts related to asset group held for distribution to owners measured at fair value and loss on capital reduction due to the spin-off (Refer to note 31).
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(2) A
 s of December 31, 2013, the Company has 3,166,384

shares of treasury shares, with a total carrying value of

\643,718 million, for the stabilization of the Company’s

shares price and the exercise of stock options, which
is accounted for as other capital. In 2013, 1,446,995

business sector in return for the newly issued shares of

23. Retained Earnings

acquisition cost of treasury shares decreased and the fair

(1) Retained earnings as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are

NHN Entertainment Corp. The difference between the
value of shares of NHN Entertainment Corp. acquired
amounting to \54,699 million before tax effect was

treasury shares with acquisition cost of \291,471

recognized as a loss on sale of treasury shares which was

million was decreased due to the spin-off of Hangame

charged directly to equity.

as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item
Legal reserve (*1)
Discretionary reserve
Unappropriated retained earnings (*2)

(3) Share-based payments

Total

In accordance with the resolutions of the Board of Directors and
general meetings of shareholders, the Group granted equity-

settled share options to its directors and employees as follows:

(In Korean won, except number of options)

Date of grant

Number originally
granted (*)

Number
exercised

Number
outstanding

Grantor

Exercise
price

April 27, 2006

1,470

1,470

-

NAVER Corporation

\ 105,549

March 23, 2007

3,000

3,000

-

NAVER Corporation

\ 134,000

December 17, 2012

28,000

-

28,000

LINE Corp.

￥ 172,000

December 16, 2013

7,000

-

7,000

LINE Corp.

￥ 172,000

39,470

4,470

35,000

Total

\ 5,598,563

2,917,049

11,860,000

11,860,000

4,538,719,791

2,653,017,123

\ 4,556,178,354

2,667,794,172

(*1) The Korean Commercial Code requires the Company to appropriate a legal reserve in an amount equal to at least 10% of cash dividends for each accounting period until the reserve equals
50% of stated capital. The legal reserve may be used to reduce a deficit or transferred to share capital in connection with a free issue of shares.
(*2) Other capital adjustment of \2,412,722 million incurred in connection with the spin-off of Hangame business will be offset against retained earnings by approval of general meetings of
shareholders scheduled to be held in the subsequent to the end of reporting period.

24. Operating Expenses from Continuing
Operations
Details of operating expenses for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Item
Salaries

22. Accumulated Other Comprehensive income

Expenses related to defined benefit plan
Compensation expenses associated with share options

Accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31,
2013 and 2012 is as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Gain on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

\ 1,100,235

1,359,520

Loss on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

(74,106,494)

(1,636,163)

Loss on translation of foreign operations

(46,269,762)

(44,530,548)

Unrealized holding gain on equity-accounted investees

2,858

6,819,542

Unrealized holding loss on equity-accounted investees

(144,653)

(186,619)

\ (119,417,816)

(38,174,268)

Total

December 31, 2012

(In thousands of Korean won)

(*) The number was adjusted for exercised share options and free issuance of new shares.

Item

December 31, 2013

2013

2012

\ 428,023,153

404,320,460

55,648,334

41,958,069

9,006,990

431,793

Other employee benefits

56,528,133

52,015,401

Travel

10,460,357

6,887,106

Entertainment

2,540,512

1,931,554

Bad and debt expense

(494,098)

(288,860)

Depreciation

109,045,886

83,085,952

Amortization

12,380,751

11,540,952

119,327,062

97,423,673

16,185,631

11,745,160

8,427,472

5,051,738

22,128,392

20,632,795

6,306,780

9,462,524

Communications
Utilities
Taxes and dues
Rent
Insurance

[Continued]
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(In thousands of Korean won)

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

2013

2012

Insurance

6,306,780

9,462,524

Transportation

1,627,931

903,088

Miscellaneous loss

Publication

673,581

617,615

Others

Conference

2,234,696

1,818,004

10,293,690

6,882,441

661,572,288

432,537,046

7,189,407

4,707,768

491,835

15,467,487

247,185,753

67,664,290

1,039,720

674,100

-

16

\ 1,787,824,256

1,277,470,172

Supplies
Commission
Training
Outsourcing fee
Advertising
Event
Others
Total

25. N
 on-operating Revenues and Expenses from
Continuing Operations

Item
Donation

Total

2012

116,162,636

24,305,048

8,948,056

2,107,219

-

4,969,851

\ 136,996,353

42,285,420

26. Categories of Financial Instruments
Categories of financial instruments as of December 31, 2013 and
2012 are as follows:
Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

\ 242,082,589

280,975,949

Available-for-sale financial assets

239,551,906

229,139,295

Held-to-maturity financial assets

2,819,521

14,728,048

1,088,077,486

1,422,283,312

Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss

Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities recognized at amortized cost

(1) Non-operating revenues for the years ended December

2013

-

138,363

\ 513,844,018

520,592,712

31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

27. Finance Income and Costs from Continuing
Operations

2013

2012

Rental income

\ 80,077

440,610

Foreign currency transaction gain

3,425,487

140,322

Foreign currency translation gain

492,318

3,186

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

505,930

559,870

18,101

-

421,937

29,397

2,777,017

5,147,832

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

\ 7,720,867

6,321,217

Gain on disposal of intangible assets
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts
Others
Total

31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

2013

2012

Foreign currency transaction loss

\ 9,333,881

230,317

Foreign currency translation loss

23,419

550,179

263,240

117,074

22,130

262,691

2,242,991

9,743,041

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets

[Continued]
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(In thousands of Korean won)

2013

2012

\ 1,460,017

1,884,646

Available-for-sale financial assets

934,488

2,850,430

Held-to-maturity financial assets

65,497

82,312

19,506,487

22,647,909

21,966,489

27,465,297

Profit or loss:

Interest income

Loans and receivables

(2) N
 on-operating expenses for the years ended December

Loss on impairment of intangible assets

(1) Finance income for the years ended December 31, 2013

Dividend income
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets

36,710

-

3,271,517

656,793

3,308,227

656,793

640,108

133,053

Foreign currency transaction gain
Loans and receivables

[Continued]

137

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

2013

2012

36,717,583

12,790,752

83

21,587,996

36,717,666

34,378,748

Gain on valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2,334,190

2,893,777

Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

3,951,717

6,096,548

237,162

440,330

8,347,439

1,148,687

\ 77,502,998

73,213,233

Foreign currency translation gain
Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities recognized at amortized cost

Gain on transaction of derivatives
Gain on sale of available-for-sale financial assets
Total

years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

item

Gain (loss) on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets
Defined benefit plan actuarial gain and losses
Gain (loss) on sale of treasury shares

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

2013

2012

Current
income
tax

Deferred tax
assets
(liabilities)

Amount
before
tax

Current
income
tax

Deferred tax
assets
(liabilities)

\ (95,949,361)

-

23,219,745

(2,130,632)

-

696,925

23,404,572

-

(5,666,439)

(32,339,522)

-

6,577,095

\ (54,632,387)

(13,221,038)

-

785,442

190,077

-

Group’s income before income taxes from continuing
operations differs from the actual tax expense from

Interest expense

548,545,325

123,202,785

137,958,210

Non-taxable income

(2,472,023)

(1,973,076)

Non-deductible expense

13,310,015

1,578,773

(599,510)

(529,235)

(7,474,217)

5,922,845

1,661,026

-

-

438,174

239,498

905,881

3,372,076

692,575

Loss on valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

1,631,885

476,937

Changes of deferred tax assets with uncertain probability of realization

Loss on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

1,201,957

707,496

Tax refunds

Loss on sale of available-for-sale financial assets

20,348

217,161

Others

Loss on sale of Held-to-maturity financial assets

6,741

-

13,231,912

9,963,340

(95,949,361)

(2,130,631)

\ 23,219,745

696,925

Foreign currency transactionloss
Loans and receivables
Foreign currency translation loss

Tax effects

(In thousands of Korean won)

\ 456,924,049

Profit before income tax

Loss on sale of trade receivables

Loss on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

2013 and 2012 for the following reasons:

2012

6,525,116

Other comprehensive loss:

comprehensive income for the years ended December 31,

2013

\ 6,759,407

Total

continuing operations in the consolidated statement of

Item

Profit or loss:

Loans and receivables

2012

Amount
before
tax

calculated by applying statutory tax rates to the

2012 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

2013

(3) T
 he income tax expense from continuing operations

(2) F
 inance costs for the year ended December 31, 2013 and

Financial liabilities recognized at amortized cost

(2) Income

tax directly charged or credited to equity for the

28. Income Taxes from Continuing Operations

Income taxes at normal tax rates
Adjustments

Tax credit

Income tax expenses from continuing operations

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

26.96%

as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Temporary
differences at
December 31, 2013

Beginning balance

Ending balance

\ 12,704,149

3,760,142

3,074,404

87,636

(482,003)

(232,186)

140,143,625

136,936

33,914,757

Investments in equity- accounted investees

(5,508,608)

(6,613,568)

(980,140)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2012 are as follows:

28.69%

(4) Temporary differences and deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Allowance for doubtful accounts

operations for the years ended December 31, 2013 and

4,919,343
147,876,860

Effective tax rate

Item

(1) The components of income tax expense from continuing

3,481,334
\ 131,109,410

Available-for-sale financial assets

2013

2012

\ 209,890,182

163,163,851

Intangible assets

84,590,324

3,860,909

13,102,770

Changes in deferred tax for temporary differences

(78,780,772)

(15,286,991)

Accrued bonuses

69,609,125

13,634,170

16,845,408

Income tax expense from continuing operations (*)

\ 131,109,410

147,876,860

Withholdings

20,033,292

814,186

4,848,057

Current income tax

(*) Income tax expense from continuing operations does not include income tax expense from discontinued operations amounting to \28,934,222 thousand (2012: \39,378,039 thousand). This
amount is included in profit for the year from discontinued operations.
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(In thousands of Korean won)

29. Earnings Per Share

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Temporary
differences at
December 31, 2013

Beginning balance

Ending balance

Defined employee benefit obligations

150,868,039

41,724,955

36,510,065

Plan assets

(18,155,829)

(7,169,429)

(4,393,711)

Provisions

100,000,000

-

24,200,000

19,937,143

15,429,373

4,824,790

\ 574,308,896

65,095,671

131,714,214

Item

Others
Total

(1) Earnings per share for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 are as follows:

① Basic earnings per share from continuing operations

(In Korean won, except share information)

Item
Profit from continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

(5) Temporary difference not recognized as deferred tax
assets

As of December 31, the Group did not recognize deductible
temporary difference in the amount of \61,017 million arising
from the taxable differences of investments in equity-method
accounted investees as deferred tax assets since the temporary
difference is not expected to be reversed by sale of these shares
in the foreseeable future. In addition, the Group did not recognize
the loss carry forwards amounting to \161,776 million as deferred
tax assets since it is not probable that future taxable profit of

some subsidiaries will be available against which the Group can
use the benefits therefrom.

(6) Temporary difference not recognized as deferred tax
liabilities

As of December 31, 2013, The Group did not recognize taxable
temporary difference in the amount of \3,239 million arising from
the taxable difference of investments in equity-method accounted
investees as deferred tax liabilities since the temporary difference
will not reverse by sale of these shares in the foreseeable future.

Profit from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the Company
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

\ 1,571,841,628,452

145,407,721,215

37,777,831

43,959,530

\ 41,608

3,308

Balance at January 1, 2013

January1, 2013 ~ December 31, 2013

43,531,058

15,888,836,170

Effect of share options exercised

February5, 2013~ December 31, 2013

4,470

1,475,100

Decrease by spin-off

August 1, 2013 ~ December 31, 2013

(13,718,030)

(2,098,858,590)

September 3, 2013 ~ December 31, 2013

(21,203)

(2,544,360)

29,796,295

13,788,908,320

565,851

1,509,366

136,936

176,443,966

(538,233)

(6,613,568)

Intangible assets

72,632,753

11,171,891

3,860,909

Accrued bonuses

56,339,544

18,817,908

13,634,170

3,700,846

471,722

814,186

Defined employee benefit obligations

172,417,169

20,760,134

41,724,955

Plan assets

(29,625,740)

(5,987,799)

(7,169,429)

Item

62,919,257

3,679,141

15,429,373

Balance at January 1, 2012

\ 528,939,675

49,808,680

65,095,671

Ending balance

the fiscal period when the temporary differences would
be reversed. The tax rates are expected to be 24.2%.

Acquisition of treasury shares
Balance at September 30, 2013
Period
January 1, 2013~ December31, 2013

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Weighted average number of common shares
13,788,908,320÷365 = 37,777,831

② For the year ended December 31, 2012
Period

Common shares issued

Weighted number of shares

January 1, 2012~ December31, 2012

43,969,515

16,092,842,490

Effect of share options exercised

February 13, 2012 ~ December31, 2012

42,820

8,093,240

Acquisition of treasury shares

November 19, 2012~December31, 2012

(481,277)

(11,747,878)

43,531,058

16,089,187,852

Balance at September 30, 2012
Period
July 1, 2012 ~ September 30, 2012
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2012

Weighted number of shares

(482,003)

difference were calculated by using expected tax rate of

2013

Common shares issued

(3,348,562)

(8) As of December 31, 2013, the tax effects of temporary

(In Korean won, except share information)

Period

(1,991,747)

Total

9,114

(2) W
 eighted average number of common shares outstanding

3,760,142

Others

\ 8,619

Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations

3,273,112

Withholdings

43,959,530

Item

\ 15,537,776

Investments in equity-accounted investees

37,777,831

② Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations

Beginning balance

Available-for-sale financial assets

400,668,465,139

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations

differences at
December 31, 2013

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

\ 325,619,551,936

① For the year ended December 31, 2013

as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Allowance for doubtful accounts

2012

for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

(7) Temporary differences and deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Item

2013

Weighted average number of common shares
16,089,187,852 ÷ 366 = 43,959,350
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(3) D
 iluted earnings per share for the years ended December

(3) S
 ignificant transactions which occurred in the normal

31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

course of business with related companies for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

① For the year ended December 31, 2013
(In Korean won, except share information)

Item
Profit from continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company

2013

2012

\ 325,619,551,936

400,668,465,139

325,619,551,936

400,668,465,139

37,777,831

43,959,530

205

11,720

\ 8,619

9,112

Diluted profit for the year from continuing operations
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
Effect of share options on issue
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

① Revenues

- 2013
(In thousands of Korean won)

Relationship

Name

Affiliated company

Webzen, Inc. (*)

Joint venture

Neowiz NHN Asset Management Co., Ltd. (*)
Digital YTN Corp.

Total

② For the year ended December 31, 2012
(In Korean won, except share information)

Item
Profit from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the Company
Diluted profit for the year from discontinued operations

2013

2012

\ 1,571,841,628,452

145,407,721,215

1,571,841,628,452

145,407,721,215

37,777,831

43,959,530

205

11,720

\ 41,607

3,307

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
Effect of share options on issue
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations

-

-

3,493,665

397,000

-

\ 787,286

3,493,665

(In thousands of Korean won)

Relationship

Name

Sales

Interest income

Others

Affiliated company

Allat Corp.

\ 123,749

-

-

Webzen, Inc.

752,152

3,107,226

-

MBARO Inc.

169,093

-

-

Digital YTN Corp.

400,000

-

50,000

-

1,531,334

-

Neowiz NHN Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Kan Communications Co., Ltd.

(2) D
 etails of parent and subsidiary relationships as of

\ 390,286

- 2012

30. Related Parties
ultimate parent company of the Group.

Interest income

(*) Transactions incurred between Hangame business sector and related companies during the seven-month period ended July 31, 2013 before the date of spin-off are included.

Joint venture

(1) NAVER Corporation (formerly, NHN Corporation) is the

Sales

Total

398,592

-

-

\ 1,843,586

4,638,560

50,000

December 31, 2013 are as follows:

② Expenses
Item
Subsidiary

Companies

- 2013

(In thousands of Korean won)

NAVER Business Platform Corp. (formerly, NHN Business Platform Corp.), NHN Search Marketing Corp.,
NAVER I&S Corp. (formerly, NHN I&S Corp.), Incomms Corp., N-Visions Corp., CommPartners Corp.,
Greenweb Service Corp., NHN Technology Service Corp., LINE Corp. (formerly, NHN Japan Corp.),

DataHotel Corp., ForSchooner Inc.,Livedoor Career Co., Ltd., LINE Plus Corp., LINE Euro-Americas Corp.,

LINE Play Corp. (formerly, NHN Arts Corp.), LINE Business Partners Corporation(formerly, Jlisting Co., Ltd.),

Relationship

Name

Affiliated company

NHN China Corp., NHN Vietnam Co., Ltd., SearchSolution Corp., Brainpub Corp., Camp Mobile Corp.,

Commission

Others

Mediaweb, Inc. (*)

\ 12,269

236,127

Allat Corp.

3,517,851

-

Iconnect Co., Ltd., Amazingsoft Corp., Divine Interactive Co.,Ltd., LINE Fukuoka Corporation,Quicket Co.,

Webzen, Inc. (*)

22,608

-

Woori Levered Golden KP Private Placement Securities Investment Trust

Synapsoft Corp.

1,745,000

-

55,395

950

460,000

-

\ 5,813,123

237,077

Gogolook Co., Ltd,Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.8, Hyundai Korea Paper Bond Fund No.3,

Cloud Application Factory Corp.

Affiliated company

Allat Corp., NetMania Co., Ltd., Synapsoft Corp., Cloud Application Factory Corp.,BonAngels Pacemaker Fund,
Korea Contents Mutual Aid Association

Joint venture

Joint venture

Digital YTN Corp, LINE Project Cooperative

Total

Digital YTN Corp.

(*) Transactions incurred between Hangame business sector and related companies during the seven-month period ended July 31, 2013 before the date of spin-off are included.
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- 2012

(In thousands of Korean won)

Relationship

Name

Commission

Others

Affiliated company

Mediaweb, Inc.

\ 17,269

200,483

Allat Corp.

3,861,950

Joint venture

4,738

Affiliated company

Synapsoft Corp.

Joint venture

Digital YTN Corp.

1,099

Synapsoft Corp.

1,489,834

-

-

465

585,730

-

Digital YTN Corp.

Total

(In thousands of Korean won)

Name

2,047,241

AmazingSoft Co., Ltd.

- 2013
Relationship

Webzen, Inc.

MBARO Inc.

② Payables

460,000

-

\ 8,462,024

206,785

- 2012

(In thousands of Korean won)

Relationship

Name

Accounts payables

Affiliated company

Webzen, Inc. (*)

\ 32,647

Synapsoft Corp.

880,000

AmazingSoft Co., Ltd.

25,580

Digital YTN Corp.

42,167

Total

- 2013

(In thousands of Korean won)

Relationship

Name

Affiliated company

Allat Corp.

Trade receivables

Other receivables

\ 3,468,992

-

-

500,000

Synapsoft Corp.
Digital YTN Corp.

Total

36,300

-

\ 3,505,292

500,000

\ 980,394

(*) These entities have been excluded from the Company’s related parties for the year ended December 31, 2013 due to the spin-off.

(5) Guarantees provided on behalf of related companies as of
December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Relationship

Name

Subsidiary

LINE Corp.

(In Japanese yen)

Beneficiary

Period

Guaranteed amount

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

November 13, 2013 ~ December 30, 2014

4,000,000,000

(6) Key management personnel compensation for each of the

- 2012

(In thousands of Korean won)

Relationship

Name

Affiliated company

Mediaweb Inc.
Allat Corp.

Trade receivables

Loans

Other receivables

-

-

149,541

\ 2,589,118

-

-

78,914

-

-

-

-

875,000

73,700

-

-

-

51,521,000

-

\ 2,741,732

51,521,000

1,024,541

Webzen Inc.
Synapsoft Corp.
Joint venture

42,167
\ 883,667

Joint venture

① Receivables

Joint venture

\ 841,500

Total

(4) Account balances with related parties as of December 31,
2013 and, 2012 are as follows:

Accounts payables

Digital YTN Corp.
Neowiz NHN Asset Management Co., Ltd. (*)

Total

(*) These entities have been excluded from the Company’s related parties for the year ended December 31, 2013 due to the spin-off.

following categories for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(In millions ofKorean won)

Item
Short-term salaries
Retirement benefits
Total

2013

2012

\ 35,303

47,604

3,908

6,197

\ 39,211

53,801

Key management members include directors and internal auditors
of the Group.

(7) In addition, the Group’s time deposit of \4,000 million is
restricted in use for prime rate employees’ loans.
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31. Discontinued Operations

③ Statements of cash flows

Statements of cash flows for discontinued operations for the
seven-month period ended July 31, 2013 and the year ended
December 31, 2012 are as follows:

(1) Spin-Off
① Spin-off

On March 8, 2013, the board of directors decided to divide the
Company into two separate entities by spinning off one of its
business sector to enhance competitiveness of each business
sector. The decision of the board of directors was approved by

shareholders at the general shareholders’ meeting held on June
28, 2013. Accordingly, the Company spun off Hangame business
sector and completed registration of partition as of August 1,
2013. The details of spin-off are as follows:

Item
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Plan

Details

Spin-off companies

NAVER Corporation (Remaining company)

Date of spin-off

August 1, 2013

(In thousands of Korean won)

2013

2012

\ 158,020,194

76,615,105

(139,931,302)

44,912,146

4,232,127

(104,136,211)

\ (41,543)

(96,780)

NHN Entertainment Corporation (Newly established company)

Comprehensive income, comparative information of the statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2012
was restated. Relevant financial information related to Hangame
business sector is described as follows:

④ Assets and liabilities

Details of assets and liabilities transferred to newly established
entity on the spin-off date are as follows:
Item

② Statements of Income

Summary of statements of income of discontinued operations for
the seven-month period ended July 31, 2013 and the year ended
December 31, 2012 are as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

(In thousands of Korean won)

Amount

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Trade and other receivables

\ 196,796,223
299,011,117
45,753,556
184,489,030

2013

2012

Operating revenues

\ 395,595,116

650,982,402

Other current assets

42,631,016

Operating expenses

263,549,242

473,629,943

Total current assets

768,680,942

Results from operating activities

132,045,874

177,352,459

Property, plant and equipment

13,791,740

Non-operating revenues

3,558,871

3,241,574

Intangible assets

21,308,109

Non-operating expenses

22,430,972

26,562,882

Available-for-sale financial assets

120,629,831

Finance income

20,877,342

34,468,043

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

104,886,830

Finance costs

23,628,006

22,419,973

Deferred tax assets

18,082,445

3,026,357

13,253,330

Trade and other receivables

54,672,982
21,322,567
354,694,504

Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net

113,449,466

179,332,551

Other non-current assets

Income taxes

28,934,222

39,378,039

Total non-current assets

Profit for the year

84,515,244

139,954,512

1,474,026,026

-

\ 1,558,541,270

139,954,512

Profit before income tax

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued operations

Total assets

1,123,375,446

Liabilities
Trade and other payables

65,462,392

Short-term borrowings

1,785,400

Income tax payables

5,411,098

Provisions

139,087

Other current liabilities

19,222,847

Total current liabilities

92,020,824
[Continued]
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(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

Amount

Long-term borrowings

10,909,605

Liabilities for defined benefit obligations

27,945,987

Provisions

738,265

Other non-current liabilities

2,682,066

Total non-current liabilities

42,275,923
134,296,747
\ 989,078,699

Total liabilities
Net assets

⑤ Gain on disposal of discontinued operations

If the carrying value of asset group which are supposed to
be distributed to owners are recoverable principally through
distribution and distribution is highly probable, they are classified
as asset group held for distribution to owners. If the carrying
value of asset group held for distribution to owners is recoverable
through transactions of distribution rather than through
continuing use, they are required to be measured at the lower
of its carrying amount and its fair value less costs to sell. If the
Company distributes non-cash assets non-reciprocally to owners
who have the same class of equity instrument and treated equally,
it is required to be recognized a liability for the dividend payable

(2) Asset group held for sale
① Selling business sector

On September 30, 2013, the board of directors of LINE Corp.,
a subsidiary of the Company, decided to dispose its YYC (online
date site) business sector and related financial information are
presented as a discontinued operation in the financial statements.

when the Company has an obligation to distribute the assets
and liabilities (the date of approval at the general shareholders’
meeting). The dividend payable is measured at fair value of asset
group held for distribution to owners. The carrying amount of
dividend payable is required to be remeasured at the end of each
reporting period and at the time that distribution of asset group
is completed to reflect its current best estimate of the fair value
of the assets to be distributed and is accounted for in equity
(normally in share premium). The difference between the carrying
value asset group held for distribution to owners and dividend
payable is recognized as gain on disposal of discontinued
operation.
Relevant financial information related to YYC (online date site)
business sector is presented below:
② Statements of income

Statements of income of discontinued operations related to YYC
(online date site) business sector for the years ended December
31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013

2012

Operating revenues

\ 25,181,041

22,068,418

Operating expenses

21,538,528

18,261,910

3,642,513

3,806,508

Non-operating expenses

664

920

Finance costs

535

13

3,641,314

3,805,575

-

-

Profit for the year

3,641,314

3,805,575

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations

7,292,093

-

\ 10,933,407

3,805,575

Results from operating activities

Profit before income tax
Income tax

Profit from discontinued operations
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Statement of cash flows for discontinued operations related
to YYC (online date site) business sector for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

2013

2012

Cash flows from operating activities

5,084,933

4,641,994

Cash flows from investing activities

(1,413,190)

(836,420)

Cash flows from financing activities

-

-

④ Details of disposed assets and liabilities

Details of disposed assets and liabilities of YYC (online date site)
business sector are as follow:
(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

Amount

Asset group held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

\ 2,076,340
3,939,847
36,133

Total current assets

6,052,320

Intangible assets

2,377,249

Total non-current assets

2,377,249

Total asset group held for sale

8,429,569

Liabilities related to asset group held for sale

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

③ Statements of cash flows

Trade and other payables

2,498,565

Other current liabilities

2,040,856

Total liabilities related to asset group held for sale

4,539,421

Net asset group held for sale

\ 3,890,148
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Japan

LINE Corp. / 100.00%

Social Business

N-Visions Corp. / 100.00%

Oline Game

NHN Entertainment Corp. / 9.54%

Foundation

Happybean Foundation / 100% funding

6

DataHotel Co., Ltd. / 100.00%

1

―

38

NHN Investment Corp. / 100.0%

3

―

ForSchooner Inc. / 100.00%

Date of Establishment: February 2009

G plus. Corp. / 100.0%

http://happylog.naver.com

LINE Business Partners / 100.00%

Main business: Performances

Game Marketing and Business Corp. / 100.0%

Date of Establishment: May, 2009

LINE Fukuoka Corp. / 100.00%

and exhibitions business

Orange Crew Co., Ltd. / 100.0%

Main business: Operation of Online Donation

WiseCat Co., Ltd / 51.0%

Portal, Happybean, Happy Energy Campaign,

Dancing Anchovy Entertainment Co., Ltd / 55.4%

Support for Civic and social service groups’

Livedoor career Co., LTD. / 100.00%
―

Management

NAVER I&S Corp. / 100.00%

http://linecorp.com/

Support

NHN Technology Service Corp. / 100.00%

Date of Establishment: September, 2000

5

Greenweb Service Corp. / 100.00%

NHN Entertainment Service Corp. / 100.0%

IncommsCorp. / 100.00%

Funways CO., Ltd. / 60.0%

NAVER Cultural Foundation / 100% funding

CommPartners Corp. / 100.00%

Outdoor Global Co., Ltd / 50.0%

―

Main business: Mobile messenger services

DANCINGANCHOVY WEST / 100.0%

volunteer activities

Global

LINE Plus Corp. / 100.00%

―		

On Trey Co., Ltd / 100.0%

http://www.nhnfoundation.org
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LINE Play Corp. / 100.00%

http://www.naverins.com

Neowiz & NHN Asset Management Corp. / 50.0%

Date of Establishment: May, 2010

LINE Euro-Americas Corp. / 100.00%

Date of Establishment: April 2009

Sinu Sports Co., Ltd. / 50.0%

Main business: Book bus, Support for

―

Main business: Information systems services,

NHN PlayArt Corp. / 100.0%

My Neighborhood School libraries,

http://www.linepluscorp.com

Education, HR, Financial Affairs,

NHN Service Tech. Corp. / 100.0%

On stage (Hidden music, Support for indie bands),

Date of Establishment: February, 2013

General Affairs, Security

NHN ST Japan Corp. / 100.0%

Dialogue in the Dark, Book Refunds

Main business: Global Marketing
and contents development of LINE service

Mediator Corp. / 100.0%
Mobile Service

Brainpub Corp. / 100.00%		

Sync Corporation / 100.0%

NHN NEXT / 100% funding

1

―

comico Corp. / 100.0%

―

SAVAWAY Corporation / 100.0%

http:// www.nhnnext.org

Mobile Contents

Camp Mobile Corp. / 100.00%

Date of Establishment: December, 2011
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Iconnect Co., Ltd / 100.00%

Main business: Mobile contents development

NHN USA, INC. / 100.0%

Date of Establishment: November, 2011

Quicket Co., Ltd. / 51.0%

and distribution

NHN ENTERTAINMENT SC / 100.0%

Main business: An institute for educating

NHN ENTERTAINMENT

Software Professionals

Gogolook Co., Ltd. / 70.0%
―		

Design

Dvine Interactive Co., Ltd. / 100.00%

SINGAPORE PTE. LTD. / 100.0%

http://www.campmobile.com

Development

―

―

Date of Establishment: February, 2013

1

Date of Establishment: July, 2013

http://www.nhnent.com

Main business: Web design services

Date of Establishment: August 2013

Main business: Development of Mobile
Application and Contents, Sales

Main business: Online game development and
China

NHN China Corp. / 100.00%

1

―		

service

Online Ads

Naver Business Platform Corp. / 40.00%

3

NHN Search Marketing Corp. / 100.00%

Date of Establishment: December 2004

Webzen Inc. / 26.72%

Amazingsoft Co., Ltd. / 100.00%

Main business: Software development

Flux Co., Ltd / 55.4%

―		

and distribution

9Webzen Ltd. / 70.0%

http://www.nbp-corp.com

Webzen China Co., Ltd. / 100.0%

Date of Establishment: May, 2009

Vietnam

NHN Vietnam Co., Ltd. / 100.00%

Webzen Taiwan Inc. / 100.0%

Main business: Online Ads business

1

―		

Webzen America Inc. / 100.0%

Date of Establishment: February 2012

Webzen Europe / 100.0%

Main business: Internet service

Webzen West Inc. / 100.0%

and marketing, IT infrastructure service
Search

Search Solutions, Corp. / 100.00%

1

―

Webzen YMIR Games Co., Ltd / 100.0%

http://www.searchsolutions.co.kr

The Love Co., Ltd. / 100.0%

Date of Establishment: February 2000

Webzen Mobile Co., Ltd. / 100.0%

Main business: Software development

Webzen Graphics Inc. / 100.0%

and distribution

―

Business Division

http://www.webzen.co.kr

No. of subsidiary

Date of Establishment: April, 2000

Subsidiary

Main business: Game and other software

Sub-Subsidiary

development and distribution

Foundation

Major games: Mu Online, Sun Online, Huxley,

―

Battery Online, C9, R2 Arch Lord

Naver Corp.’s current affiliated companies.

Webzen Dublin Ltd. / 100.0%

* Best domestic search engine development
company, M&A with 1noon in 2006

As of December 31, 2013, there are total of
66 affiliates including Naver Corp.
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CORPORATE HISTORY / AWARDS & ACCOLADES

CORPORATE HISTORY
1999 06 Incorporated Navercom;launched search
portal "Naver"
06 Launched children's portal
"Jr.Naver"
12 Launched game portal "Hangame"

AWARDS & ACCOLADES
2009 01 Acquired 'me2day', a micro blog website

One-Cue; and acquired
Search Solutions
09 Established Hangame Japan

2000 02 Awarded for Excellence in the field of

02 Acquired 'Wingbus', a tour guide website

Digital Information Technology

05 NHN Corporation undergoes divestiture,

by Hankyoreh Daily

Established ‘NHN

05 Korea Management Association

Business Platform (NBP)
05 Established the Happybean Foundation,

2000 07 Merged Hangame Communications and

to strengthen the online donation culture
07 Mobile coupon distribution solution

Consulting names Naver.com as
Korea's top search portal
12 Awarded the Internet Grand Prize for
Top Search Portal by Chosun Ilbo

company, ITOPF Corporation
became NHN’s affiliate

2001 06 Awarded the Internet Grand Prix of
Entertainment Award by New Business

2001 09 Changed the corporate name to
NHN(Next Human Network)

2010 04 Established NHN Investment,

(Korean Securities Dealers
Automated Quotations)

Management

specializing in asset management
and venture investment business

2002 10 Listed on KOSDAQ

2002 05 Hangame won the 1st place for

04 NHN Japan acquired 'livedoor.com'

'The Best Web Awards, Game Division'

07 Merged 'Wingbus', a tour guide

(KMAC)

website

company name to NHN Japan

10 Awarded for excellence in privacy

12 Acquired digital content

2011 01 NBP started full-fledged autonomous
advertisement service
01 Established the affiliated company

2005 03 Awarded Namoo Prize, 'I-People Award'
(joins.com)
06 Awarded the Grand Prize for Best Internet
Company of the year (New Business
Management)
06 Named 'Korean Brand Star, Portal Division' (Brand Stock)
09 Won the 1st Place, 'Korean

of Information and
Telecommunication(KAIT)
12 Awarded Grand Prize, 'Top Internet

(Korea Standards Association)
10 Awarded 'CEO Who Brightens Korea', Tal-

pany with Sea Rainbow
Holdings Corporation in China
11 Established game development studio
NHN Games

vulnerable social group, joint invest with
2005 07 Launched online donation portal
'Happybean'
07 Incorporated NHN USA

Webzen

12 Granted the Grand Prize in social contribution by IMI
12 Selected as the Internet Company of the

PTE.LTD

management company
NHN Services

mobile exclusive affiliated company
03 Established the LINE exclusive

2006 06 Acquired search company '1noon'
10 Acquired data storage management
solution company Datachorus

'LINE Plus'
04 Change corporate name of NHN Japan
to LINE Corp.

of game portal 'ijji.com'
11 Established Naver Japan
12 Established NHST
(Next Human Search Technology)

underwent split-off

2009 04 Naver ranked No.1 for four consecutive
years among search portals by NCSI
(National Customers Satisfaction Index)

2006 06 Awarded the Best Kosdaq listed

06 Naver acquired 'Good Design' mark
09 Won the 1st place, 'Korean

2010 Awards)
12 Naver listed in Top 10 Tech Companies
representing Asia
2011 04 Naver ranked No.1 for six consecutive

Year by Kinternet,

(Korea Institute of Design Promotion)

04 Hangame ranked 2nd place in web

with Highest Sales in 2009” among
venture
06 businesses with sales of 100 billion KRW

(National Customers Satisfaction Index)
07 Awarded “The Best Venture Business
with Highest Sales in 2011” (Small& Medium Business Administration and Korea
Venture Business Association)
10 NHN Green Factory awarded with
“Korean Architecture Award 2011”
(Excellence award)

Standard-Service Quality Index, Internet

(Deloitte Consulting)

Portal Division' for 4th consecutive year

09 NHN listed in “Asia 50” (Forbes)

package awarded by iF Design Award

(Korea Standards Association)

10 Naver ranked No.1 in “2009 KS-SQI

(communication)

Service-Quality Index

selected as one of the "Hits of the Year,"

10 Hangame won the 1st place in 'National

for six consecutive years

Portal Division' for 2nd straight year

(Korean Standards Association)

(Korea Productivity Center)

Samsung Economic Research Institute

2007 04 Presented the 2007 Award for Excellence
in Gender Equality Employment. Awarded
by the president. (Ministry of Labor)
11 Awarded Presidential Prize,
'Korea Internet Awards' (Ministry of

2004 08 Ranked No.1 search portal by the Korea
Service-Quality Index
(Korean Standards Association)
12 Awarded Gold Prize, 'Web Award Korea
2004, Game Division'
(Web Award Committee)

2008 11 Transferred to KOSPI(Korea

Information and Communication)
11 Awarded Grand Prize, 'Korean IR Awards'
(Korea IR Association)
12 Selected 'Technology Fast 500 Asia
Pacific' for 5th consecutive year (Deloitte
Consulting)
12 Awarded Grand Prize,

Composite Stock Price Index)

11 Naver ranked first place in “2009 KCSI
(Korean Customer Satisfaction Index)”

12 Received Presidential Award for Contri-

'Web Award Korea 2007'
(Web Award Committee)
12 Awarded 1st Prize for 'Cyberethics Index
Evaluation, Portal Division'
(Government Youth Commission)

11 Naver App Squre and Photo printing

(Korea Standard Service Quality Index)”

Brand Competitive Index (NBCI), Game

a list compiled by Joongang Ilbo and

bution to the Advancement of Korean

(Korea Venture Business Association)

years among search portals by NCSI

2003 Korean Technology Fast 50

Software Industry

NHN Entertainment (formerly ‘Hangame’)

intro clip (iF communication Award)
08 Annual report received gold prize in

(Newsweek)

Awarded “The Best Venture Business

08 NAVER Corporation and
2007 05 NHN USA started official services

Profitable Companies in ternet Service'

Companies Association)

12 Naver's "Knowledge Search" service is
2013 03 Established 'Camp Mobile', the

12 NHN ranked the 5th in '2008 Most

Corporations Association and Journalist

(Korean Standards Association)

08 Established Internet service

Design Promotion)

board games (Korea Productivity Center)

08 Ranked as No.1 search portal by Korea

08 Establishred NHN SINGAPORE

greenwindow, Dialogue in the dark

category (Annual Report Competition

(Korea IR Association)

Company Award (KOSDAQ Listed

2003 07 Awarded the Grand Prize among

(Red Dot Award)
08 Won 9 design awards including Naver

category and bronze prize in design

Company of Year by the Korea Internet

2012 01 Merged three entities, NHN Japan, Naver
04 Established 'The Sarang' for hiring

11 Awarded the 1st prize for '2008 Korea

Festival.
08 Won 5 awards for Brand Design

Knowledge Economy, Korea Institute of

11 Won Grand Prize, 'Korean IR Awards'

Association of Korea)

Association of Korea
Japan, Livedoor to become ‘NHN Japan’

09 NHN named in 'Asia50' (Businessweek)

at Cannes Lions International Advertising

internet service, publication/production

businesses

venture with KT Corps.

04 NHN named in 'Global 2000' (Forbes)

beauty in every letter' won PR Silver Lions

Management Division' (Ministry of

Corporations Association, Journalist

06 Launched Ourgame Joint venture com-

Search Portal Service Division' for 3th

(National Customers Satisfaction Index)
06 Naver Hangeul campaign 'Hangeul,

Design Awards, InDesign

developer

12 Awarded the Grand Prize for Best Internet

Customers Satisfaction Index(NCSI),

years among search portals by NCSI

and Industry Cooperation Foundation)

Future Valley

Services)

Management Association Consulting)
03 Naver ranked top in 'National

2010 04 Naver ranked No.1 for five consecutive

my, Seoul National University Academics

the association of online-based

09 Established KaN Communications, Joint

Companies 2008, All-Star 3' (Korean

Center)

Company of the Year' (Korea Internet

capitalization

02 Named 'Korea's Most Admired

consecutive year (Korea Productivity

‘Orange Crew’, smart device game

2004 04 Ranked No.1 on KOSDAQ in market

Performance Index' (Oliver Wyman)

Portal Division' for third consecutive year

transmission technology company

04 Established NTS(NHN Technology

2008 02 Named in '60 CMT Shareholder

Standard-Service Quality Index, Internet

ent Management Division (Korea Econo-

protection by the Korea Association
2003 10 Hangame Japan changed the

NAVER ANNUAL REPORT 2013

for seven years in a row
(Korea Management Association)
11 Naver ranked no.5 among worldwide
search portals (Comscore)
12 Naver awarded grand prize in mobile
web & media/information service
category (Web Award Korea)
12 C9 awarded grand prize at 2009 Game
Awards Korea (Ministry of Culture, Sports

2012 04 Naver ranked No.1 for seven consecutive
years among search portals by NCSI
(National Customers Satisfaction Index)
06 Naver App.Square, NHN Next Identity
awareded by red dot award
07 Naver Real Estate App, NHN Diary
package awarded by IDEA 2012 Award
12 Won 7 design awards including NHN
NEXT identity, Line (iF communication
award)
12 Naver Music awarded ‘The Best Korea TV
app. in Daily Life’ (Korea Communication
Commision)

and Tourism)
12 NHN listed in '50 promising Asia-Pacific
companies 2009' (Forbes)
12 Ranked no.3 in '2009 Top 100 Brands of

2013 04 Naver ranked No.1 for eight consecutive
years among search portals by NCSI
(National Customers Satisfaction Index)

Korea' (Brandstock)
12 NHN awarded “2009 Korea Sharing and
Volunteer Awards” (Hankook Daily News)
12 NHN awarded by the Minister of Culture,
Sports and Toursim for its library
donation efforts. (Ministry of Culture,
Sports and Tourism)

152

CORPORATE HISTORY / AWARDS & ACCOLADES

153

INVESTOR INFORMATION

NAME OF COMPANY / Naver Corporation (KOSPI 035420)
CEO / SANG-HUN KIM
DATE OF ESTABLISHMENT / June 2, 1999
CAPITAL / KRW 16,481,339,500
HEAD OFFICE / Naver Green Factory, 6, Buljeong-ro, Bundang-gu,
Seongnam-si, Gyeonggi-do, Korea (Postal code: 463-867)
HOMEPAGE / www.navercorp.com

Major Services

DISCLAIMER

Internet Services

This report does not contain a complete description of

Naver, Online Search Portal (www.naver.com)

Naver Corporation’s business performance. All investments

Junior Naver, Children’s Online Portal (jr.naver.com)

involve an element of risk, and the performances described

Happybean, Online Donation Portal (happybean.naver.com)

herein must not be taken as a guarantee of future results.

Matome, User-generated contents service in Japan

Executives and employees of Naver Corporation and

(www.matome.naver.jp)

its affiliates are not liable for losses or damages arising

Livedoor, Online Comprehensive Portal in Japan

from investments or business decisions made by a third party

(www.livedoor.jp)

based on the information contained herein.

Mobile Services
Mobile Naver (m.naver.com)

IR INFORMATION

LINE, Mobile Messenger (http://line.naver.jp/en)

The 2013 Annual Report and recent investment

BAND, Mobile Community (http:// band.naver.com)

information on Naver Corporation can be found in both Korean
and English on Naver Corporation’s website (www.navercorp.com).

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (As of December 31, 2013)
1,595 persons

CONTACTS
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact the following.

STOCK INFORMATION (As of December 31, 2013)
Number of common shares outstanding: 32,962,679

Naver IR/Asset Management Office

Market capitalization: KRW 23.865 trillion

Tel: +82-1588-3830
Fax: +82-31-784-1000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

E-mail: dl_ir@navercorp.com

Samjong KPMG Inc.
Address: 10th Floor, 152, Teheran-ro, Gangnam-gu,
Seoul, Korea (Postal code: 135-984)
Homepage: http://www.kpmg.com/kr/en
Tel: 82-2-2112-0001
Fax: 82-2-2112-0002
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